
 

 

 

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA 
Prif Weithredwr, 
Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP 

 
 

 
 

DYDD GWENER, 4 MEDI 2015 
 
 

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

 

 

 

 

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R 
PWYLLGOR SAFONAU A GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, 

CAERFYRDDIN AM 10.00 AM. AR DDYDD GWENER, 11EG MEDI, 2015 ER 
MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD 
YNGHLWM 
 
 

 

 

 

Mark James 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Michelle Evans Thomas 

Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): (01267) 224470 

Ffacs: (01267) 224911 

E-bost: MEEvansThomas@sirgar.gov.uk 

Cyf: AD016-001 

 
 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

AELODAETH Y PWYLLGOR 

 

9 AELOD  

 

 

 

Aelodau Annibynnol (5) 
 

Mrs Mary Dodd 
Mr Christopher A. Downward (Is-Gadeirydd) 
Mr M. Andre Morgan 
Mr Paul W.L. Stait  (Cadeirydd) 
Mr Alun Williams 

 

 

Aelod Cymunedol y Pwyllgor (1) 
 

Cynghorydd Jeanette Gilasbey 
 

 

Aelodau Etholedig y Cyngor Sir (3) 
 

Cynghorydd Susan M. Allen 
Cynghorydd B.A. Louvain Roberts 
Cynghorydd Gareth B. Thomas 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   

2. DATGELU BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.   

3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR Y 29AIN GORFFENNAF, 2015.  

1 - 4 

4. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 2014/2015.  5 - 16 

5. ADOLYGU'R POLISI DATGELU CAMARFER CORFFORAETHOL.  17 - 78 

6. CYDYMFFURIO A'R COD YMDDYGIAD GAN GYNGHORWYR 
TREF A CHYMUNED.  

79 - 90 

7. ADRODDIAD OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS 
CYMRU 2014/15.  

91 - 164 

8. CANLLAWIAU DIWYGIEDIG YR OMBWDSMON.  165 - 216 

9. HYSBYSIAD O BENDERFYNIAD PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU Y 
CYNGHORYDD CYMUNED HAULWEN LEWIS.  

217 - 222 

10. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN BUMTHEG O GYNGHORWYR O 
GYNGOR CYMUNED GORSLAS.  

223 - 230 

11. CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD SHAHID HUSSAIN.  231 - 238 

12. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y DYLID, YM MARN Y CADEIRYDD, EI 
YSTYRIED YN FATER BRYS OHERWYDD AMGYLCHIADAU 
ARBENNING YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972.  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 



Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

29
TH

 JULY 2015 

 - 1 -

PRESENT: Mr P. Stait (Chair) 

Independent Members:- 

M. Dodd, M.A. Morgan and A. Williams 

County Council Members:- 

Councillors S.M. Allen, B.A.L. Roberts and G.B. Thomas 

The following officers were also in attendance:- 

Mr R. Edgecombe – Legal Services Manager 

Mrs M. Evans Thomas – Democratic Services Officer 

(Chamber, County Hall, Carmarthen: 10.00 a.m. – 10.50 a.m.) 

1. APOLOGIES  

Apologies for absence were received from Mr C. Downward and Community 
Councillor J. Gilasbey. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 

Name of Member Minute No Nature of Interest 

Councillor G.B. 
Thomas  

6 – Application for  
Dispensation by Councillors 
Gareth Thomas and Jean 
Lewis 

He is one of the 
applicants 

3. MINUTES  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on the 12
th

 

June, 2015 be signed as a correct record. 

4. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR G.E. 

WRIGHT 

The Committee considered an application submitted by the Clerk to Llandovery 
Town Council on behalf of Councillor G.E. Wright, a member of Llandovery Town 
Council, for the grant of a dispensation under the provisions of the Standards 
Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to speak at 
meetings of Llandovery Town Council on issues relating to the future of the 
Pantycelyn School site in Llandovery.  

It was reported that a dispensation was sought as Councillor Wright is a member 
and former Director of the Calon Cymru project which aims to revitalise 
communities on the Heart of Wales line through the purchase of land for use by the 

Eitem Rhif  3

Tudalen 1



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

29
TH

 JULY 2015 

 - 2 -

community via Community Land Trusts.  The Pantycelyn School site was a site 
which would potentially be of interest to the project.   

Councillor Wright would have a personal interest in relation to any discussions 
regarding the school site by virtue of paragraph 10(2)(ix)(ee) of the Code as the 
matter under discussion would be likely to affect a society or association operating 
in the county in which she is a member.  Councillor Wright’s interest would be 
prejudicial as, by her own admission, she wished to promote the views of the 
project in those discussions. 

Following a detailed discussion, it was 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that dispensation be granted under Regulation 

2(f) of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 to Councillor G.E. Wright to SPEAK BUT NOT VOTE at 

meetings of Llandovery Town Council on any issues relating to the future of 

the Pantycelyn School site in Llandovery, until 4
th

 December, 2015. 

5. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS LYN 

DAVIES, JOHN REES, N. THOMAS, S. THOMAS, J. GIBBIN, H. PHILLIPS, D. 

PHILLIPS, R. WILLIAMS AND R. DAVIES 

The Committee considered an application submitted by the Clerk to Llanboidy 
Community Council on behalf of Councillors Lyn Davies, John Rees, N. Thomas, S. 
Thomas, J. Gibbin, H. Phillips, D. Phillips, R. Williams and R. Davies, members of 
Llanboidy Community Council, for the grant of a dispensation under the provisions 
of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to 
speak and vote at meetings of Llanboidy Community Council in respect of their 
involvement with the Market Hall, Llanboidy. The Council receives requests for 
financial assistance from the Hall.  

It was reported that a dispensation was sought as all nine councillors were 
members of the Hall Committee.  One is also the Treasurer and another Chairman. 
Their role as Committee Members gives rise to a personal interest under 
10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) of the Code i.e. membership of a private club, society or association 
operating within the Authority’s area. This interest was also prejudicial as a member 
of the public with knowledge of the facts would reasonably regard it as so significant 
that it was likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest. 

There was no suggestion that the Councillors would themselves gain financially as 
a result of their involvement with the hall.  The application was silent as to whether 
any of the Councillors were appointed to the Committee by the Council. 

Although the application made specific reference to a meeting on the 1
st
 July, 2015, 

the interest was a continuing one. 

 Following a detailed discussion, it was 

Tudalen 2



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

29
TH

 JULY 2015 

 - 3 -

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that dispensation be granted under Regulation 

2(a) of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensation) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001, to Councillors Lyn Davies, John Rees, N. Thomas, S. 

Thomas, J. Gibbin, H. Phillips, D. Phillips, R. Williams and R. Davies to SPEAK 

AND VOTE at meetings of the Llanboidy Community Council in relation to any 

discussions regarding the Market Hall, Llanboidy until 4
th

 December, 2015. 

6. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNTY COUNCILLORS GARETH 

THOMAS AND JEAN LEWIS 

[NOTE:  Councillor G.B. Thomas, having earlier declared a personal interest in this 
item, left the meeting prior to the consideration and determination thereof.] 

The Committee considered an application submitted by County Councillors Gareth 
Thomas and Jean Lewis for the grant of a dispensation under the provisions of the 
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to 
speak and make written representations at meetings of Carmarthenshire County 
Council and its Committees on any matters relating to dairy farming.  Both 
Councillors are actively engaged in the dairy farming industry.    

It was reported that a dispensation was sought as their role in the dairy farming 
industry gives rise to a personal interest under paragraph 10(2)(a)(i) of the Code i.e. 
any employment or business carried on by them.  This interest was also prejudicial 
as a member of the public with knowledge of the facts would reasonably regard it 
was so significant that it was likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the 
wider public interest. 

Matters relating to dairy farming are regularly discussed at meetings of the Council 
and its Committees.  The application gave an example of where the Councillors 
were forced to declare an interest and absent themselves from a meeting in which 
they could have otherwise made a valuable contribution due to their expertise. 

Following a detailed discussion, it was 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that dispensation be granted under Regulation 

2(f) of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 to County Councillors Gareth Thomas and Jean Lewis to 

SPEAK BUT NOT VOTE AND TO MAKE WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS at 

meetings of Carmarthenshire County Council and its Committees in relation 

to any discussions regarding dairy farming until 4
th

 December, 2015. 

7. CODE OF CONDUCT TRAINING FOR TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS 

Further to minute no. 8 of the meeting held on 12
th

 June, 2015 the Committee 
received a further update report on the Code of Conduct training sessions held in 
early June for representatives of local Town and Community Councils. 

A consultation questionnaire was provided for all delegates seeking feedback on 
the training sessions and members considered a schedule of the feedback 

Tudalen 3



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

29
TH

 JULY 2015 

 - 4 -

responses together with a summary of the main points.  Out of the 106 delegates 
who attended, 98 returned their questionnaires and the Committee noted that the 
response to the training was overwhelmingly positive. 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 

 

SIGNED: ……………………………….         DATE: ……………………………….. 

Tudalen 4



  

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU – 2014/2015 

 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried yr adroddiad 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae'r testun dan sylw yn yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y 

Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Y 
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Eitem Rhif  4

Tudalen 5



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

th
 SEPTEMBER 2015 

 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 
 

The Standards Committee is required to produce an annual report of its activities for 

presentation to Full Council, usually in November or December of each year. 

Following discussions between officers and the Chair of the Committee, the attached draft report 

has been prepared for consideration and comment. 

The report focuses on the following issues; 

• Committee Membership 

• Code of Conduct and Dispensation Applications 

• Whistle-Blowing Policy 

• Complaints and Compliments 

• Public Services Ombudsman for Wales – 2014/2015 Annual Report 

• Annual Standards Conference 

• Adjudication Panel Report 2013/2014 

• Code of Conduct  compliance by Town and Community Councillors 

 

The section on the Annual Standards Conference has been left intentionally blank. It is suggested 

that it be completed once members have attended the conference 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  

 

Tudalen 6



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:      Linda Rees Jones                                              Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 7



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:    Linda Rees Jones                                      Head of   Administration and Law                                             

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 
 
  

Tudalen 8



1 

 

        

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 

 

 

     Item                  Subject                                                                                                           

1.               Introduction                                                                                                     

 

2.              Period covered by the report                                                                         

 

3.              Committee Membership                                                                                

 

4.              Code of Conduct  complaints                                                                         

 

5.              Applications for Dispensation                                                                        

 

6.             Code of Conduct Training 

 

7.              Whistle-Blowing Policy                                                                                    

 

8.             Complaints and Compliments                                                                         

 

9.             Ombudsman’s Report 2014/2015                                                                  

 

10.             Annual Standards Committee Conference                                                   

 

11.            Adjudication Panel Report for 2013/14   

 

12.            Code Compliance by Town and Community Councillors                                                   

 

             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 9



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

The law requires each and every County and County Borough Council in Wales to establish 

and maintain a Standards Committee. Such committees are responsible for overseeing 

standards of conduct for elected members of both the principal council and the constituent 

community and town councils within the principal council’s area. 

 

The Committee receives and determines applications for dispensation from elected 

members in relation to the Code of Conduct, and adjudicates upon code complaints referred 

to the Council by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.  However it should be noted 

that only rarely has the Committee been requested to undertake this latter function. 

 

 The Committee also receives reports in relation to complaints and compliments, and the 

operation of the Council’s whistle-blowing policy. 

 

2. PERIOD COVERED BY THIS REPORT 

 

This report covers the period 1
st
 April 2014 to 31

st
 March 2014 

 

3. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

 

The Committee has nine members, made up of five independent co-opted members, an 

elected member of a community council in the County and three elected members of the 

County Council. The Chair and Vice-Chair are both independent co-opted members. 

 

The vacancy caused by the resignation of independent member Mrs Gillian Whitehead and 

referred to in my report for 2013/2014 has been filled with the appointment of Mrs Mary 

Dodd to the Committee. 

 

The names of the committee members, together with the Committee’s terms of reference, 

are shown on the Council’s website. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 10



3 

 

 

 

4. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 

 

The Committee has not been required to adjudicate upon any Code of Conduct complaints 

during the period of this report. 

 

Formal complaints about councillors who are suspected of breaching the Code of Conduct 

are referred directly to the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales without involving the 

Standards Committee. Most complaints are resolved by the Ombudsman but, occasionally 

the Ombudsman may require the Committee to investigate and adjudicate on a complaint. 

In 2014-15, however, the Ombudsman did not refer any complaints to the Committee. 

 

During the year a total of 24 Code complaints were made against Councillors from 

Carmarthenshire. Of these 15 were against County Councillors and 9 against Town and 

Community Councillors. This represents a significant increase over recent years; however 

the following points should be noted; 

(i) 8 of the complaints relating to County Councillors arose out of the same incident 

and were in regard to the same Councillor. The Ombudsman found that no action 

was required as the Councillor had followed the Code in his conduct at a meeting of 

the Planning Committee. 

(ii) The Ombudsman found that the Code had been breached on only 1 occasion (by a 

Town Councillor), and even then concluded that no further action should be taken. 

(iii) 8 of the complaints were by councillors against a fellow councillor. All these 

complaints related to Town and Community Councils. 

 

No particular trends can be identified from the cases that have been notified. 

 

Highlights of the Public Service Ombudsman’s report for the whole of Wales are given in 

section 9. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                    

5. APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATION 

 

The Committee has considered 17 applications for dispensation from County and 

Community and Town Councillors during the year. 

 

The grounds upon which the Committee may grant a dispensation are set out in the 

Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001. 

 

The Committee continues to approach each application with a presumption in favour of 

granting a dispensation, wherever it can. The Committee may also delegate authority to the 

Monitoring Officer to grant similar dispensations in relation to that business. 

Tudalen 11



4 

 

Details of the applications that have been dealt with can be viewed as part of the minutes of 

the meetings of the Committee which are accessible on Carmarthenshire County Council’s 

website www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk. 

 

A comparison between the numbers of dispensation applications received since 2009 shows 

the following; 

 

YEAR                    TOTAL      CCC         T/CC        GRANTED       REFUSED              OTHER 

 

2009/10                9              1              8                  6*                    0                         N/A 

2010/11                6              4              2                  6*                    0                          N/A 

2011/12                7              6              1                  7*                    0                          N/A 

2012/13               23            18            5                  8                      15                         N/A 

2013/14               27               7           20               26*                    1                          N/A 

2014/15               17               1           16               17                       0                         N/A 

 

 

*includes cases where the application was partially granted 

 

As can be seen the overall number of applications received was lower than in 2013/20134 

and 2012/2013. An analysis of the applications reveals that of the 16 applications received 

from Town and Community Councils (T/CC), 10 were from one particular council.  

 

A review of all the T/CC applications received shows that they all related to instances where 

a councillor’s membership of another organisation created a personal and prejudicial 

interest. In the vast majority of cases these organisations were voluntary or community 

based and, in those instances, the committee granted dispensations to speak but not vote. 

 

It continues to be of some concern that the majority of applications for dispensation 

originate from one Council although this year the Council in question is different to the one 

that supplied 16 out of 20 applications in 2013/2014. 

 

6. CODE OF CONDUCT TRAINING 

 

Following a review of the code of conduct training provided to Town and Community 

Councillors in May and June 2014 a decision was taken to again invite each Town and 

Community Council to send representatives to two training sessions that were held on 

separate evenings during June this year.  Although technically falling outside the period of 

this report, I am pleased to confirm that the sessions were well attended, with over 100 

delegates present on behalf of 40 different Councils, making the sessions  the most 

successful  that we have provided. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 12



5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. WHISTLE –BLOWING POLICY 

 

The Committee has oversight of the authority’s whistle-blowing policy. The process is 

regulated by the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, which protects against dismissal and 

other detriment for workers who disclose information in the public interest in prescribed 

circumstances to prescribed persons. 

 

 

Details of the complaints dealt with during the period 2014/2015 are set out below; 

 

New                     Complaints carried                  Cases                            Cases 

Complaints         over from 2013/14               Concluded                   Continuing 

 

3                                      0                                          3                                    0 

 

The Committee has taken a particular interest in the steps being taken by the Council to 

raise awareness amongst staff of the policy and to train managers in its implementation and 

has closely monitored progress throughout the year. 

 

When considering the number of complaints made under the policy, it is necessary to keep 

in mind that the policy is only intended to cover concerns that fall outside the scope of other 

procedures. For example there is often some overlap with matters relating to safeguarding, 

grievance, disciplinary matters and dignity at work. The number of whistle blowing 

complaints received appears to be consistent with those received by other local authorities. 

 

 

8. COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS FROM THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

 

In June 2015 the Committee was presented with a report on complaints and compliments 

received by the Council for 2014/2015. The report provided comparative data with the 

previous year and an analysis by department. It also summarised the targets and initiatives 

pursued to date and planned for the following year.  

 

There has been a decrease overall in the number of complaints received compared with 

2013/2014 (from 676 to 573), but there are again variations between departments.  

 

The number of cases dealt with within the required time period fell from 71% to 66% 

reversing the improvement that that had been made the previous year. 

 

Tudalen 13



6 

 

The overall decrease in complaints, following on from a similar decrease in 2013/2014 is 

pleasing to note and a very encouraging trend. 

 

 

 

9. PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES - ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2013/2014 

 

In September 2015 the Committee received the 2014/2015 annual report of the Public 

Services Ombudsman for Wales. The Ombudsman investigates complaints of 

maladministration and service failure and also deals with complaints against councillors in 

respect of alleged breaches of the member’s Code of Conduct. 

              Maladministration 

 

Maladministration complaints against public bodies in general have risen again by 8%. 

However complaints against local authorities rose by 5% during this period. However once 

again, the majority of complaints were closed after initial consideration as they did not merit 

investigation. 

 

In relation to Carmarthenshire County Council, a total of 58 matters were determined by the 

Ombudsman.  Unfortunately one of these matters did result in a Public Interest report being 

issued and which was reported to Full Council on the 24
th

 February 2015. The Committee 

noted however that this report related to events that occurred in 2012. 

 

Members Code of Conduct 

 

The Ombudsman reported a 1% increase in Code of Conduct complaints overall compared to 

the previous year. Although there was a decrease in the number of Code complaints against 

Town and Community Councillors, there was a surprising 13% increase in complaints against 

County Councillors. 

 

This increase reverses the general downward trend since 2011/12. 

 

10. ANNUAL STANDARDS CONFERENCE 

 

(Detail to be inserted following attendance at the conference) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 14



7 

 

11. ADJUDICATION PANEL REPORT 2013/2014 

 

The Committee has also considered the Adjudication Panel’s Annual Report for 2013/2014.  

 

The panel deals with the most serious allegations of misconduct under the Code of Conduct 

and is a venue for appeals against decisions made by Standards Committees.  

 

Throughout Wales, 1 case was referred to the Panel by the Ombudsman during the year and 

a further 2 were carried over from the previous year.  

 

None of these cases related to Carmarthenshire. 

 

12. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS 

 

In September 2015 the Committee received a report upon the general level of Code 

compliance by Town and Community Councillors since the 1
st
 April 2012. The report 

considered in detail the number of code complaints, dispensation applications and 

declarations of interest recorded in respect of each of the 72 Councils, and also the level 

of Code training given to members. This information will be used to help formulate and 

target training and guidance in the future. 

 

 

 

 

Paul Stait 

Chairman - Standards Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 15



8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                    

Tudalen 16



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

ADOLYGU'R POLISI DATGELU CAMARFER CORFFORAETHOL  

 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried yr adroddiad 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae'r testun dan sylw yn yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y 

Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Y 
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Rhif  5

Tudalen 17



  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

th
 SEPTEMBER 2015 

 

 

REVIEW OF CORPORATE WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY 
 

The remit of the Standards Committee includes the receipt of an annual report 

upon the operation of the Council’s Whistle Blowing Policy, with a view to the 

inclusion of relevant information within the Chairman’s Annual Report to Full 

Council. 

Between the 1st April 2014 and 31st March 2015 three new whistle blowing 

complaints were received by the Council. This compares with 1 new complaint in 

2013/2014. 

These complaints were concluded as follows; 

1. One was concluded following contact with the alleged complainant 
2. One was investigated but no evidence was found to substantiate the 

complaint 
3. One was investigated and resulted in a formal disciplinary investigation 

being undertaken. 
 

No complaints were carried over from 2013/2014 and no complaints have been 

carried over into 2015/2016. 

The Council has continued to take steps to raise staff awareness of the policy and 

ensure managers are fully trained to recognise whistle blowing complaints and deal 

with them properly. 

 

Full details of these measures and a copy of the current policy, are set out in the 

attached report 

 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  

 

Tudalen 18



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:          Linda Rees Jones                                         Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 19



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:         Linda Rees Jones                                      Head of Administration and Law                                             

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

Legal file 
 

CCCN-061 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

Tudalen 20



Tudalen 21



Tudalen 22



Tudalen 23



Tudalen 24



Tudalen 25



Tudalen 26



Tudalen 27



Tudalen 28



Tudalen 29



Tudalen 30



Tudalen 31



Tudalen 32



Tudalen 33



Tudalen 34



Tudalen 35



Tudalen 36



Tudalen 37



Tudalen 38



Tudalen 39



Tudalen 40



Tudalen 41



Tudalen 42



Tudalen 43



Tudalen 44



Tudalen 45



Tudalen 46



Tudalen 47



Tudalen 48



Tudalen 49



Tudalen 50



Tudalen 51



Tudalen 52



Tudalen 53



Tudalen 54



Tudalen 55



Tudalen 56



Tudalen 57



Tudalen 58



Tudalen 59



Tudalen 60



Tudalen 61



Tudalen 62



Tudalen 63



Tudalen 64



Tudalen 65



Tudalen 66



Tudalen 67



Tudalen 68



Tudalen 69



Tudalen 70



Tudalen 71



Tudalen 72



Tudalen 73



Tudalen 74



Tudalen 75



Tudalen 76



Tudalen 77



  

Tudalen 78



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 
11EG MEDI 2015  

 

CYDYMFFURFIO Â'R CÔD YMDDYGIAD GAN GYNGHORWYR 
TREF A CHYNGHORWYR CYMUNED 

 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
Ystyried yr adroddiad 

 
Y rhesymau:  
Mae'r testun dan sylw yn yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y 

Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Y 
Cynghorydd E Dole  (Arweinydd) 

                                                                                             Y Cynghorydd M. Stephens 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Eitem Rhif  6

Tudalen 79



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11th SEPTEMBER 2015 

 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS 
 

As part of its role in monitoring Code compliance by Town and Community Councillors, the 

Committee received a report at its December 2014 meeting detailing the levels of code training 

received, declarations of interest made, dispensation requests granted and Code complaints 

registered in respect of Town and Community Councils within the County. 

However not all Town and Community Council’s responded to requests for information and 

therefore there were significant gaps in the report. 

The Committee therefore requested that a further report be presented to its September 2015 

meeting and that a formal Freedom of Information Request be sent to all Town and Community 

Councils within the County. 

That information request was submitted in April 2015.  A detailed summary of the information 

provided is attached to this report. 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  

 

Tudalen 80



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:             Linda Rees Jones                                       Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 81



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:       Linda Rees Jones                                          Head of Administration and Law                                             

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

  

Tudalen 82



Code of Conduct Compliance 

Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Abergwili 0 5 0 0 2 0 0 5 0 0 0 9

Abernant 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Ammanford Town 2 1 0 6 4 0 0 23 0 0 1 38

Betws 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 1

Bronwydd ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND No data provided (ND)

Carmarthen Town 0 0 0 63 0 0 0 32 1 0 0 30

Cenarth 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 2

Cilycwm 0 0 0 6 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Cilymaenllwyd 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

Cwmamman Town 4 0 0 14 7 0 0 14 0 0 0 21

Cynwyl Elfed 0 0 0 2 Y 1 0 7 0 0 0 10

Number of cllrs. trained  not 

known  (Y)+P74

T
udalen 83



Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Cynwyl Gaeo ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND - no data provided

Dyffryn Cennen 0 0 0 7 7 0 0 7 2 0 0 3

Eglwys Gymyn 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 Clerk also attended training

Gorslas Y 0 0 11 Y 0 0 7 Y 0 0 15

Y - Number of Cllrs. trained 

not known

Henllan Fallteg 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 4

Kidwelly Town 9 0 0 29 2 16 2 65 0 5 1 78

Laugharne Town 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 5

Members have discussed the 

Code on several occasions

Llanarthne 2 0 0 6 2 0 0 4 2 0 0 5

Llanboidy 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 1

Llanddarog Y 0 0 1 Y 0 0 1 Y 0 0 7

Y - number of cllrs. trained 

not known

Llanddeusant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

T
udalen 84



Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Llanddowror & 

Llanmiloe 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 3 0 0 1

Llandeilo Town 2 0 0 26 2 0 0 20 0 0 1 28

Llandovery Town 0 0 0 15 1 0 0 11 1 0 0 12

Training materials given to all 

members

Llandybie 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 35 2 1 0 22

Llandyfaelog 1 0 0 8 2 0 0 13 0 0 0 11

Llanedi ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 2 ND ND - no data provided

Llanegwad 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 7 0 0 0 12

Llanelli Rural 13 0 0 12 0 0 0 27 1 0 3 51

Llanelli Town Y 0 0 27 Y 0 0 33 Y 0 0 25

Y - Number of Cllrs. trained 

not known

Llanfair ar y Bryn 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1

Llanfihangel 

Aberbythych 2 0 0 8 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5

Llanfihangel ar Arth 0 0 0 2 1 0 1 5 3 0 0 1

Code complaint resulted in 

suspension of cllr.

T
udalen 85



Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Llanfihangel Rhos y 

Corn 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Llanfynydd 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 10 1 0 0 11

Llangadog ND 0 0 ND Y 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND - no data provided

Llangain 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 2

Llangathen 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Llangeler Y 0 0 10 2 0 0 4 2 0 0 6

Llangennech ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND - no data provided

Llangyndeyrn 0 0 0 19 0 0 0 36 0 0 0 26

Llangunnor 5 0 0 9 2 0 0 6 2 10 0 24

Llangynin 1 0 0 4 2 0 0 6 0 0 0 4

Llangynog 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 4

Clerk attended training and 

cascaded info. to members

T
udalen 86



Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Llanllawddog 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 2

Members received copies of 

Code Training presentation

Llanllwni ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND - no data provided

Llannon 4 0 0 8 1 0 0 8 0 0 0 3

Llanpumsaint 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0

Llansadwrn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Same Clerk as Llanwrda and 

Meidrim 

Llansawel ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND - no data provided

Llansteffan & 

Llanybri 0 0 40 1 0 0 45 0 0 1 38

Llanwinio 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 4

Llanwrda 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0

Same Clerk as Llansadwrn and 

Meidrim 

Llanybydder 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 2

Llanycrwys 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 3

T
udalen 87



Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Manordeilo & 

Salem 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 10 0 0 0 6

Meidrim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Same Clerk as Llanwrda and 

Llansadwrn

Myddfai 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Newcastle Emlyn 

Town Y 0 0 29 2 0 0 18 Y 0 0 27

Number of cllrs. trained 

unknown (Y)

Newchurch & 

Merthyr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Pembrey & Burry 

Port Town 15 0 0 26 1 2 1 7 1 0 0 4

Pencarreg 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pendine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Code discussed by members 

on several occasions

Pontyberem ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND No data provided (ND)

T
udalen 88



Council C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
3

/2
0

1
4

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4

C
o

d
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

C
o

d
e

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

D
e

cl
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5

              Comments 

Quarter Bach 0 0 0 12 2 0 0 16 1 0 0 19

St. Clears Town 1 0 0 14 3 3 0 20 0 0 0 17

St. Ishmael Y 3 0 ND Y 0 0 ND Y 0 0 ND No data provided (ND)

Talley 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0

Trelech a'r Betws 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0

Trimsaran 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Whitland Town 2 0 0 7 2 1 0 5 6 1 0 7

T
udalen 89



T
udalen 90

M
ae’r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

ADRODDIAD OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS 
CYMRU 2014/2015 

 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried yr adroddiad 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae'r testun dan sylw yn yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y 

Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Y 
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Eitem Rhif  7

Tudalen 91



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

th
 SEPTEMBER 2015 

 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES REPORT 2014/2015 
The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has published his annual report for 2014/2015 

The Ombudsman considers complaints of maladministration and service failure against public bodies 

and allegations against members of local authorities that they have broken the Members Code of 

Conduct. 

The key points are; 

1. The overall number of maladministration complaints against public authorities rose by 7% 

compared to an 8% increase the previous year. 

2. Local authorities continue to account for the largest proportion of complaints, the number of 

complaints recorded against them rising by 5% compared to a 9.5% increase the previous year. 

3. Of the 2,015 maladministration complaints concluded, only 428 were taken forward and only 

349 of these (82%) resulted in the complaint being upheld or partially upheld. 

4. A total of 12 Public Interest Reports were issued, one of which related to Carmarthenshire 

County Council (see page 49 of the Annual Report). This matter related to events that took 

place in 2012 and the Ombudsman’s report was presented to Full Council on the 24
th

 February 

2015. 

5. A total of 58 Maladministration complaints relating the Carmarthenshire County Council were 

determined (the 4
th

 highest) 

6. Overall there has been a 1% increase in Code of Conduct complaints compared to a 22% 

decrease in 2013/2014.   

7. Code complaints against County Councillors have risen 13% whilst complaints against 

Community Councillors fell by 8% 

8. Of the 239 Code complaints concluded during the year, only 34 cases were taken to 

investigation. Of these in 17 cases there was no evidence of breach, in 8 cases no action was 

needed, 1 case was referred to the Adjudication Panel for Wales and 8 referred to local 

Standards Committees. 

9. A total of 15 Code complaints relating to County Councillors and Town and Community 

Councillors from Carmarthenshire were concluded (the 2
nd

 highest) 

 

The committee is requested to consider the attached report 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  

 

Tudalen 92



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:          Linda Rees Jones                                   Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 93



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:       Linda Rees Jones                                         Head of Administration and Law                                             

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

Legal file 
 

CCCN-061 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 
  

Tudalen 94



MAKING COMPLAINTS SERVE WALES
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15Tudalen 95



Tudalen 96



1

The Annual Report 2014/15
of

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales

under paragraph 14 of Schedule 1

of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005

Tudalen 97



2
Tudalen 98



3

Annual Report 2014/15

1 Introduction by the Ombudsman 5

2 My Role as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 8

3  The Complaints Service 10 

- Public Body complaints 13 

- Code of Conduct complaints 16

4 Improving Public Service Delivery 20

5 Governance and Accountability 22

6 Other Activities 24

7 Equality Matters 30

Annex A Public Body Complaints: Public Interest Reports Case Summaries 39

Annex B Public Body Complaints: Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Public Body 51

Annex C Code of Conduct Complaints: Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Local Authority  63

Tudalen 99



4
Tudalen 100



5

I am delighted to introduce this report for the year 2014/15. It is the ninth Annual Report of the Public 

Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) since the inception of the office in April 2006. The year 

2014/15 was of course a year of transition. I took up my appointment as Ombudsman in August 2014, 

succeeding Professor Margaret Griffiths who was the Acting Ombudsman to July 2014, having been 

in that role from December 2013. I wish to pay tribute to Professor Griffiths for so ably taking on the 

interim role as Ombudsman as well as for her assistance and support to me during the transition phase. 

I valued this highly.

Innovation 

On taking up my role, one of the first things that struck me was the stark reality that the volume of 

increases in enquiries and complaints made to this office reported in previous Annual Report was 

continuing into 2014/15. Significant was the fact that during July 2014, the month before I took up my 

post, the office received both the highest number of enquiries and the highest number of complaints 

since the office came into existence in April 2006. At the end of the year the picture was that, 

compared with 2013/14 there had been a 7% increase in all contacts (that is, enquiries, public body 

complaints, and complaints about the conduct of members of local authorities). 

Taking a look back over the past five years, complaints about NHS bodies (which includes health 

boards, GPs, Dentists) have risen by 126%. Whilst not painting such a dramatic picture, it should 

not go unremarked that complaints about county/county borough councils are also on the rise. 

Again comparing the position to five years ago, there has been a 10% increase. Greater detail on the 

complaints made to my office during 2014/15 can be found at section 3 of this report.

This upward trend in contacts to my office has been a matter of concern to me. Whilst admirable work 

has been undertaken in recent years to streamline the office’s complaints handling processes, I have 

been eager that we should seek to identify areas for further efficiency gains. I therefore instigated an 

innovation project, which took place over the space of some three months. This engaged all staff. The 

work resulted in over 30 agreed action points. The majority of these related to internal changes, with 

a key focus being on reinforcing and gathering greater momentum in relation to becoming a ‘paperless 

office’. We have taken the view that this approach will enable us to gain further efficiencies in relation 

1. Introduction by the Ombudsman

Margaret Griffiths
Acting Ombudsman
(to July 2014)

Nick Bennett 
Ombudsman
(from August 2014)

Tudalen 101



6

to the practicalities of dealing with casework documents. However, there will also be implications 

for bodies within jurisdiction too and I was able to announce in February the fact that we would be 

changing our approach so that we would request records in electronic format only, but that associated 

with this I would be reducing the timescales allowed for bodies in jurisdiction to provide me with 

the records requested. It is also intended to increase use of Skype/videoconferencing to conduct 

interviews across Wales. 

Turning the Curve

In addition to the changes emanating from the innovation work, I am firmly of the view that we 

should engage more directly with county/county borough councils and health boards with the aim 

of promoting improvements in their approaches to complaint handling. These two sectors account 

for 83% of the complaints that I receive. Essentially the service I provide is reactive. That is, I have 

to respond to the enquiries and complaints that arrive at my office. However, I am keen that more 

people’s grievances are properly addressed and resolved at local level, providing earlier resolution for 

complainants and in turn reducing the level of complaints arriving at my door. The current upward 

trajectory of complaints to my office cannot be sustained indefinitely without additional resource and I 

am anxious that we should act proactively to turn the curve.

Furthermore, I am of the view that we also need to do more in relation to having a greater wider 

impact in relation to improving public service delivery and contributing to public policy in Wales, 

beyond seeking improvement in the place where the problem occurred. I believe that beyond the 

‘common good’ resulting from this, it will also ultimately lead to fewer complaints coming to the office. 

As part of this programme, I will be placing greater emphasis on my office’s own data gathering in 

relation to the complaints we receive in the office, so that we can derive more detailed statistical data 

and hence intelligence in relation to the trends and patterns of these.

I have also given considerable thought as to how my staffing resource should be structured in order 

to enable me to achieve those things that I see as my priorities. Having arrived at my conclusions, I 

presented my proposals to my staff during March 2015. I will be seeking to implement those changes in 

the early part of 2015/16.

Assembly Inquiry into the Powers of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Another aspect that I gave early attention to upon taking up my role as Ombudsman was to consider 

whether the PSOW Act required review, particularly since it is now ten years old. I took the advantage 

as part of my ‘induction’ as Ombudsman to ascertain what best practice looked like amongst colleague 

ombudsmen, particularly within the UK but also further afield. Having considered what I found, I arrived 

at the view that whilst the PSOW Act remained well regarded within the ombudsman community, 

there was a danger that Wales would be left behind as regards developments taking place in other 

nations and countries. Furthermore, I believe it is important to future proof the Act to enable me, and 

my successors, to be able to respond to the challenges we know Wales will face with the future ageing 

society.

Tudalen 102



7

Building on the work of the previous Ombudsman, Peter Tyndall, I therefore put forward a number of 

proposals to the National Assembly for Wales in relation to areas where I believed that the current 

Act could be extended and strengthened. I was exceptionally pleased that the Assembly’s Finance 

Committee agreed to undertake an inquiry into the possibility of extending the powers of the Public 

Services Ombudsman for Wales. I was delighted that so many stakeholder organisations took the 

time and trouble to provide evidence. This ranged from bodies in jurisdiction and their representative 

organisations, the Commissioners in Wales, as well as colleague Ombudsmen in other parts of the 

United Kingdom and academic experts in the field. At the time of writing, we await the Finance 

Committee’s decision as to whether to recommend the introduction of a Bill in relation to the  

PSOW’s powers. 

Thanks

Finally, I wish to thank the staff of my office. Upheaval is never easy, but their professionalism and 

dedication is of the highest order. 

Nick Bennett 

Ombudsman

Tudalen 103



8

As Ombudsman, I have two specific roles. The first is to consider complaints about public service 

providers in Wales; the second role is to consider complaints that members of local authorities have 

broken the Code of Conduct. I am independent of all government bodies and the service that I provide 

is free of charge.

Complaints about public service providers

Under the PSOW Act 2005, I consider complaints about bodies which, generally, are those that provide 

public services where responsibility for their provision has been devolved to Wales. The types of 

bodies I can look into include:

• local government (both county and community councils);  

• the National Health Service (including GPs and dentists);  

• registered social landlords (housing associations);  

• and the Welsh Government, together with its sponsored bodies. 

Since 1 November 2014, I am also able to consider complaints about privately arranged or funded social 

care and palliative care services.

When considering complaints, I look to see whether people have been treated unfairly or 

inconsiderately, or have received a bad service through some fault on the part of the service provider. 

Attention will also be given to whether the service provider has acted in accordance with the law and 

its own policies. If a complaint is upheld I will recommend appropriate redress. The main approach 

taken when recommending redress is, where possible, to put the complainant (or the person who has 

suffered the injustice) back to the position they would have been in if the problem had not occurred. 

Furthermore, if from the investigation I see evidence of a systemic weakness, then recommendations 

will be made with the aim of reducing the likelihood of others being similarly affected in future.

Code of Conduct Complaints

Under the provisions of Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 and also relevant Orders made 

by the National Assembly for Wales under that Act, I consider complaints that members of local 

authorities have breached their authority’s Code of Conduct. I can consider complaints about the 

behaviour of members of:

• county and county borough councils 

• community councils 

• fire authorities 

• national park authorities and  

• police and crime panels.

All these authorities have a code of conduct which sets out in detail how members must follow 

recognised principles of behaviour in public life. 

2. My Role as the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Tudalen 104



9

If a county councillor wishes to make a complaint about another county councillor within their own 

authority, then I expect them to first of all make their complaint to that authority’s Monitoring Officer, 

as it may be possible to resolve the matter locally without my involvement.

Vision, Values and Strategic Aims

Values

FairnessAccessibility

Learning
Being a good 

employer

Effectiveness

Strategic Aim 2:

To deliver a high quality complaints handling 

service, which considers and determines 

complaints thoroughly but  

proportionately, and  

conveys decisions  

clearly.

Strategic Aim 1:

To offer a service where excellent customer 

care is at the forefront of all we do, where 

we work to raise awareness of  

our service and do our best  

to make it accessible  

to all and easy  

to use.

Strategic Aim 4:

To continue to analyse  

and improve the efficiency  

and effectiveness of our governance,  

business processes and support functions, 

to further demonstrate transparency and 

ensure the best use of the public money 

entrusted to us.

Vision

To put things right for users 

of public services and to 

drive improvement in those 

services and in standards in 

public life using the learning 

from the complaints  

we consider.

Strategic Aim 3:

To use the knowledge gained from 

our investigations to contribute to 

improved public service delivery and 

to inform public policy.

Tudalen 105



10

125 
County 

Councillors 
Complaints
13% increase

106
Community 
Councillors 
Complaints
 8% decrease

938 
County 
Council 

Complaints
5% increase

769 
NHS body 
Complaints
1% increase

Complaints about a Public Body

2,065 Complaints

7% increase on 2013/14

Code of Conduct
231 Complaints

1% increase on 2013/14

3. The Complaints Service

2,296
Total Complaints

Enquiries
3,470

7% increase on 2013/14 6% increase on 2013/14

These account 

for 83% of all
Public Body 
complaints

These account 

for 100% of all
Code of Conduct

complaints

Tudalen 106



11

Total Code of Conduct 

cases closed: 239

Total cases closed: 2,015

Public Body complaints outcomes 2014/15

Code of Conduct complaints outcomes 2014/15

428
cases

349
complaints upheld

/partly upheld

82%
of these were 
public interest

!
12

17 No evidence of a breach  
of the Code of Conduct

1
Referred to the 
Adjudication Panel 
for Wales

8 No action 
needed

8
Referred to  
a standards 
committee

taken forward

34
cases
taken to investigation

Tudalen 107



12

Caseload overview

Annual Reports of previous years have drawn attention to the volume of increases in enquiries and 

complaints to this office. The year 2014/15 saw that trend continue. There was a 7% increase in all 

contacts (that is, enquiries, public body complaints, and complaints about the conduct of members of 

local authorities) and casting an eye over the past five years, there has been a 104% increase.

Total Enquiries and Complaints received by year 

Enquiries

The office dealt with 3,470 enquiries during 2014/15, compared with 3,234 the previous year an increase 

of 7%.

Enquiries are contacts made by potential complainants asking about the service provided, which do 

not, in the end, result in a formal complaint being made to me. At this point of first contact, we will act 

in various ways, such as:

•  advise people how to make a complaint to me where people have not already complained to the 

relevant public body, we will advise them appropriately, sending  their complaint directly to that body 

on their behalf if that is their wish

•  where the matter is outside my jurisdiction, direct the enquirer to the appropriate organisation able 

to help them. 

•  where appropriate, the Complaints Advice Team also seeks to resolve a problem at enquiry stage 

without taking the matter forward to the stage of a formal complaint.

We are pleased that despite the continued increase in enquiries to this office we have been able to 

provide a prompt service at the frontline. We set ourselves the target of answering our main line 

reception calls within 30 seconds in 95% of cases. There were 6,307 main line calls to the office during 

2014/15 and 99% of these were answered within this timescale, which clearly is better than the target 

we set ourselves.

0

2010/11 2011/12

277

1,425

1,127

412

1,605

1,866

2012/13 2013/14

1,790

291

2,906

1,932

226

3,234

5,000

6,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

2014/15

2,065

231

3,470

Enquiries

Public Body Complaints

Code of Conduct Complaints

Tudalen 108



13

Public Body Complaints

The number of complaints received about public bodies continues to increase. We received 2,065 such 

complaints in 2015/16 compared with 1,932 in 2013/14 (a 7% increase).

Sectoral breakdown of complaints 

County councils have always generated the most complaints to this office. This is not surprising given 

the wide range of services they provide. For a number of years complaints received about county 

councils had held at a fairly constant level, the past two years have seen an increase. In particular,  

there was a notable 5% increase in complaints over the position for 2013/14. 

Health body complaints continued the upward trend of recent years. There was a 1% increase over the 

past year (769 complaints compared with 759 in 2013/14). 

The chart below shows the distribution of the complaints received by sector. 

Complaints by public body sector

Complaints about public bodies by subject

As can be seen from the chart below, health complaints account for 34% of the caseload compared 

with 36% in 2013/14. This small decrease in ratio terms is due to an increase in other types of 

complaints received rather than a fall in the number of health complaints received (as confirmed by 

the details above). As has been the case in recent years, housing (15%) and planning (12%) are the service 

areas which account for the greatest number of complaints received after health complaints.

2013/142014/15

 County/County 

Borough

Councils 

NHS

Bodies

Social

Housing

Welsh  

Government & 

its Sponsored 

Bodies

Community 

Councils

National Parks

Authorities

National

Assembly for

Wales

Commission

Fire

Authorities

Independent

Care

Providers

938
891

759769

75
23 159

39
86

165
213

1 02 308

800

900

1,000

0

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

Tudalen 109



14

Complaints by subject 2014/15

[Note: Complaints are categorised by the main subject area of a complaint. However, complaints can also 

comprise other areas of dissatisfaction - for example, a ‘Health’ complaint may also contain a grievance about 

‘Complaint Handling’.]

Outcomes of complaints considered

We closed 2,015 complaints during 2014/15, compared with 1,926 during 2013/14 (an increase of 5%). A 

summary of the outcomes is set out in the table below and detailed breakdowns of the outcomes by 

public service provider can be found at Annex B. 

I am extremely pleased that we have managed to achieve this level of closure during the year and that 

we are continuing to keep apace with the increased number of complaints to the office. Whilst the 

number of cases on hand at the end of 2014/15 stood at 446, compared with 393 at the end of 2013/14, 

I remain satisfied that this is a reasonable caseload to have open at any one time and do not consider 

this to be a backlog.

Benefits and Taxation

Community Facilities, Recreation and Leisure

Complaint Handling

Education

Environment and Environmental Health

Health

Housing

Planning and Building Control

Roads and Transport

Social Services

Independent Care

Various other

8%
4%

5%

4%

4%

15%

12%

4%

9%

1%

34%

0%

Complaint about a Public Body 2014/15 2013/14

Closed after initial consideration* 1,564 1,402

Complaint withdrawn 23 47

Complaint settled voluntarily (includes “quick fix” of 127 cases) 164 214

Investigation discontinued 8 18

Investigation: complaint not upheld 71 63

Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part 173 173

Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part – public interest report 12 9

Total Outcomes – Complaints 2,015 1,926

Tudalen 110



15

[* Cases closed after initial consideration include complaints that relate to one of the following 

circumstances:

• outside of my jurisdiction 

•  premature (that is, the complainant had not first complained to the public service provider, giving 

them an opportunity to put matters right) 

• did not provide any evidence of maladministration or service failure 

• did not provide any evidence of hardship or injustice suffered by the complainant

•  showed that little further would be achieved by pursuing the matter (for example, a public body may 

have already acknowledged providing a poor service and apologised).]

Decision times

Time taken to tell the complainant if I will take up their complaint

In relation to complaints about public bodies, we informed 93% of complainants within 4 weeks of 

whether I would take up their complaint (from the date that sufficient information is received). This is 

better than the 90% target we set ourselves. Further information on these timescales is set out in the 

chart below.

2013/142014/15

Within 2

Week

15%
13%

Within 3

Week

12%
9%

Within 4

Week

11% 10%

Within 5

Week

4% 3%

Within 6

Week

1% 2%

Over 6 

Week

2% 2%

Within 1

Week

55%

61%

40%

50%

60%

70%

0

30%

20%

10%

Tudalen 111



16

Investigation Times 

We completed 99% of investigations within 12 months, against the 100% target we set ourselves. There 

were two cases that went over 12 months. Both of these involved strong challenges from parties in the 

investigation. This led to further clinical advice being sought in the first case, and an internal review of 

the evidence gathered in the second before the investigation could be concluded. The chart below 

gives further details on the timescales taken to conclude investigations concerning public bodies.

Code of Conduct Complaints

Complaints received 

Overall the number of number of complaints received was similar (231 in 2014/15 compared with 228 

in 2013/14). However, the past year saw an increase in complaints about members of county or county 

borough councils, whilst the number of complaints concerning members of community councils fell. 

This can be seen in the table below.

2014/15 2013/14

Community Council 106 115

County/County Borough Council 125 111

Fire Authority 0 2

National Park Authority 0 0

Police & Crime Panels 0 0

Total 231 228

2013/142014/15

03 to 06 months

17% 17%

06 to 09 months

34%

28%

09 to 12 months

46% 45%

12 to 18 months

1% 0%

< 3 months

3%

9%

40%

35%

50%

45%

0

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

Tudalen 112



17

Nature of Code of Conduct complaints

As in previous years, the majority of complaints received during 2014/15 related to matters of ‘equality 

and respect’. In 2014/15 this accounted for 35% of the code of conduct complaints received compared 

with 36% in 2014/15. The next largest areas of complaint related to disclosure and registration of 

interests (22%), and integrity (16%).

[Note: Although showing as ‘0%’ there was 1 complaint made in relation to ‘Selflessness and stewardship’]

Code of Conduct complaint outcomes

Of the 239 Code of Conduct complaints closed in 2014/15, the majority (178) were closed under the 

category ‘Closed after initial consideration’. This includes decisions such as:

• there was no ‘prima facie’ evidence of a breach of the Code

•  the alleged breach was insufficiently serious to warrant an investigation (and unlikely to attract a 

sanction)

•  the incident complained about happened before the member was elected (before they were bound 

by the Code).

A greater number of investigation reports were referred either to a local authority’s standards 

committee or to the Adjudication Panel of Wales in 2014/15 (9 complaints) compared with 2013/14 (6 

complaints). In these circumstances it is for these bodies to consider the evidence found, together with 

any defence put forward by the member concerned. It is then for them to determine whether a breach 

has occurred and, if so, what penalty, if any, should be imposed.

Accountability and openness

Disclosure and registration of interests 

Duty to uphold the law

Integrity

Objectivity and propriety

Promotion of equality and respect

Selfessness and stewardship

0%

22%

8%

35%

16%

10%

9%

Tudalen 113



18

A summary breakdown of the outcomes is below:

County councillors are now expected to make their complaints about other councillors within their 

authority to their monitoring officer. However, I continue to receive ‘low level’ complaints of this type 

at my office. These, for example, could be allegations of failures to show respect and consideration of 

others under paragraph 4(b) of the code. We have reviewed our practice in dealing with the complaints 

of this type that come to my office, and will be taking a firmer position in the future in referring these 

‘low level’ complaints back to monitoring officers to be dealt with locally. 

A detailed breakdown of the outcome of Code of Conduct complaints investigated, by authority, 

during 2014/15 is set out at Annex C.

Decision times 

Time taken to tell the complainant if I will take up their complaint

In respect of Code of Conduct complaints, 79% of complainants were informed within 4 weeks of 

whether I would take up their complaint (from the date that sufficient information is received). This is 

lower than the 90% target we set ourselves.

However, different from the position in relation to public body complaints, although not obliged to, 

members may (and often do) comment on the complaint against them when they have been informed 

of the complaint. Whilst therefore it can take longer to decide whether to commence an investigation, 

I consider that it is fairer for us to take into consideration what a member has to say before taking a 

decision. This is because the commencement of a formal investigation against a member is a stressful 

and serious matter for the member being complained about. Nevertheless, I will work during the year 

to ensure that we advise both the complainant and the accused member promptly as to whether we 

will take the matter into investigation or not.

Further details on these decision timescales are shown overleaf. 

2014/15 2013/14

Closed after initial consideration 178 176

Complaint withdrawn 7 12

Investigation discontinued 20 8

Investigation completed: No evidence of breach 17 10

Investigation completed: No action necessary 8 17

Investigation completed: Refer to Standards Committee 8 5

Investigation completed: Refer to Adjudication Panel 1 1

Total Outcomes – Code of Conduct complaints 239 229

Tudalen 114



19

Investigation Times

The position for completing code of conduct investigations is a positive one. I am pleased that over 

the past year we succeeded in meeting our 100% target for completing investigations within 12 months, 

as can be seen in the chart below.

2013/142014/15

Within 2

Week

12%

21%

Within 3

Week

21%

12%

Within 4

Week

15%

18%

Within 5

Week

8% 8%

Within 6

Week

5%
6%

Over 6 

Week

8%

5%

Within 1

Week

31%
30%

20%

25%

30%

35%

0

15%

10%

5%

2013/142014/15

03 to 06 months

24%

29%

06 to 09 months

30%

44%

< 3 months

22%

12%

40%

35%

50%

45%

0

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

09 to 12 months

24%

15%

Tudalen 115



20

4. Improving Public Service Delivery 

I place great importance on using the knowledge and learning gained from the casework of my office to 

improve public service delivery in Wales and to inform public policy. There are a number of established 

key vehicles in place in this regard:

•  Public interest reports – 12 issued in 2014/15: Summaries of these complaints together with  

findings and outcomes are set out at Appendix A, with the full reports available on my website at  

www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk.

• The Ombudsman’s Casebook, which is published quarterly: Key issues addressed during 2014/15 were - 

 -  failures by local authorities to recognise their homelessness duties and associated handling of  

housing application

 -  insufficiently robust investigations by public service providers, inconsistent with the mantra of 

‘investigate once; investigate well’, together with missed opportunities by service providers to 

resolve matters themselves at an early stage.

•  The Code of Conduct Casebook: Last year it was reported that a Code of Conduct Casebook had 

been introduced on a biannual basis at the request of local authority monitoring officers. This has 

been well received, but a request was made during the year for this be produced on a quarterly rather 

than six monthly basis. Quarterly editions will therefore appear in 2015/16, however, due to the low 

number of cases available within quarterly editions, a commentary/lessons learnt section will be 

produced within an end of year ‘annual compendium’ only.

•  Annual letters – county councils and health boards: Published on my website, these provide details 

in respect of the individual bodies and comparisons against other organisations in the same sector 

as well as details on an All Wales basis. They are also used as the basis of discussions with the Chairs 

and Chief Executives of individual local health boards. Local authorities are also invited to seek a 

meeting to discuss their particular Annual Letter if they so wish.

In addition to the above, a revised edition of the Guidance on the Code of Conduct for local 

authorities members, originally published in 2010, was issued at the end of March 2015. A key change 

introduced is the new ‘public interest test’ that I will now apply when considering whether or not to 

investigate a complaint. I have introduced this test as a result of the high number of trivial complaints 

that I receive at my office, and to make clear the criteria that I will apply when considering whether a 

complaint should be taken into investigation or not. This test will ensure that I continue to investigate 

serious complaints to maintain public confidence in standards of public life. Other changes introduced 

into the document include further guidance on the use of social media and political expression, as  

well as a flowchart designed to provide members with assistance on the issue of interests. I hope  

these changes will also see a reduction in the number of code of conduct complaints to my office.  

The revised version of the Guidance can be found on my website: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Tudalen 116



21

I have also given consideration to how I might be able to work with other relevant organisations. 

Examples of activities during 2014/15 have been:

• Information Commissioner 

I have been very pleased to be able to work with the Information Commissioner in reviewing the 

PSOW’s Principles of Good Administration. At the time of writing the proposed revised document is 

out to consultation, but the intention is to introduce two new principles in relation to Good Records 

Management and to issue the revised version as a joint publication with the ICO.

• Commissioners in Wales

I have continued to meet regularly with the Commissioners in Wales to discuss matters of mutual 

interest and concern. We continue to explore ways in which we can reinforce each other’s work for the 

benefit of public services in Wales. For example, I intend in the forthcoming year to give consideration 

to the issue of the apparent lack of social care complaints that I receive, in view of the outcome of 

the Older People’s Commissioner’s “A Place to Call Home?: Care Home Review Report”. In addition, 

I was delighted to have had the opportunity to speak at an event hosted by the Welsh Language 

Commissioner during the National Eisteddfod for Wales in 2014, in what was my first week in the post 

as Ombudsman. I was also grateful to the Commissioners for their support for the proposals for new 

legislation and was encouraged by the recognition that our respective offices could work well together 

in relation to any proposed own initiative investigations, should the Ombudsman be granted this power 

by the Assembly.

• Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Care and Social Services for Inspectorate  

 Wales (CSSIW)

Whilst the CSSIW is a body within my jurisdiction, I considered that it would be appropriate to put in 

place a MoU with the CSSIW in view of its role as a regulator. The MoU was signed on 14 December 

2014 and was particularly timely in view of the recent extension to my jurisdiction on 1 November 2014 

to be able to consider complaints about privately arranged or funded social care and palliative care 

services. 

In the forthcoming year, I will be looking to explore how the work of my office can have a greater 

impact in the future in relation to influencing improvements in public service delivery and for informing 

public policy and I look forward to being able to report next year on developments in this area.

Tudalen 117



22

5. Governance and Accountability

The Ombudsman

The Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 establishes the office of the Ombudsman as a 

‘corporation sole’. The Ombudsman is accountable to the National Assembly for Wales, both through 

the mechanism of the annual report, and as Accounting Officer for the public funds with which the 

National Assembly entrusts the Ombudsman to undertake their functions.

During 2014/15, I appeared before three of the Assembly’s Committees, namely the Public Accounts 

Committee (to discuss the Annual Accounts for 2013/14); the Communities, Equality and Local 

Government Committee (to discuss the Annual Report for 2013/14); and the Finance Committee (to 

discuss my budget estimate submission for 2014/15). I welcomed the opportunity on each occasion to 

discuss how the public money I received was and would be spent, and the service provided by my office.

Advisory Panel and Audit & Risk Assurance Committee

Whilst bearing in mind the constitutional position of a corporation sole, I have an Advisory Panel which 

provides both challenge and support to me as Ombudsman. There is also an Audit & Risk Assurance 

Committee, a sub-committee of the Panel, which provides particular support to me in relation to my 

responsibilities as Accounting Officer. The work of both these fora over the past year will be addressed 

in greater detail as part of the Governance Statement within my Annual Accounts for 2014/15, which I 

expect to be published in August 2015. However, I take the opportunity here to state that, following an 

open recruitment exercise, I was delighted that Mrs Sharon Warnes, previously Assistant Director/Senior 

Policy & Performance Manager at Gwynedd Council, was appointed to the Advisory Panel (following Mr Ceri 

Stradling’s resignation at the end of 2013/14). Mrs Warnes also sits on the Audit & Risk Assurance Committee.

Management Team

Whilst as Ombudsman I am solely accountable for the decisions and operation of my office, the 

Management Team is a formal group that provides me with advice and support. It takes specific 

responsibility for advising on the development of the three year Strategic Plan and the annual Business 

Plan; annual budgetary requirements; ensuring the best use of the public money received; and an 

appropriate performance monitoring framework.

It is also responsible for the delivery and monitoring of strategic aims; monthly performance monitoring 

against objectives; ensuring that risks are actively identified and addressed; agreeing corporate policies 

(e.g. complaint handling procedures, human resources policies) and monitoring their effectiveness; and 

developing the office’s outreach strategy and monitoring its implementation.

Three Year Strategic Plan and Business Plan

The past year was the final year in relation to implementation of the Strategic Plan developed for 

2012/13 to 2014/15 and many of the activities and achievements have been reflected in this Annual 

Report. The existing vision, values, purposes and strategic aims for the PSOW service can be found at 

page 9. 

Tudalen 118



23

I decided during the course of the year to produce a one year Strategic Plan for 2015/16, which has 

been deliberately rolled on from the previous Three Year Strategic Plan as I believe that the ‘Vision’ 

remains as relevant and appropriate as ever, not least given the current public policy context. Another 

key consideration for rolling on the previous three year Strategic Plan for a further year was that it was 

hoped that the National Assembly for Wales would agree to modernising the PSOW Act. It seemed 

more appropriate for the office to develop a new Three Year Strategic Plan at a time when the position 

on these potential changes to the Ombudsman’s legislation is known.

European Directive on Alternative Dispute Resolution

Following the issuing of the European Directive on Alternative Dispute Resolution, the UK Government 

laid before Parliament on 17 March 2015 the Alternative Dispute Resolution for Consumer Disputes 

(Competent Authorities and Information) Regulations 2015. These new arrangements in relation to 

consumer and trader disputes have an impact on PSOW jurisdiction in relation complaints about 

independent care providers. 

Whilst the National Assembly for Wales has legislated that people who fund their own care have 

a right to complain to the Ombudsman, the EU Directive/UK Regulations will mean that unless the 

PSOW applies (at a cost) to be an ‘ADR Entity’ the UK Government will also nominate an alternative 

ADR entity to be available to consider such grievances. That said, neither the EU’s ADR Directive 

nor the UK Government’s Regulations make ADR compulsory for businesses in areas where it is not 

currently, so the majority of businesses will retain a choice as to whether to use an alternative ADR 

entity or not. Further they would no doubt be the subject of a charge to sign up to an alternative ADR 

provider. This ultimately means that the only statutory right that service users will have, in relation to 

the independent consideration of their complaint to an independent care provider, will be through the 

Ombudsman. 

There are a number of issues requiring consideration in this matter, including questions of subsidiarity, 

and the position of the Ombudsman in relation to accountability to the National Assembly for Wales 

and independence as regards reporting to the UK Government’s nominated Competent Authority – the 

Trading Standards Institute, in what in essence is a ‘traders’ membership organisation’. There is also the 

issue that independent social care providers are organisations which are regulated by the CSSIW. At the 

time of writing, I am still considering whether or not it is appropriate for the PSOW to apply to be an 

ADR entity.

Tudalen 119



24

Relationship with the National Assembly for Wales

I am pleased with the development of the relationship 

between my office and the National Assembly over the past 

year. I was pleased to meet with Dame Rosemary Butler, the 

Presiding Officer, in the early days after having taken up my 

appointment and to be able to discuss my initial priorities as 

Ombudsman. I was also delighted to be able to welcome the 

Presiding Officer to my office in January 2015, when Dame 

Rosemary took the time to meet individual members of my 

staff. This was much appreciated.

I refer elsewhere in this report to my engagement with the 

Assembly in relation to the inquiry into the powers of the 

Ombudsman. I have been very grateful to Mrs Jocelyn Davies, AM, the Finance Committee Chair and 

all members of the Finance Committee for agreeing to undertake this inquiry and for being prepared 

to consider recommending a Committee led Bill in this regard. I know that my officers too have 

appreciated the co-operation they have received from Assembly staff in this regard.

I was also pleased to be able to offer as part of the professional development scheme for Assembly 

Members and their staff, a training session whereby we were able to discuss the work of my office 

tailored in a way in order to assist them to be able to better advise their constituents about what, as 

Ombudsman, I can and cannot do.

Outreach

The office’s stakeholders are many, and include

- members of the public (i.e. the users of public services)

- bodies within jurisdiction

- members of the National Assembly for Wales

- voluntary organisations (in particular those who offer advocacy services)

- the media.

We have continued in our endeavours to help people know where and how to put a complaint about a 

public service through the Complaints Wales signposting service, which is delivered by the Complaints 

Advice Team. This independent and impartial web and telephone service signposts people’s complaint 

to the organisation that provides the service they wish to complain about, or to the appropriate 

independent complaint handler or ombudsman. Promotion of the service continued during 2014/15 via 

a radio advertisement campaign.

6. Other Activities

Welcoming the Presiding Officer to our office

Tudalen 120



25

In relation to bodies in jurisdiction, in addition to the meetings held with individual bodies, during 

January 2015 I held regional seminars aimed at both chief executives and complaint handling 

practitioners, where the issue of good practice in relation to complaint handling and records keeping 

was addressed. I was grateful to a number of complaint handling practitioners from bodies in 

jurisdiction for speaking about their experiences at these sessions. I was particularly pleased that over 

200 people attended from all sectors within my jurisdiction. 

We continued to engage with voluntary organisations. For example, during the past year we spoke at, 

or held meetings with Oxfam Cymru, Diverse Cymru, All Wales Credit Union Managers Group, Shelter 

Cymru, Age Cymru, Welsh Council for Voluntary Action and the Motor Neurone Disease Association. 

We also held meetings with, or spoke at events held by, professional and representative bodies of 

those delivering public services (for example, law and nursing professions; One Voice Wales). 

A positive relationship with the media continued. Media attention to the work of the office again was 

largely as a result of the public interest reports issued. However, I was also pleased to be able to meet 

with BBC news and current affairs staff during the year. It was particularly useful to be able to discuss 

the limits of what I am able to comment upon as Ombudsman and what is and is not possible to put 

into the public domain as a result of the confidential work of my investigations.

Delegates in attendance at the seminar held in Newport.

Tudalen 121



26

% of respondents answering 
either ‘strongly agree’ or ‘agree’

It was easy to find out how to contact the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales 

84%

The service I have received has been helpful and sensitive 75%

Staff were able to understand my complaint / The person that dealt 
with my query knew enough to be able to answer my questions 

73%

I was given a clear explanation of what would happen to my 
query/complaint

80%

The service has provided what I expected of it 64%

Complainant satisfaction research

We have continued with our complainant satisfaction survey practice in relation to customer 

satisfaction for our first contact service. The outcome for 2014/15 was as follows:

The past year has again overall seen a very good level of satisfaction. Also similar to previous years,  

responses to the final question have been affected by a decision by the Ombudsman not to investigate  

their complaint, for example, because the person concerned has not yet complained to the organisation  

concerned or that the matter is outside of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. Sometimes, people decline to 

answer this question, saying that they are going to wait for the Ombudsman’s decision on their complaint.

In addition, the data gathered from the questionnaires returned to us, which contain both satisfaction and 

equality information, is now input into our complaints handling system and associated with the relevant 

complaint case record. This has enables us to analyse outcomes of complaints against various protected 

characteristic groups. This work is still in its infancy, but I am pleased that to date nothing has emerged 

from this analysis to suggest that there should be any reason for concern in relation to anything in our 

processes or approach to investigations which disadvantage any particular groups of people. (Note: 

access to the customer satisfaction and equality data on our system is limited to a couple of members  

of staff and no complaint handler has access to these details.) 

The PSOW and the Ombudsman World 

The 9th Regional Seminar of the European Network of Ombudsmen

The PSOW, jointly with the European Ombudsman, hosted a very successful three-day seminar in June. 

The event was very well attended by regional ombudsmen from across Europe. The theme was ‘Voices 

for the Voiceless’ and seminar sessions were relevant to all participants and provided much food for 

thought among the delegates. It was interesting to note that we all faced similar challenges. It was also 

an opportunity to showcase Wales to those present. On behalf of Margaret Griffiths as well as myself, I 

would like to thank Dame Rosemary Butler, the Presiding Officer, for hosting the welcome reception at 

the Senedd.

Tudalen 122



27

International Ombudsman Institute/Northern Ireland Ombudsman

In July 2014 the Northern Ireland Ombudsman and Northern Ireland Human Rights Commission (NIHRC) 

produced a Human Rights Manual which is a toolkit for ombudsman staff to identify human rights 

issues in the assessment and investigation of complaints of maladministration. This was launched by 

them at the IOI World Conference in Tallin. The Northern Ireland Ombudsman and the NIHRC have 

committed to deliver a training package to enable other ombudsman schemes to develop a human 

rights based approach to investigations of maladministration. Whilst my office has already adopted 

such an approach to a certain degree, I am pleased that arrangements have been made for the training 

on the toolkit to be delivered to my staff in the early part of 2015/16. 

The Ombudsman Association

In many ways the role of the Ombudsman is unique. Although no one Ombudsman scheme is exactly 

like another, the work of the Ombudsman Association (OA) is considered to be important as a means 

of sharing best practice and to learn from each other. This is particularly valuable in view of the fact 

that Ombudsman schemes need to be objective and maintain an appropriate distance from the bodies 

in jurisdiction. We have continued to participate in OA activities, including participating in a number of 

the OA Interest Groups.

Complaints about the PSOW service

The ‘Complaints about us’ procedure can be used if someone is unhappy about our service. For 

example, a complainant may wish to complain about undue delay in responding to correspondence;  

or feel that a member of staff has been rude or unhelpful; or that we have not done what we said  

we would. There is a separate procedure for complainants wishing to appeal against a decision on  

their complaint. Further details about both these procedures are available on my website:  

www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk. 

Emily O’Reilly, European Ombudsman (standing) and Acting Ombudsman, Margaret Griffiths, addressing the European delegation.

Tudalen 123



28

The table below reports on the number of complaints received during 2014/15 and their outcomes, 

together with a comparison of the position in 2013/14.

2014/15 2013/14

Complaints brought forward from previous year 3 2

New Complaints received 13 32

Total Complaints 7 12

Outcomes

Not Upheld (service related issue) 14 13

Upheld in whole or in part 12 7

Related to investigation decision - referred to investigation 

process

44 17

Complaint withdrawn or insufficient information 14 7

Total closed during year 84 44

Ongoing and carried forward at 31 March 1 3

The nature of the complaints that were upheld/partly upheld were:

Undue delay in response 1

Wrong postcode held on file 1

Incorrect information provided 1

Not responding to correspondence 1

Interviews forms and CD recording covers not bilingual 1

Website complaint form submission error 3

Wrong details held on file / or correspondence sent in error 4

Total 12

The following corrective action was undertaken:

• An apology was issued to the complainant in all 12 cases.

•  The relevant line Manager(s) were made aware of the upheld complaints relevant to their team  

for future training and monitoring.

• Appropriate and relevant staff training was undertaken where necessary.

• Appropriate action in accordance with PSOW HR policies was undertaken.

• Issues with ITC e.g. Website submissions were reported to relevant IT providers for resolution.

•  Interview forms are now available in a bilingual format, and arrangements have been made for 

bilingual CD labels to be used as soon as they are available.

Tudalen 124



29

C
h

ie
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

&
 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
s

P
u

b
li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 O

m
b

u
d

s
m

a
n

 f
o

r 
W

a
le

s

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 

T
E

A
M

S
e

n
io

r 
In

ve
st

ig
at

o
r 

x 
6

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
s 

M
an

ag
e

r

In
ve

st
ig

at
o

r 
x 

5

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

T
E

A
M

S
e

n
io

r 
In

ve
st

ig
at

o
r 

x 
6

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
s 

M
an

ag
e

r 

&
 L

e
ga

l 
A

d
vi

se
r

In
ve

st
ig

at
o

r 
x 

5

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

T
E

A
M

S
e

n
io

r 
In

ve
st

ig
at

o
r 

x 
1

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
s 

M
an

ag
e

r

In
ve

st
ig

at
o

r 
x 

6

C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
 A

D
V

IC
E

 

T
E

A
M

C
as

ew
o

rk
 O

ff
ic

er
 x

 6

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 O
ff

ic
er

Po
li

cy
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
M

an
ag

e
r

R
ev

ie
w

M
an

ag
e

r

PA
 t

o
 t

h
e

O
m

b
u

d
sm

an

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

M
an

ag
e

r

S
e

n
io

r 
C

as
ew

o
rk

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

x 
1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

&
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
e

n
io

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
x 

4
 

C
as

ew
o

rk
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
O

ff
ic

e
r 

x 
4

Fi
n

an
ci

al

A
cc

o
u

n
ta

n
t

x 
0

.5

O
rg

a
n

is
at

io
n

a
l 

C
h

a
rt

 (
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 a

s 
at

 3
1 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

15
)

Tudalen 125



30

7. Equality Issues

A commitment to treating people fairly is central to the role of an ombudsman. The Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales is committed to providing equal opportunities for staff in the service provided 

to complainants. No job applicant, staff member or person receiving a service from the PSOW will 

be discriminated against, harassed or victimised due to personal characteristics such as age, disability, 

ethnicity, sex, gender reassignment, pregnancy or maternity, sexual orientation, religion or belief, 

whether they are married or in a civil partnership, or on the basis of any other irrelevant consideration. 

Staff are expected to share the Ombudsman’s total opposition to unlawful and unfair discrimination 

and the commitment to conducting business in a way that is fair to all members of society.

Under the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 laid 

down by the National Assembly for Wales, the Ombudsman has a duty to publish a Strategic Equality 

Plan and equality objectives. The first such Plan, which contains the Ombudsman’s equality objectives, 

was published at the end of March 2012 and complied with the statutory requirement to publish before 

2 April 2012. (The Plan is available on the website: see www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk). Also under the 

specific duties, the Ombudsman is required to produce an annual report in respect of equality matters. 

As articulated in the Strategic Equality Plan, many of our practices have been part and parcel of our 

approach since the inception of the office in 2006. Where relevant therefore, these will remain a part 

of the annual report on equality matters, which is set out below.

Accessibility

As part of our process, we do our very best to identify as early as possible any individual requirements 

that may need to be met so that a service user can fully access our services and, in particular, we ask 

people to tell us their preferred method of communication with us. We always try to make reasonable 

adjustments where these will help people make and present their complaint to us. Examples are: 

providing correspondence in Easy Read; using Language Line for interpretation, where a complainant 

is not comfortable with making their complaint in English or Welsh; obtaining expertise to assist us to 

understand the particular requirements of complainants with certain conditions, such as Asperger’s 

syndrome; and visiting complainants at their homes. 

We produce key documents in alternative formats, such as CD/tape and Braille, translate these into 

the eight key ethnic minority languages used in Wales; and we have upgraded the accessibility of our 

website from A to AA compliant.

During 2014/15, further work was undertaken in relation to our websites, with a view to introducing 

tools to enable translation of web pages in a whole host of languages; checks in relation to website 

accessibility issues; introduction of BrowseAloud which functions for the mobile versions of our 

websites in addition to the desktop versions.

Particular attention has also been given to requirements of those people who are deaf or hard of 

hearing and we intend to improve on our service in relation to British Sign Language provision and other 

relevant facilities during 2015/16. 

Tudalen 126



31

Protected characteristic group Percentage Outcome

Age:

Under 25

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75 or over

Prefer not to say/No response

4%

13%

19%

22%

20%

12%

5%

4%

We also recognise that some service users may need assistance in making their complaint to us and 

we have also invested a great deal of our energy in gathering information about advocacy and advice 

organisations to help them in this regard. This information is readily available on our website as well as 

through our Complaints Advice Team. 

Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring – Service Users 

We have always undertaken equality monitoring in respect of service users, which has informed our 

annual outreach strategy. Results of equality monitoring undertaken since 2005/06 in respect of service 

users was published in the Strategic Equality Plan. 

The outcome of the monitoring during 2015/16 in respect of the protected characteristic groups (as 

defined in the Equality Act) is set out below. 

In view of the nature of the work of this office, we would expect the composition of people who 

complain to this office to, at the very least, mirror the national demographic position; in fact, we would 

expect the proportion of complainants from groups who could be considered to be at disadvantage 

or vulnerable to exceed the national picture. In respect of each of the questions we asked, those who 

completed the form were given the opportunity to respond ‘Prefer not to say’. Nevertheless, from the 

results below, the PSOW is relatively satisfied that in making comparisons with official data available 

(e.g. the Census 2011) the composition of our service users meets or exceeds national demographics in 

the way we would expect. It is in particular good to see that of those who responded, 4% identified 

themselves as having a minority ethnic background, which matches the demographic picture in Wales 

against the Census in 2011. This was a group which was slightly under represented in the most recent 

few years.

We take the results from our equality monitoring into account when developing our outreach 

programmes. We gave particular focus to raising awareness of the PSOW service among people from 

minority ethnic groups during 2014/15, engaging with organisations such Diverse Cymru and Oxfam 

Cymru. Whilst the improvement could be a matter of coincidence, I believe this outreach work has at 

least had some impact in this area.

Tudalen 127



32

Protected characteristic group Percentage Outcome

Disability

Yes

No

Prefer not to say/No response

30%

61%

9%

Health problem or disability limiting day-to-day activities?

Yes, limited a lot

Yes, limited a little

No

Prefer not to say/No response

26%

15%

50%

8%

Gender reassignment

Yes

No

Prefer not to say/No response

31%

0.5%

68.5%

Religion or belief

No religion

Christian (all denominations)

Other religions

Prefer not to say/No response

39%

49%

6%

5%

Married or same-sex civil partnership

Yes

No

Prefer not to say/No response

46%

44%

11%

Race/Ethnicity

White

Other ethnic background

Prefer not to say/No response

91%

4%

5%

Sex

Male

Female

Prefer not to say/ No response

47%

47%

6%

Sexual orientation

Heterosexual or straight

Gay or Lesbian

Bisexual

Other

Prefer not to say/No response

84%

3%

0.5%

1%

11.5%

Tudalen 128



33

Our Casework 

Our commitment and contribution to equality matters also manifests itself in our complaint handling 

work. We also have regard to matters of human rights. Whilst it is not for the Ombudsman to decide 

whether a public service provider is in breach of such legislation, it is possible that the failure to take 

account of any such legal obligations, or to follow policies and procedures designed to implement 

these obligations, will be maladministration. For example, following the investigation into a complaint 

about works being undertaken at a property by a housing association, the report issued in January 2015 

included a recommendation that the housing association should also consider the impact of its failings 

in connection with the Human Rights Act. 

Training 

PSOW staff have over the years received equality and diversity training. We continue to provide 

relevant training in this regard. This is important to us for two reasons. Firstly, so that in the service 

we provide we can be responsive to the changing needs and requirements of people with whom we 

communicate and interact. For example, most recently two members of staff have been learning how 

to communicate via British Sign Language. Secondly, so that we have the knowledge to be able to 

identify during our investigations any failings by public service providers in respect of their equality 

duties.

Further, and as referred to at Section 6 of this Annual Report, arrangements are being put in place 

for 2015/16 in relation to training for staff to identify human rights issues in the assessment and 

investigation of complaints of maladministration

Outreach

We meet regularly with third sector organisations, holding formal seminars at least biennially, giving 

talks and addresses at their conferences and we also have an ongoing proactive programme of meeting 

with individual organisations. This year’s activity has been reported on at Section 6 of this Annual 

Report. This enables two way discussions about the work of the office, so that we can obtain views 

on the service we provide from their perspective and it enables us to explain how they can help those 

individuals who require assistance in making a complaint to us to do so.

Equality Impact Assessments

As part of the work in developing the Strategic Equality Plan, we developed an equality impact 

assessment toolkit. Equality Impact Assessments are now embedded in our practices when reviewing 

existing, or developing new, policies and procedures. 

Staff Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring 

Our staff have been asked to complete and return a monitoring form seeking information in respect 

of each of the protected characteristics. We also now gather such information during our recruitment 

exercises. That disclosure is, of course, on a voluntary basis. The data held at 31 March 2015 is set out 

below.

Tudalen 129



3434

Age The composition of staff ages is as follows:

21 to 30: 17%

31 to 40: 29%

41 to 50: 31% 

51 to 65: 23% 

Disability 86% of staff said there were not disabled, no member of staff said that they were 

a disabled person (14% preferred not to say)

However, when asked if their day-to-day activities were limited because of a 

health problem or disability which had lasted, or was expected to last, at least 12 

months, 2% said that they were limited a lot, 2% said they were limited a little, 

82% said their day to day activities were not limited (14% preferred not to say)

Nationality In describing their nationality, 50% said they were Welsh; 26% said British, 10% said 

they were English, 2% said ‘Other’ (12% preferred not to say)

Ethnic group The ethnicity of staff is:

79% White (Welsh, English, Scottish, Northern Irish, British);

2% White/Irish

3% Black (African, Caribbean, or Black British/Caribbean

2% Asian or Arian British/Bangladeshi

(14% preferred not to say)

Language When asked about the main language of their household, 75% of staff said this 

was English; 11% said Welsh, and 2% said ‘Other’ (12% preferred not to say)

Religion or Belief Responses to the question asking staff about their religion were as follows:

No religion: 38%; 

Christian 38%; 

Muslim 2%; 

Other:1%

(21% preferred not to say)

Marriage/ 

Civil Partnership

When asked if they were married or in a same sex civil partnership, 49% of staff 

replied ‘Yes’; whilst 33% said ‘No’ (18% preferred not to say)

Sexual 

Orientation

Responding on this, 77% said that they were Heterosexual or Straight, 2% said Gay 

or Lesbian (21% preferred not to say)

Tudalen 130



35

Pay (FTE) Male Female

Up to £20,000 0 6

£20,001 to £30,000 1 12

£30,001 to £40,000 1 2

£40,001 to £50,000 8 20

£50,001 to £60,000 3 2

£60,001 + 1 1

Subtotal 14 43

Total 57

Under the specific duties we are required to set an equality objective for gender and pay; if we do 

not do so, we must explain why. The Strategic Equality Plan does not currently contain any specific 

objective in this regard because at the time of its development females were very well represented 

at the higher pay scales within my office. The position is kept under continual review and the equality 

objectives will be revised if necessary. However, as can be seen from the table below, the position 

currently remains satisfactory.

Pay and Gender - data as of 31/03/2015

In relation to the working patterns of the above, all staff work on a full time basis with permanent 

contracts, with the exception of the following;

• 13 members of staff work part time (11 female, 2 male).

• no members of staff were employed on a fixed term contract.

New starters / staff leavers

During the year we have had six members of staff leave and recruited six. Due to the low numbers 

involved, the equality data for these individuals has been reported as part of the all staff information 

above. It is not considered appropriate to report separate equality information relating to the 

individuals involved due to the risk of identification.

Recruitment

During the year we have conducted three recruitment exercises which have resulted in the following data:

Tudalen 131



36

IO CAT CO / 

CWSO

Advisory 

Panel 

Member

Total 

Age Did not say 9% 8% 0% 9%

under 25 0% 28% 0% 19%

25-34 26% 35% 0% 32%

35-44 29% 19% 0% 22%

45-54 25% 10% 21% 15%

55-64 11% 0% 64% 4%

65-74 0% 0% 7% 1%

75 and over 0% 0% 7% 1%

Gender Did not say 4% 3% 7% 4%

Male 43% 42% 71% 42%

Female 53% 55% 21% 54%

Nationality Did not say 5% 6% 7% 6%

Welsh 92% 61% 64% 71%

English 3% 9% 0% 7%

Scottish 0% 3% 0% 2%

Northern Irish 0% 0% 0% 0%

British 0% 18% 29% 12%

Irish 0% 3% 0% 2%

Welsh/German 0% 0% 0% 0%

Ethnic Group Did not say 5% 12% 0% 10%

White (Welsh/Scottish/English/

NI/British)

95% 76% 100% 82%

White (Irish) 0% 3% 0% 2%

White (Gypsy/Irish traveller) 0% 0% 0% 0%

White (Other) 0% 0% 0% 0%

Asian/Asian British 0% 6% 0% 4%

Black, African, Caribbean or 

Black British

0% 3% 0% 2%

Mixed or multiple ethnic group 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other ethnic Group 0% 0% 0% 0%

Language Did not say 14% 3% 14% 7%

English 18% 92% 57% 67%

Welsh 58% 0% 29% 19%

Bilingual (Welsh/English) 10% 5% 0% 7%

Other 0% 0% 0% 0%

Tudalen 132



37

IO CAT CO / 

CWSO

Advisory 

Panel 

Member

Total 

Disability Did not say 10% 3% 0% 6%

Yes 0% 0% 0% 0%

No 90% 97% 100% 95%

Limited 

Activities

Did not say 10% 3% 7% 5%

Yes, limited a little 0% 0% 0% 0%

Yes, limited a lot 0% 0% 0% 0%

No 90% 97% 93% 95%

Religion Did not say 16% 12% 0% 13%

None 34% 59% 14% 51%

Christian 47% 29% 86% 35%

Buddjist 0% 0% 0% 0%

Hindu 0% 0% 0% 0%

Jewish 0% 0% 0% 0%

Muslim 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sikh 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other 3% 0% 0% 1%

Married or civil 

partnership

Did not say 5% 7% 7% 6%

Yes 32% 16% 86% 21%

No 63% 77% 7% 72%

Sexuality Did not say 18% 19% 7% 19%

Heterosexual 82% 74% 93% 77%

Gay or Lesbian 0% 7% 0% 5%

Bisexual 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other 0% 0% 0% 0%

[Note: the above information excludes internal promotion.]

Key to abbreviations: 

• IO –  Investigation Officer.

• CAT CO/CWSO – Complaints Advice Team Casework Officer or Casework Support Officer.

Tudalen 133



38

Staff Training

The majority of staff training is based upon job roles or applicable for all staff to attend, and as such 

there are no equality considerations to report. All individually requested training by staff has been 

approved, and as such there is no need to report on equality data differences between approved and 

non-approved training requests.

Disciplinary / Grievance

Due to the small numbers of staff working in the office, and the small number of instances of 

disciplinary / grievance, it is not considered appropriate to report on equality data for this category due 

to the risk of identification of staff involved. I remain satisfied that there are no identifiable issues in 

this area that would cause me concern.

Procurement

Our procurement policy now refers to the relevant equality requirements that we expect our suppliers 

to have in place. 

Tudalen 134



39

Annex A

Public Body Complaints

Public Interest Reports: Case Summaries

Tudalen 135



40

Cwm Taf University Health Board 
Case reference 201401023 – Report issued March 2015 

Mr C complained to me about the care given to his mother (Mrs M) by Cwm Taf Local Health Board 

(“the Health Board”). Mrs M was 86. She had a medical history which included atrial fibrillation (“AF”), 

Type 2 Diabetes, osteoarthritis and osteoporosis. She was taking a number of medications, including 

Warfarin (anticoagulation protection for AF). She was admitted to the Royal Glamorgan Hospital on 24 

March 2012 because she was suffering with diarrhoea and vomiting. 

Mr C said that at approximately 5.00pm on 4 April, while waiting to be discharged, Mrs M suffered a 

stroke. He said that despite family requests, his mother was not seen by a doctor for over six hours. 

Then, overnight whilst she was sleeping, she suffered a further significant stroke. Mr C said the Health 

Board repeatedly delayed responding to the complaint and he was dissatisfied with the way it handled 

the complaint and the complaint response.

My investigation considered the relevant records, comments from the Health Board and evidence 

provided by Mr C and his family. I took advice from an experienced physician, a Stroke specialist and an 

experienced senior nurse. 

I upheld Mr C’s complaint because I concluded that the care provided to Mrs M on, and leading up to, 

the evening of 4 April was inadequate. During her stay in hospital, by allowing the protection offered by 

anticoagulation to be inadequate, the Health Board failed to properly protect Mrs M from an avoidable 

stroke. The Health Board then failed to assess and treat her symptoms promptly and effectively. There 

was also a delay in her being seen by a suitably trained clinician and in transferring Mrs M to an Acute 

Stroke Unit. 

My investigation also found that the Health Board failed to:

• follow the relevant NICE Stroke Guidance and did not have an adequate stroke protocol;

• provide (or record the provision of) appropriate nursing care; 

• keep appropriate records;

• comply with Complaints Guidance.  

The Health Board accepted the report and agreed to: 

a) give Mr M an unequivocal written apology for the failures identified by this report;

b) give Mr C an unequivocal written apology for failing to comply with Complaint Guidance;

c)  make a payment to Mr M of £5,500 to reflect the failings in care identified by this report; the 

uncertainty caused by those failings; the delays in the Health Board’s handling of this complaint and 

the time and trouble taken by his family in pursuing the complaint with this office;

d)  so that appropriate lessons may be learned, share this report with the medical, nursing, health care 

and administrative staff involved in the case;

HEALTH

Tudalen 136



41

e)  provide me with evidence of the existing monitoring and quality assurance mechanisms it has in 

place to prevent a recurrence of:

• the failure of nursing staff to complete appropriate assessments and implement appropriate care plans 

• the failure of staff to maintain appropriate records

• the failure of administrative, nursing and medical staff to follow the Complaints Guidance; 

f)  ensure compliance with current NICE guidance and professional guidelines, by reviewing (and if 

needed, updating) the current policies/protocols for the: 

• management of in-patients on pre-existing Warfarin therapy 

• INR monitoring of in-patients with relevant pre-existing conditions 

(if needed, the Health Board should implement training for staff who indicate that they are not fully 

conversant with the relevant protocols); 

g)  ensure that staff training in respect of recognising acute stroke is up to date, with particular reference 

to the current NICE guidance and professional guidelines;

h)  ensure that use of the NIHSS (or similarly recognised tool), in order to identify patients who are likely 

to have had an acute stroke, is implemented;

i)  to ensure compliance with current NICE guidance and professional guidelines, review its 

arrangements for the identification and treatment of acute stroke and consider including the 

following measures:

•  all patients who may have had an acute stroke should be immediately assessed by a suitably trained 

physician to determine whether thrombolysis is suitable

•  all patients who may have had an acute stroke should have immediate CT scanning (i.e. within one 

hour)

•  all patients who may have had an acute stroke should be assessed immediately for admission to a 

specialist acute stroke unit 

•  all patients who may have had an acute stroke should have a swallowing screening test (using a 

validated tool) by a trained professional within four hours;

j) give my office suitable evidence to demonstrate that it has complied with the recommendations. 

Tudalen 137



42

Cardiff and Vale University Health Board and GP  
Case references 201306223 and 201306224 - Report issued February 2015 

Mrs H complained about the standard of care afforded to her late husband, X, by the Health Board’s 

Mental Health Services and his GP practice, before his death in January 2013 (when he took his own 

life). X’s clinical history included a number of incidents - he had self harmed, abused both alcohol 

and drugs and taken overdoses. In 2012, X continued to be treated by the GP Practice with increasing 

regularity, being prescribed a number of different medications to treat anxiety/mood disorders and/

or depression. These included drugs known as benzodiazepines (known to be potentially addictive). 

X took an overdose of anti-depressants in January 2013, two weeks before his death, but was 

discharged from hospital and remained on a waiting list for counselling (which he had been on for 

some time). However, before he could be seen, X took his own life. Mrs H also complained that she 

had subsequently received a letter addressed to X inviting him for a counselling appointment at the 

Practice, which compounded her distress. An inquest touching upon X’s death returned a verdict of 

suicide but noted “That there was a failure by those treating him to identify his suicidal intent.”

Following advice from my clinical advisers, the complaint was mostly upheld. Whilst I could not 

conclude with any certainty that the outcome would have been different, were it not for the failings 

found during the investigation, failures on the part of both the Health Board and the Practice included 

the following:

•  Lost opportunities on the part of the Health Board to properly evaluate X’s mental health following 

earlier serious incidents and to comprehensively assess him when he was seen.

•  A failure on the part of the Health Board to discuss X’s discharge after an overdose two weeks before 

his death, and a failure to provide discharge information to the Practice in a timely way.

•  Numerous errors in the Health Board’s own investigation, following X’s death, which indicated a lack 

of proper care and attention.

•  A failure on the part of the Practice to refer to secondary care and/or a failure to properly assess X’s 

suicide risk.

•  The Practice’s continued prescribing of benzodiazepines was contrary to national guidance.

I recommended that both the Health Board and the Practice apologise to Mrs H, and offer her redress 

of £1,500 each, for the failures identified, her distress, and her time in pursuing the complaint. 

Further recommendations included the provision of evidence by the Health Board of its audit 

of discharge communication with GPs, its reminder to staff conducting investigations of serious 

incidents and reminders about comprehensive risk assessments. In relation to the Practice, further 

recommendations were made about continued auditing and monitoring of its benzodiazepine 

prescribing and that it should produce a Practice Prescribing Policy. Both the Health Board and the 

Practice accepted my recommendations in full. 

Tudalen 138



43

Hywel Dda University Health Board and GP 
Case references 201302382 & 201306002 - Report issued September 2014

Mrs X complained that her mother’s GP had failed to ensure that aspirin, which had previously been 

prescribed for atrial fibrillation, was reinstated following a period when it had been stopped because 

she was taking warfarin. Mrs X said that her mother, Mrs Y, had suffered a debilitating stroke, which she 

believed could have been avoided, or its severity reduced, if she had been taking aspirin.

Although I found that the GP had failed to re-prescribe aspirin for Mrs Y in January 2013, there was no 

evidence that aspirin would have reduced the risk of Mrs Y suffering a stroke. 

My advisers expressed concerns about the failure of the GP to consider prescribing warfarin, rather 

than aspirin, for atrial fibrillation, and the failure of secondary care professionals in the Health Board 

to alert the GP to consider this. The scope of my investigation was therefore broadened to include the 

Health Board.

I found that it had not been unreasonable for the GP to prescribe aspirin in 2004, as guidelines at 

that time did not clearly recommend warfarin. However, a CT scan in 2011 showed that Mrs Y had 

suffered a stroke; she was therefore known to be at high risk of a further stroke, and the Health 

Board ophthalmology service, which had arranged the scan, should have referred her to the Stroke 

Department. Also, the GP should have considered prescribing warfarin for her, in accordance with 

guidelines at that time.

Further opportunities to recognise the situation were missed in July and September 2012; in July Mrs 

Y suffered a DVT, and was prescribed a six month course of warfarin, but neither the clinician who 

referred her to the haematology department in July nor the cardiologist who saw her in September 

alerted the GP to the desirability of considering prescribing warfarin for Mrs Y on a longterm basis. The 

GP did not review Mrs Y’s medication then or subsequently. I found that these were serious failings and 

upheld the complaint; if Mrs Y had been taking warfarin the risk of her suffering a stroke would have 

been significantly reduced, although he could not conclude that she would not have done so.

I recommended that the GP should:

a) apologise to Mrs X for the failings identified;

b) pay Mrs X the sum of £1,000 in recognition of the significant distress the failings had caused her;

c)  if she had not already done so, carry out an audit of all patients at the Practice who have been 

diagnosed with atrial fibrillation, to ensure they are prescribed the most appropriate anticoagulant; 

d)  introduce and maintain a register of such patients, with annual review of their treatment being 

carried out. 

Tudalen 139



44

I recommended that the Health Board should: 

a) apologise to Mrs X for the failings identified; 

b) pay Mrs X the sum of £1,000 in recognition of the significant distress the failings had caused her; 

c)  consider the introduction of a register and annual medication review of patients with atrial fibrillation; 

d)  introduce a procedure to ensure a medication review by the original clinician before the discharge of 

a patient on warfarin; 

e)  advise all clinicians to be explicit in their correspondence with GPs as to their expectations for future 

management of the patient; 

f)  undertake a review of the procedures in the ophthalmology department for referral to other 

specialties.

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board  
Case reference 201302660 - Report issued July 2014

Mrs X complained about the length of time that her father (Mr Y) had to wait to be seen following 

a referral made by his GP in September 2012 for an endoscopy at the Royal Gwent Hospital. Mrs X 

highlighted that there had been a downgrading of the referral from urgent suspected cancer (USC) 

without her father having been seen and without any discussion with his GP. She was also concerned 

about the lack of clear ownership and responsibility for her father’s care. Mrs X said that there was a 

lack of cohesion between the differing specialities involved which resulted in communication failures. 

Mrs X was of the view that her father’s treatment and quality of life might have been improved if he 

had been seen in a more timely manner.

Mrs X also complained that the Health Board’s subsequent investigation into her complaint failed 

to accept responsibility and acknowledge the harm that was caused by the delay in Mr Y receiving 

attention. In investigating the complaint the Acting Ombudsman took account of the view of one 

of her Clinical Advisers. The Acting Ombudsman found there to be unacceptable delays in the care 

provided and said that no sense of urgency was shown to Mr Y’s clinical condition. She said that there 

were shortcomings in the leadership and ownership of the care and treatment being provided to Mr 

Y. The Acting Ombudsman raised concern about inadequate communication with the GP and with Mr 

Y and his family. The Acting Ombudsman highlighted that the relevant Health Board policy did not 

comply with the NICE guidelines. The Acting Ombudsman was also concerned about the waiting time 

for an urgent outpatient appointment. She said there had been an unnecessary delay in an endoscopy 

procedure being carried out. The primary site of cancer was identified following this.

The Acting Ombudsman upheld the concerns raised by Mrs X about the clinical care. She noted that 

although a more timely response would not have changed the sad outcome, it might have avoided 

the unnecessary psychological suffering felt by Mr Y and his family. It was also possible that a 

tracheostomy procedure could have been avoided.

Tudalen 140



45

The Acting Ombudsman also upheld Mrs X’s complaint about the Health Board’s subsequent complaint 

investigation.

The Acting Ombudsman recommended that the Health Board should:

a) provide an apology to Mrs X for the significant shortcomings in her father’s care and treatment;

b)  provide financial redress to Mrs X of £1,500 for the distress caused to Mr Y and his family and £500 

for the time and trouble incurred in making a complaint and for the shortcomings in the complaint 

response;

c)  review the endoscopy referral criteria for USC to ensure consistency with the relevant NICE guideline;

d) ensure that the First Consultant Gastroenterologist considered the issues raised in this case.

e)  take action to ensure that the unacceptable delays for urgent outpatient appointments are 

addressed;

f)  review the process to ensure that abnormal results are acted upon urgently by a lead clinician or 

relevant cancer MDT;

g)  review how it communicates effectively and appropriately with patients and their families, 

particularly when more than one speciality is involved;

h)  comply with the “Putting Things Right” framework including a proper consideration of “qualifying 

liability” and seeking independent clinical advice in appropriate circumstances.

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board  
Case reference 201301339 – Report issued June 2014

Ms A complained that Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (“the Health Board”) unreasonably 

delayed two of her appointments, at its Glaucoma Review Clinic (Glaucoma is a disease which damages 

the optic nerve and causes vision loss). She said that she needed emergency treatment as a result. She 

contended that she sustained significant vision loss in her right eye and experienced “considerable 

distress” because of these appointment delays. She indicated that she was dissatisfied with the Health 

Board’s response to her complaint because it took too long to provide it and asserted that her sight 

was “unaffected” by these appointment delays.

The Acting Ombudsman upheld Ms A’s complaint. She considered that the Health Board delayed Ms A’s 

Clinic appointments unreasonably and failed to manage her glaucoma-related risks appropriately.

She was also of the view that it took too long to respond to Ms A’s complaint and failed to update her 

and manage the issue of possible qualifying liability appropriately. She recommended that the Health 

Board should:

a) write to Ms A to apologise for the failings identified;

Tudalen 141



46

b) write to Ms A to explain how it determined that there was no qualifying liability in her case;

c) review its ophthalmology services with reference to her investigation report and a pre-existing 

 “Situation Background Assessment Recommendation” (“SBAR”) report; and,

d) prepare another SBAR report following this review.

The Acting Ombudsman also considered it appropriate to recommend financial redress for Ms A. 

However, she did not do so because Ms A did not want such redress. The Health Board agreed to 

comply with the recommendations made.

Cwm Taf Health Board  
Case reference 201300374 – Report issued May 2014

Mrs C complained, through her solicitor, that the Health Board had failed to diagnose her brain 

tumour in a timely way; instead for over a year she was managed and treated for a stroke, and was 

later referred for a mental health assessment. Consequently, Mrs C said, she was not provided with 

earlier relief from the distressing symptoms she suffered and she was made to feel that her symptoms 

were psychosomatic. In addition, Mrs C complained about how the Health Board had dealt with her 

subsequent complaint.

The investigation found failings in Mrs C’s clinical management. The Acting Ombudsman’s Independent 

Clinical Advisers said that Mrs C’s multiple admissions to hospital should have triggered consideration 

of an alternative diagnosis to a stroke much sooner. She ought to have been referred for an MRI scan 

and/or to a Neurologist. Two failed referrals could not be explained. The Consultant treating Mrs C 

for a stroke worked alone at the time; this was criticised as it gave no opportunity to discuss complex 

presentations. The referral requests to Radiology were found to be insufficient or illegible resulting 

in failed communication and misinterpretation of some images. This resulted in a 12 month period of 

additional distress for Mrs C albeit that, unfortunately, no surgical intervention could have been offered 

to her. There was some delay in the Health Board responding to requests made by Mrs C’s solicitor as 

part of her complaint. Mrs C’s complaints were upheld.

The Health Board agreed to all the Acting Ombudsman’s recommendations:

a)  to apologise and offer redress of £2,500 to Mrs C for her distress as a result of the failings and delays 

identified;

b)  through a Clinical Lead, to issue reminders to all staff of the need to provide accurate, clear requests 

to Radiology colleagues and also to properly evidence inter-clinician referrals clearly in the clinical 

records;

c)  Mrs C’s case should be used as a learning exercise and discussed at a joint meeting of all departments 

involved; and,

d)  the Radiology service should consider participating at an early stage in future Welsh trials of the 

electronic ordering of Radiology requests.

Tudalen 142



47

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board  
Case reference 201205048 – Report issued May 2014 

Mrs A complained about the care provided for her late father, Mr B, by Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 

University Health Board (“the Health Board”), at Morriston Hospital (“the Hospital”). Her complaint 

concerned the diagnosis and investigation of his condition, his treatment in the Emergency 

Department, his discharge from the Hospital, his spinal surgery, his ophthalmology input, his manual 

handling assessment and his personal care. Mr B had cancer.

The Acting Ombudsman upheld Mrs A’s complaint. She considered that the Health Board had not 

investigated Mr B’s condition appropriately, diagnosed it correctly soon enough, provided timely triage 

for him, managed his discharge, pain and handling-related needs effectively or consistently given him a 

reasonable standard of personal care. She recommended that the Health Board should:

a) write to Mrs A to apologise for the failings identified;

b) pay Mrs A a nominal sum of £1,500 in recognition of the significant distress that its failings caused;

c)  formally remind its clinicians of the importance of identifying and responding to Red Flags (clinical 

indicators of possible serious underlying conditions that require investigation);

d) satisfy itself that its triage arrangements should avert any delay akin to that experienced by Mr B;

e) review its pain policy to ensure that it complies with the relevant pain management guideline;

f) arrange and provide discharge-related training for its nursing staff members;

g)  formally remind its nursing staff members that they must ensure that their patient handling complies 

with the relevant best practice guidance;

h)  formally remind its nursing staff members that they must assess and review the personal care needs 

of their patients systematically and record the service provision associated with them consistently;

i)  formally remind its nursing staff members that they must ensure that their catheter care complies 

with the relevant best practice guidance;

j) arrange and provide pain management training for its nursing staff members;

k) share her investigation report with all relevant staff members and discuss it in an appropriate forum.

The Health Board agreed to comply with these recommendations.

Tudalen 143



48

Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd  
Case reference 201304611 - Report issued August 2014 

Mr K complained that Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd (“CCG”), his housing association landlord, had 

unfairly refused his application to adapt his property to install a walk-in shower. He said that CCG 

had accepted that he had a need for the adaptation, as two occupational therapy assessments had 

indicated.

Mr K explained that CCG had refused the application mainly because he and Mrs K were 

underoccupying their home, as it was a three bedroom property. It had stated that many families were 

awaiting such homes. Mr K asserted that CCG’s decision to refuse the application and then turn down 

his appeal, demonstrated that its policies were discriminatory against older and disabled people. In 

addition, he considered that the way CCG handled his appeal was incorrect.

Mr K said that he was being forced to move from a home he had lived in for 36 years against his will 

because he could not use the bathroom facilities satisfactorily.

I concluded that broadly CCG was operating reasonable policies, which were compliant with legislation 

and took account of the balance between a prudent use of its housing stock and the rights of tenants. 

However, I found that CCG needed to do more to provide evidence of the number and waiting times of 

families within its policy framework.

In Mr K’s case, however, I found that CCG had been maladministrative in its handling of the application 

and appeal. I found that the initial decision to refuse the application had been taken without due 

consideration of Mr K’s circumstances. The appeal decision then failed to identify that omission. I 

considered that Mr K had not had a fair hearing as a result of these failures. Mr K had suffered an 

injustice in that context. 

I upheld Mr K’s complaint. I recommended that CCG:

a) apologise to Mr K;

b) pay him £300;

c) offer Mr K a fresh and prompt re-determination of his application;

d) review its Adaptations Policy with regard to one aspect of its wording;

e)  consider how it could incorporate the evidential basis regarding the need for family homes into the 

Adaptations Policy.

CCG accepted these recommendations.

HOUSING

Tudalen 144



49

Carmarthenshire County Council  
Case Reference 201304738 - Report issued January 2015 

Mr Y complained about delay by the Council in investigating his concerns about his four year old 

daughter’s welfare, when in her mother’s care. 

His concerns were the family’s living conditions, the frequent changes of address and allegations of 

drug taking. He considered that some of the remarks made by a social worker regarding drug taking and 

parenting were “inappropriate.”

I found that the Council failed to carry out a home visit and missed a number of opportunities to 

investigate Mr Y’s concerns about the family’s circumstances, which included a number of risk factors. 

Instead it relied on information from the school, where his daughter was a new pupil. It also failed to 

investigate properly a referral made from an English County Council’s Children’s Social Services Team 

where the concerns were similar to those raised by Mr Y and where an “urgent welfare check” was 

requested. It was several months before the home was visited and this was only after a referral from 

the police following a drugs raid. An assessment of the child’s needs was not carried out before the 

child left the Council’s area to return to Mr Y’s care. 

I found that a comment relating to drug taking and parenting made by a social worker was not 

appropriate given the lack of investigation and assessment of Mr Y’s daughter’s circumstances. He also 

highlighted very poor complaint handling and found that Council staff were defensive and lacked 

objectivity in dealing with Mr Y’s representations. The Council failed to deal with the complaint 

under the Children’s Complaints procedures which it should have done, and missed an opportunity to 

investigate the service failings in respect of Mr Y’s daughter.

The Council accepted my recommendations to:

a)  apologise to Mr Y and make a payment of £1,000 for the uncertainty caused by the lack of 

assessment together with his “time and trouble” in making the complaint;

b)  arrange an audit (to be carried out independently of the Council) of referrals to its Children’s Services 

Teams to review the appropriateness and consistency of its responses;

c)  provide training on the Framework for the Assessment of Children in Need and their Families for all 

staff who deal with referrals and assessments; 

d)  review its arrangements for dealing with social services complaints, to ensure its compliance with 

recent legislation and guidance; 

e)  provide training on complaint handling for those staff dealing with complaints regarding the 

provision of services for children.

SOCIAL SERVICES

Tudalen 145



50

Llansannan Community Council  
Case Reference 201304436 - Report issued July 2014 

Mr Z complained that he had been wrongly prevented from attending monthly meetings of the 

Llansannan Community Council (“the Council”). He further complained that before he was told he 

could no longer attend, the Council had stopped providing any translation facility for those meetings. 

The Council transacts its business in Welsh and Mr Z does not understand Welsh. 

The investigation found that there had been maladministration in the manner in which the Council 

reached its decision to prevent Mr Z attending meetings. There were no minutes or any record of the 

appeal Panel meeting at which the decision was said to have been taken. I also considered there were 

no evidenced grounds for its decision given the statutory enshrined right of members of the public to 

attend meetings of elected councils so long as no disruption was caused at meetings (when attendees 

could be asked to leave or that right withdrawn). There was no evidence of any disruption when Mr Z 

had attended; the decision had been solely based on his conduct in daily life outside meetings. Whilst 

not condoning that conduct, there was no basis to prevent Mr Z from attending. 

The Acting Ombudsman was satisfied that the Council could, as it had done, elect to transact its 

business in Welsh but she was not persuaded that it had demonstrated how it might ensure the non 

Welsh speaking public could engage in its democratic business (as noted by guidance issued by the 

Welsh Government). Furthermore, the Council’s own adopted Welsh Language Scheme stated that 

it would treat both languages equally. It could not therefore objectively be doing so if it failed to 

make some provision for those attending meetings who did not understand Welsh. Otherwise those 

members of the electorate could not understand what was being discussed. 

The Acting Ombudsman made the following recommendations to the Council: 

a)  to apologise to Mr Z for the maladministration resulting in the injustice to him of not being able to 

attend monthly meetings; 

b)  to review a number of its policies including its Standing Orders and Welsh Language Scheme to 

ensure greater clarity as to its position on translation at business meetings; 

c) to ensure it recorded decisions taken pursuant to its policies and procedures.

OTHER

Tudalen 146



51

Annex B

Public Body Complaints

Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes  
by Public Body Complaints Investigated 

Tudalen 147



52

Co
un

ty
/

 
Co

un
ty

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

Bl
ae

na
u 

G
w

en
t 

6
4

10
1

1
22

Br
id

ge
nd

2
9

19
1

1
32

C
ae

rp
hi

lly
 

9
19

19
1

1
49

C
ar

di
ff

11
41

27
17

1
1

98

C
ar

m
ar

th
en

sh
ire

 
5

23
17

2
7

1
1

2
58

C
er

ed
ig

io
n 

3
12

12
1

2
7

1
38

C
on

w
y

8
8

13
1

30

D
en

bi
gh

sh
ire

7
10

8
1

1
1

28

Fl
in

ts
hi

re
7

20
12

3
1

43

G
w

yn
ed

d
7

9
12

3
1

1
33

Is
le

 o
f A

ng
le

se
y 

4
14

13
31

M
er

th
yr

 T
yd

fil
 

5
5

6
1

17

M
on

m
ou

th
sh

ire
 

2
9

5
2

1
19

N
ea

th
 P

or
t 

Ta
lb

ot
 

3
15

14
3

2
37

N
ew

po
rt

1
14

18
1

34

Pe
m

br
ok

es
hi

re
5

14
13

3
35

Po
w

ys
 

4
20

22
3

1
1

51

Rh
on

dd
a 

Cy
no

n 
Ta

f 
4

17
13

1
35

Sw
an

se
a

9
20

28
1

1
59

Va
le

 o
f G

la
m

or
ga

n
6

9
12

3
1

31

To
rf

ae
n

2
7

13
4

26

W
re

xh
am

7
22

22
1

5
1

1
59

TO
TA

L
11

7
32

1
32

8
4

58
1

24
5

7
86

5

C
O

U
N

T
Y/

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
S

Tudalen 148



53

O
T

H
ER

 L
O

C
A

L 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

Sc
ho

ol
 A

pp
ea

l P
an

el
s

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

Ro
at

h 
Pa

rk
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
1

1

Sk
et

ty
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

M
ill

br
oo

k 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

Ti
ry

be
rt

h 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

Ba
ss

al
eg

 S
ch

oo
l

1
1

Br
yn

gw
yn

 s
ch

oo
l

1
1

C
ae

rl
eo

n 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

Ll
an

is
he

n 
Fa

ch
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

M
on

no
w

 P
rim

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
1

1

Ra
dy

r C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 S

ch
oo

l
1

1

Rh
yd

yp
en

au
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

2
2

St
. R

ic
ha

rd
 G

w
yn

 R
C

 H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

Ll
ys

fa
en

 P
rim

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
1

1

St
 W

oo
lo

s 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

Ys
go

l T
re

ga
nn

a
1

1

Ys
go

l M
yn

ny
dd

 Is
a

1
1

Ys
go

l B
ry

n 
Te

g
1

1

M
ou

nt
 S

tu
ar

t 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
1

Ex
cl

us
io

n 
A

pp
ea

l P
an

el
 -

 
W

ill
ow

s 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
1

1

TO
TA

L
1

16
2

1
20

Tudalen 149



54

O
T

H
ER

 L
O

C
A

L 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 (

C
O

N
T

IN
U

ED
)

N
at

io
na

l P
ar

k 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

Br
ec

on
 B

ea
co

ns
 

1
1

1
1

4

Pe
m

br
ok

es
hi

re
 C

oa
st

 
1

1
2

Sn
ow

do
ni

a 
1

1
2

TO
TA

L
3

2
2

1
8

Fi
re

 &
 R

es
cu

e 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

M
id

 &
 W

es
t 

W
al

es
1

1

Tudalen 150



55

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y/

T
O

W
N

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

S

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

or
 T

ow
n 

Co
un

ci
l

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

A
be

rt
ill

er
y 

&
 L

la
nh

ill
et

h 
C

om
m

un
it

y
2

1
1

4

A
be

ry
st

w
yt

h 
To

w
n 

2
2

A
rg

oe
d 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

(F
lin

ts
hi

re
)

2
2

C
ae

rw
en

t 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

C
ef

n 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

C
on

na
h'

s 
Q

ua
y 

To
w

n 
1

1

Cy
nw

yl
 E

lf
ed

 C
om

m
un

it
y

1
1

D
ol

ge
lla

u 
To

w
n

1
1

D
yf

fr
yn

 A
rt

h 
C

om
m

un
it

y
1

1

H
an

m
er

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Ll
an

ed
i C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1
1

3

Ll
an

ga
tt

oc
k 

C
om

m
un

it
y

1
1

2

Ll
an

ge
nn

it
h,

 L
la

nm
ad

oc
 &

 
C

he
ri

to
n 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

2
2

Ll
an

no
n 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Ll
an

ov
er

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Ll
an

sa
nn

an
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
2

1
1

4

M
ae

st
eg

 T
ow

n 
1

1

M
aw

r 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

N
an

ne
rc

h 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

N
ea

th
 T

ow
n 

1
1

Pe
m

br
ey

 &
 B

ur
ry

 P
or

t T
ow

n 
1

1

Pe
nn

ar
d 

C
om

m
un

it
y

1
3

1
5

Ta
lg

ar
th

 T
ow

n
1

1

To
ta

l
8

12
10

2
1

3
3

39

Tudalen 151



56

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

So
ci

al
 L

an
dl

or
d 

(H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

)
O

ut
 o

f 
Ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
Pr

em
at

ur
e

‘O
th

er
’ 

ca
se

s 
cl

os
ed

 
af

te
r 

in
it

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

A
bb

ey
fie

ld
, F

lin
t 

So
ci

et
y 

Lt
d

1
1

Br
o 

M
yr

dd
in

 H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 L

td
1

1
2

Br
on

 A
fo

n 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 L

td
10

2
12

C
ad

w
yn

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 
Lt

d
1

1

C
ar

di
ff

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 L

td
7

2
9

C
ar

tr
efi

 C
on

w
y

5
2

7

C
ar

tr
efi

 C
ym

un
ed

ol
 G

w
yn

ed
d

2
6

5
3

1
17

C
ha

rt
er

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

1
4

2
1

1
9

C
lw

yd
 A

ly
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 L

td
1

6
1

8

C
oa

st
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 G
ro

up
 L

td
1

1
1

3

Cy
m

de
it

ha
s 

Ta
i C

an
tr

ef
1

1

Cy
m

de
it

ha
s 

Ta
i C

lw
yd

 C
yf

2
2

Cy
m

de
it

ha
s 

Ta
i E

ry
ri

1
1

2

Cy
no

n 
Ta

f C
om

m
un

it
y 

H
ou

si
ng

1
3

4

Fa
m

ily
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 

(W
al

es
) L

td
1

2
1

4

G
rw

p 
Cy

ne
fin

2
2

G
rw

p 
G

w
al

ia
 C

yf
 L

td
1

6
13

1
21

H
af

od
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
1

5
6

Li
nc

-C
ym

ru
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

3
1

4

R
EG

IS
T

ER
ED

 S
O

C
IA

L 
LA

N
D

LO
R

D
S

Tudalen 152



57

R
EG

IS
T

ER
ED

 S
O

C
IA

L 
LA

N
D

LO
R

D
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
ED

)

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

So
ci

al
 L

an
dl

or
d 

(H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

)
O

ut
 o

f 
Ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
Pr

em
at

ur
e

‘O
th

er
’ 

ca
se

s 
cl

os
ed

 
af

te
r 

in
it

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

M
el

in
 H

om
es

 L
td

7
1

1
9

M
er

th
yr

 T
yd

fil
 C

ar
e 

an
d 

Re
pa

ir
1

1

M
er

th
yr

 V
al

le
ys

 H
om

es
1

1

M
id

 W
al

es
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 L
td

1
1

3
5

M
on

m
ou

th
sh

ire
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

2
2

1
5

N
ew

po
rt

 C
it

y 
H

om
es

2
1

2
1

6

N
ew

yd
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

1
3

1
5

N
PT

 H
om

es
1

11
2

4
1

1
20

Pe
m

br
ok

es
hi

re
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 L
td

1
1

2

RC
T 

H
om

es
4

1
5

Rh
on

dd
a 

Cy
no

n 
Ta

f C
ar

e 
an

d 
Re

pa
ir

1
1

2

Se
re

n 
G

ro
up

1
1

2

Ta
i C

al
on

5
1

6

Ta
i C

er
ed

ig
io

n 
Cy

f
1

8
1

1
11

U
ni

te
d 

W
el

sh
 H

ou
si

ng
 

A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

3
1

1
1

6

Va
lle

ys
 T

o 
C

oa
st

 L
td

2
1

3

W
al

es
 a

nd
 W

es
t 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
6

5
11

TO
TA

L
19

10
5

63
21

1
3

3
21

5

Tudalen 153



58

Lo
ca

l H
ea

lt
h 

Bo
ar

d/
 

N
H

S 
Tr

us
t

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

A
be

rt
aw

e 
Br

o 
M

or
ga

nn
w

g 
8

33
30

16
1

17
5

11
0

A
ne

ur
in

 B
ev

an
 

10
30

22
8

1
24

2
2

99

Be
ts

i C
ad

w
al

ad
r 

8
31

32
10

1
27

13
2

12
4

C
ar

di
ff

 a
nd

 V
al

e 
7

24
19

16
1

15
8

1
91

C
w

m
 T

af
 

6
9

12
3

2
11

4
1

48

H
yw

el
 D

da
6

36
24

13
1

11
5

2
98

Po
w

ys
 T

ea
ch

in
g

5
15

2
6

1
6

35

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h 
W

al
es

1
1

2

W
el

sh
 A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
2

4
4

1
1

12

TO
TA

L
47

17
3

15
9

2
72

7
10

7
44

8
61

9

LO
C

A
L 

H
EA

LT
H

 B
O

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 N

H
S

 T
R

U
ST

S
 

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  

Tudalen 154



59

O
th

er
 H

ea
lt

h
O

ut
 o

f 
Ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
Pr

em
at

ur
e

‘O
th

er
’ 

ca
se

s 
cl

os
ed

 
af

te
r 

in
it

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

D
en

ti
st

3
6

7
1

1
3

3
24

G
P

7
26

34
3

2
29

19
1

12
1

Ph
ar

m
ac

is
t

1
2

1
4

TO
TA

L
10

33
43

1
4

2
33

22
1

14
9

O
T

H
ER

 H
EA

LT
H

 B
O

D
IE

S
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

H
ea

lt
h 

Co
un

ci
l

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

A
be

rt
aw

e 
Br

o 
M

or
ga

nn
w

g 
1

1

Bo
ar

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

H
ea

lt
h 

C
ou

nc
ils

 in
 W

al
es

1
1

C
ar

di
ff

 a
nd

 V
al

e 
of

 
G

la
m

or
ga

n
1

1

C
w

m
 T

af
1

1
2

TO
TA

L
1

3
1

5

Tudalen 155



60

W
el

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
O

ut
 o

f 
Ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
Pr

em
at

ur
e

‘O
th

er
’ 

ca
se

s 
cl

os
ed

 
af

te
r 

in
it

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

C
A

FC
A

SS
 C

ym
ru

3
4

5
12

C
SS

IW
5

5

H
ea

lt
hc

ar
e 

In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

 
W

al
es

1
1

2

N
or

th
 W

al
es

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 

Tr
ib

un
al

1
1

Pl
an

ni
ng

 In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

1
3

9
13

W
el

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
7

12
16

1
1

2
39

W
el

sh
 H

ea
lt

h 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
ed

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 C

om
m

it
te

e
1

1

TO
TA

L
12

21
35

1
2

2
73

W
el

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
Sp

on
so

re
d 

Bo
di

es

C
ar

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r W
al

es
1

1

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 W

al
es

1
3

5
9

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Tr
ib

un
al

 
fo

r W
al

es
1

1

TO
TA

L
3

3
5

11

O
V

ER
A

LL
 T

O
TA

L
15

24
40

1
2

2
84

W
EL

S
H

 G
O

V
ER

N
M

EN
T

 A
N

D
 W

EL
S

H
 G

O
V

ER
N

M
EN

T
 S

P
O

N
S

O
R

ED
 B

O
D

IE
S

 

Tudalen 156



61

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

Ca
re

 
Pr

ov
id

er
s

O
ut

 o
f 

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

Pr
em

at
ur

e
‘O

th
er

’ 
ca

se
s 

cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

Pu
bl

ic
 In

te
re

st
 

Re
po

rt
 U

ph
el

d 
- i

n 
w

ho
le

 o
r  

in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

BU
PA

 C
ar

e 
H

om
es

 
(P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s)

 L
td

1
1

H
aw

th
or

n 
C

ou
rt

 C
ar

e 
H

om
e

1
1

Ty
 H

af
an

1
1

W
hi

te
 H

ou
se

 R
es

id
en

ti
al

 C
ar

e 
H

om
e

1
1

Ta
lb

ot
 C

ou
rt

 C
ar

e 
H

om
e

1
1

TO
TA

L
1

2
1

1
5

O
th

er
O

ut
 o

f 
Ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
Pr

em
at

ur
e

‘O
th

er
’ 

ca
se

s 
cl

os
ed

 
af

te
r 

in
it

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
Q

ui
ck

 F
ix

/
 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

tt
le

m
en

t

S1
6 

R
ep

or
t 

-  
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 R

ep
or

t 
U

ph
el

d 
-  

in
 w

ho
le

  
or

 in
 p

ar
t

O
th

er
 

R
ep

or
t 

- N
ot

 
U

ph
el

d

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

N
at

io
na

l A
ss

em
bl

y 
fo

r W
al

es
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

1
1

ES
TY

N
1

1

Bo
dy

 o
ut

 o
f j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n

3
3

TO
TA

L
5

5

IN
D

EP
EN

D
EN

T
 C

A
R

E 
P

R
O

V
ID

ER
S

O
T

H
ER

S

Tudalen 157



62
Tudalen 158



63

Annex C

Code of Conduct Complaints:

Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Local Authority

Tudalen 159



64

C
O

U
N

T
Y/

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
S

Co
un

ty
/

 
Co

un
ty

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

Cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
br

ea
ch

N
o 

ac
ti

on
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
Re

fe
r 

to
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e

Re
fe

r 
to

 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

io
n 

Pa
ne

l

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

Bl
ae

na
u 

G
w

en
t

1
1

2

C
ae

rp
hi

lly
 

4
1

5

C
ar

di
ff

15
2

1
3

21

C
ar

m
ar

th
en

sh
ire

15
15

C
er

ed
ig

io
n 

2
1

3

C
on

w
y 

1
1

D
en

bi
gh

sh
ire

 
2

2

Fl
in

ts
hi

re
1

1
2

G
w

yn
ed

d
6

1
2

9

Is
le

 o
f 

A
ng

le
se

y 
2

3
1

6

M
er

th
yr

 T
yd

fil
 

4
4

M
on

m
ou

th
sh

ire
2

1
3

N
ea

th
 P

or
t 

Ta
lb

ot
 

2
1

3

N
ew

po
rt

 C
it

y 
1

1

Pe
m

br
ok

es
hi

re
 

5
1

6

Po
w

ys
 

8
2

10

Rh
on

dd
a 

Cy
no

n 
Ta

f 
7

1
2

10

Sw
an

se
a

9
1

10

Va
le

 o
f G

la
m

or
ga

n 
C

ou
nc

il
7

1
8

To
rf

ae
n 

7
2

9

W
re

xh
am

1
1

2

To
ta

l 
10

0
11

10
1

6
4

13
2

Tudalen 160



65

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y/

 T
O

W
N

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

S

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

or
 T

ow
n 

Co
un

ci
l

Cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
br

ea
ch

N
o 

ac
ti

on
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
Re

fe
r 

to
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e

Re
fe

r 
to

 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

io
n 

Pa
ne

l

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

A
be

rt
ill

er
y 

&
 L

la
nh

ill
et

h 
C

om
m

un
it

y
4

1
5

A
be

ry
st

w
yt

h 
To

w
n 

4
1

5

A
m

m
an

fo
rd

 T
ow

n 
1

1

A
rt

ho
g 

C
om

m
un

it
y

1
1

Ba
ng

or
 C

it
y 

1
1

Be
th

es
da

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Br
id

ge
nd

 T
ow

n 
3

3

Bu
ck

le
y 

To
w

n
4

4

C
ae

rw
en

t 
C

om
m

un
it

y
3

3

C
al

di
co

t 
To

w
n 

1
1

C
oe

dp
oe

th
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1
2

C
on

na
h'

s 
Q

ua
y 

To
w

n 
2

2

D
in

as
 P

ow
ys

 C
om

m
un

it
y

2
2

Fi
sh

gu
ar

d 
&

 G
oo

dw
ic

k 
To

w
n

1
1

H
ol

yh
ea

d 
To

w
n 

1
1

Ki
dw

el
ly

 T
ow

n
1

1

Ll
an

ar
m

on
 y

n 
Ia

l C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Ll
an

ba
dr

ig
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

2
3

Ll
an

dd
ul

as
 a

nd
 R

hy
d 

y 
Fo

el
 

C
om

m
un

it
y

1
2

1
4

Ll
an

de
ilo

 T
ow

n 
1

1

Ll
an

du
dn

o 
To

w
n

2
2

Ll
an

ed
i C

om
m

un
it

y
1

1

Ll
an

el
li 

Ru
ra

l 
5

5

Ll
an

fih
an

ge
l a

r A
rt

h 
C

om
m

un
it

y
1

1

Tudalen 161



66

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y/

 T
O

W
N

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

S
 (

C
O

N
T

IN
U

ED
)

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

or
 T

ow
n 

Co
un

ci
l

Cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
br

ea
ch

N
o 

ac
ti

on
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
Re

fe
r 

to
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e

Re
fe

r 
to

 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

io
n 

Pa
ne

l

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

Ll
an

ga
tt

oc
k 

Vi
bo

n 
A

ve
l 

C
om

m
un

it
y

1
1

Ll
an

ge
ly

nn
in

 C
om

m
un

it
y

1
1

Ll
an

ge
nn

it
h,

 L
la

nm
ad

oc
 &

 
C

he
rit

on
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
8

8

Ll
an

ha
ra

n 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

Ll
an

ov
er

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il

1
1

Ll
an

sa
nf

fr
ai

d 
G

la
n 

C
on

w
y 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Ll
an

sa
nn

an
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
2

2

Ll
an

sa
nt

ff
ra

ed
 C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

Ll
an

st
ef

fa
n 

&
 L

la
ny

br
i 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Ll
an

tw
it

 M
aj

or
 T

ow
n

1
1

Ll
an

w
nd

a 
C

om
m

un
it

y
1

1

Ll
ay

 C
om

m
un

it
y

3
3

M
um

bl
es

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

3
3

O
gm

or
e 

Va
lle

y 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
1

1

Pe
nm

ae
nm

aw
r T

ow
n 

3
1

4

Pe
nn

ar
d 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

7
7

Pr
es

ta
ty

n 
To

w
n 

1
1

Rh
yl

 T
ow

n
1

1

Su
lly

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

Te
m

pl
et

on
 C

om
m

un
it

y
1

1

Ty
w

yn
 T

ow
n 

7
2

1
1

11

Y
 F

el
in

he
li 

C
om

m
un

it
y 

1
1

TO
TA

L
78

8
6

7
2

1
3

10
5

Tudalen 162



67

FI
R

E 
&

 R
ES

C
U

E 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

IE
S

Fi
re

 &
 R

es
cu

e 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

Cl
os

ed
 

af
te

r 
in

it
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d
N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
br

ea
ch

N
o 

ac
ti

on
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
Re

fe
r 

to
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e

Re
fe

r 
to

 
A

dj
ud

ic
at

io
n 

Pa
ne

l

W
it

hd
ra

w
n

To
ta

l C
as

es
 

Cl
os

ed

M
id

 a
nd

 W
es

t 
W

al
es

1
1

2

Tudalen 163



68

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae

Pencoed

CF35 5LJ

Tel: 01656 641150

Fax:  01656 641199

E-mail:  ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Follow us on Twitter: @OmbudsmanWales

This document is printed on 100% recycled paper. It is available  

for downloading from the website: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk 

Tudalen 164



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

CANLLAWIAU DIWYGIEDIG YR OMBWDSMON  

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried yr adroddiad 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Y 
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk. 

 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Rhif  8

Tudalen 165



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

TH
 SEPTEMBER 2015  

 

 

REVISED OMBUDSMANS GUIDANCE 
 
The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has issued revised Guidance in relation to the 
Code of Conduct for Members of local authorities in Wales. 
 
A copy of the revised guidance is attached to this report. 
 
The main areas of change from previous versions of the Guidance are; 
 

1. An explanation of the 2 stage test employed by the Ombudsman when determining 
whether or not to investigate. 

2. Further guidance on the use of social media and political expression 
3. Further guidance on declarations of interests 

 
As the guidance was published in April 2015 it was taken in to account when preparing and 
presenting the Code of Conduct training in June of this year. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

 

Tudalen 166



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:          Linda Rees Jones                              Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 167



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:       Linda Rees Jones                                  Head of Administration and Law                                              

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

Tudalen 168



The Code of Conduct
for members of local authorities in Wales

Guidance from the 

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
for members of county and county borough councils,  

fire and rescue authorities, and  

national park authorities

Tudalen 169



2

Preface

This revised guide from me as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales provides an overview of the 

Model Code of Conduct (“the Code”) introduced in 2008. It is intended to help you as a member 

to understand your obligations under the Code. The Code applies to all members and co-opted 

members of local authorities, community councils, fire and rescue authorities and national park 

authorities in Wales. As a member, you are required to sign up to it as part of your declaration of 

acceptance of office. The Code does not apply to the actions of authorities as a whole, or to the 

conduct of their officers and employees. There is a separate code of conduct applying to officers of 

local authorities in Wales. 

This is the third version of this guidance and is my first as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales. 

This version, for the first time, explains the revised two stage test that I will consider when deciding 

whether to investigate or to continue with an investigation of a breach of the Code to the stage of 

referring the matter to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales. It also includes 

further guidance on the use of social media and political expression, and aims to provide assistance 

to members on the issue of interests which some members find challenging. As before, it excludes 

guidance which only relates to town and community councillors. It contains examples drawn from 

recent cases considered by my office, standards committees across Wales and the Adjudication 

Panel for Wales. 

The following pages aim to provide you with a general understanding of the Code and its 

requirements. Section 1 provides an introduction, while Section 2 outlines your obligations under 

the Code, referencing specific paragraphs for further information. Sections 3 and Section 4 deal with 

general issues surrounding interests. You can obtain a copy of the Code by downloading it from your 

authority’s website or contacting your Monitoring Officer. 

The guide is intended to help you to understand the Code and how it applies, but it cannot hope 

to cover every conceivable circumstance. Ultimately, it is your responsibility to take specific advice 

from your Monitoring Officer and to make a decision as to the most suitable course of action. 

I have used examples throughout to help to bring the guidance to life. These examples are drawn 

from actual cases considered by my office and also include decisions reached by local standards 

committees and the Adjudication Panel for Wales. Some of these decisions may have been taken 

by my predecessor, but throughout, for ease of reference, I will refer to them as my own decisions. 

Further examples of recent cases will be published quarterly in “The Code of Conduct Casebook” 

which is on my website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk 

As a member you will be offered training on the Code whether by a Monitoring Officer or from a 

representative body. I expect all members to take advantage of such training, including refresher 

courses, to ensure that they are fully aware of the provisions of the Code and the standards 

Tudalen 170



3

expected of them in public life. I would also urge members to continue to avail themselves of local 

arrangements for dealing with member versus member complaints which have proved very effective 

as a means of resolving many of these cases.

Since taking up my office I have become increasingly concerned about the number of low level 

complaints that are being received. Whilst these complaints appear to have been generated by a 

small number of members, in these challenging times of public austerity, it is increasingly important 

to ensure the effective use of my office’s resources and that any investigation undertaken is 

proportionate and required in the wider public interest.

We should continue to work collaboratively to drive up standards in public life and to create a 

culture where members are respected for their selflessness, objectivity and respectful behaviour. 

If we do so we can build public confidence in our democratic institutions and promote good 

governance for the benefit of the people of all of our communities.

Nick Bennett 

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

March 2015

Tudalen 171



4

This statutory guidance is issued by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales under Section 68 of 

the Local Government Act 2000 for elected, co-opted and appointed members of:

• county and county borough councils

• fire and rescue authorities, and

• national park authorities

in Wales.

Acknowledgement 

This guidance draws on guidance prepared and issued by Standards for England on the former 

English Code of Conduct. It has been extended and amended to refer to the Welsh Code and 

to the Welsh context. I would like to thank the legal services department of Ceredigion County 

Council for the use of its flowcharts on interests which are appended to this guidance. 

Separate guidance is available for members of community councils.

First published April 2010.

This edition published March 2015.

Tudalen 172



5

Content

  Page

Part 1 – Introduction 6

• The Principles 9

• Deciding when the Code applies to you 11

Part 2 – General obligations under the Code 13

• Equality  13

•  Treating others with respect and consideration 14

•  Bullying and harassment 16

•  Compromising the impartiality of officers of the authority  17

•  Disclosing confidential information 18

•  Preventing access to information  19

•  Disrepute  20

•  Reporting breaches of the Code 20

•  Vexatious complaints  21

•  Co-operating with investigations  22

•  Using your position improperly  23

•  The authority’s resources  24

•  Using resources for proper purposes only  24

•  Reaching decisions objectively  25

•  Considering advice provided to you and giving reasons  26

•  Expenses  27

•  Gifts and hospitality 28

Part 3 – Personal and prejudicial interests 29

• Personal Interests  29

•  What to do when you have a personal interest  34

•  Prejudicial Interests  35

•  Does the matter fall within one of the exemptions?  36

•  Overview and Scrutiny Committees  37

•  What to do when you have a prejudicial interest 38

•  Executive or cabinet roles  39

•  Dispensations 40

Part 4 – Registration of Interests 42

• Sensitive information 43

• Gifts and hospitality 44

Appendices – Flowcharts  45

• Appendix 1 Personal Interests 45

• Appendix 2 Prejudicial Interests 46 Tudalen 173



6

1. Introduction

The Local Government Act 2000 created a new ethical framework for local government in Wales. 

It created a power for the National Assembly for Wales to issue a model code of conduct to apply 

to members and co-opted members of all relevant authorities in Wales. This power was transferred 

to the Welsh Ministers by the Government of Wales Act 2006. In 2008, Welsh Ministers issued the 

current Model Code of Conduct which all relevant authorities are required to adopt. 

Authorities were required to adopt the Code in its model form in its entirety, but could make 

additions to the Code, provided these were consistent with the Model. This was intended to 

give certainty to members and the public as to what standards are expected. It helps to ensure 

consistency throughout relevant authorities, avoiding confusion for members on more than one 

authority and for the public. 

Standards committees of principal councils are required to assist members and co-opted members 

of their authorities, together with members of town and community councils in their area, to 

observe the Code and to arrange for advice and training to be provided. I strongly recommend 

that all members should attend training and take advice where it is offered. I support individual 

authorities which require members to attend training on the Code before they can join certain 

decision-making bodies such as planning committees. 

As a member, when you sign your declaration of acceptance of office, you are confirming that 

you will observe the Code. It is your personal responsibility to ensure that you understand your 

obligations under the Code and act in a way which shows that you are committed to meeting the 

high standards of conduct that are expected of you as a member. 

Ultimately you are responsible for the decisions you take and can be held to account for them. 

However, this does not imply that you can take decisions which breach the Code or contrary to 

advice simply because the decision is yours to take. This guidance explains the constraints you 

are expected to act within to ensure members of the public can be confident in the way in which 

authorities in Wales reach their decisions.

It is my role as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales to independently investigate serious 

complaints that members of local authorities in Wales have breached the Code. In determining 

whether to investigate a complaint or whether to continue an investigation of a breach of the 

Code I will use a two stage test. At the first stage, I will aim to establish whether there is direct 

evidence that a breach actually took place. The level of proof that is required is on the balance 

of probabilities. If that evidential test is met, at the second stage, I will consider whether an 

investigation or a referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales is required 

in the public interest. Some of the public interest factors that I will consider are set out below. 

These factors are not exhaustive and the weight to be attached to each will vary according to the 

facts and merits of each case. 

Tudalen 174



7

Public interest factors include:

• the seriousness of the breach

•  whether the member deliberately sought personal gain for themselves or another person at the 

public expense

•  whether the circumstances of the breach are such that a member has misused a position of trust  

or authority and caused harm to a person 

•  whether the breach was motivated by any form of discrimination against the victim’s ethnic or 

national origin, gender, disability, age, religion or belief, sexual orientation or gender identity 

•  whether there is evidence of previous similar behaviour on the part of the member

•  whether the investigation or referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for 

Wales is required to maintain public confidence in elected members in Wales

•  whether investigation or referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales 

is a proportionate response, namely, whether it is likely that the breach would lead to a sanction 

being applied to the member (I will take account of the outcomes of previous cases considered by 

standards committees across Wales and the Adjudication Panel for Wales), and whether the use of 

resources in carrying out an investigation or hearing by a standards committee or the Adjudication 

Panel for Wales would be regarded as excessive when weighed against any likely sanction.

I have a wide discretion as to whether to begin or continue an investigation. I have revised the two 

stage test adopted by my predecessor in order to provide greater clarity on how I will usually exercise 

my discretion and to secure a degree of consistency and certainty in the decisions that I reach. 

The process I use for investigating complaints is on my website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk 

Local Resolution Process  

Most local authorities across Wales have implemented local resolution procedures to deal with 

low level complaints which are made by a member against a fellow member. These arrangements 

are proving to be effective at resolving many of these kinds of complaints. Typically these 

complaints continue to be about alleged failures to show respect and consideration for others as 

required by paragraph 4(b) of the Code or the duty not to make vexatious, malicious or frivolous 

complaints against other members under paragraph 6(1)(d) of the Code. Whilst a member may still 

complain directly to me about a fellow member if the matter being complained about concerns 

paragraphs 4(b) and 6(1)(d), I am very likely to refer the matter back to the Council’s Monitoring 

Officer for consideration under this process. In my view such complaints are more appropriately 

resolved informally and locally in order to speed up the complaints process and to ensure that my 

resources are devoted to the investigation of serious complaints. 

Tudalen 175



8

The aim of local resolution is to resolve matters at an early stage so as to avoid the unnecessary 

escalation of the situation which may damage personal relationships within the authority and 

the authority’s reputation. The process may result in an apology being made by the member 

concerned. However, where a member has repeatedly breached their authority’s local protocol 

then I would expect the Monitoring Officer to refer the matter back to me. If I see a pattern of 

similar complaints being made to me by the same members I will consider this to be a serious 

matter and decide whether the persistent reporting of such complaints is conduct which in itself 

should be investigated as a potential breach of the Code.

When I have investigated a complaint I may refer the matter to a standards committee or the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales. This will depend on the nature of and individual circumstances of  

the alleged breach.

Standards Committees 

Standards committees are made up of independent lay members and of elected members of the 

authority. When I refer a case to a standards committee its role is to decide whether a member 

has breached the Code and whether a sanction should be imposed. In my view, hearings should be 

conducted in public unless there are valid reasons for not doing so to promote public confidence 

in standards in public life. Where a standards committee concludes that a member or co-opted 

member has failed to comply with the relevant authority’s code of conduct, it may determine that: 

• no action needs to be taken in respect of that failure 

• the member or co-opted member should be censured which takes the form of a public rebuke, or 

•  the member or co-opted member should be suspended or partially suspended from being a 

member of that authority for a period not exceeding six months.

A member may appeal against the determination of a standards committee to the Adjudication 

Panel for Wales.

The Adjudication Panel for Wales  

When I refer a case to the Adjudication Panel for Wales its role is also to determine whether a 

member has breached the Code and whether a sanction should be imposed. In addition, it will 

consider any appeals against the determination of a standards committee. The powers available to 

the Panel when it determines that a member or co-opted member has failed to comply with the 

Code are: 

•  to disqualify the respondent from being, or becoming, a member of the relevant authority 

concerned or any other relevant authority for a period of up to five years 

•  to suspend or partially suspend the respondent from being a member or co-opted member of 

the relevant authority concerned for up to 12 months, or 

•  to take no action in respect of the breach. In such cases the Panel may deem it appropriate to 

warn the member as to their future conduct. Where such a warning has been recorded it is likely 
Tudalen 176



9

to be taken into account during any future hearing where the member is found again to have 

failed to follow the provisions of the Code.

Where either a standards committee or the Panel suspends or partly suspends a member or co-

opted member that member is still subject to the Code, in particular the provisions set out in 

paragraphs 6(1)(a) (bringing the office of member or authority into disrepute) and paragraph 7(a) 

(improperly using the position of member).

The Principles

The Local Government Act empowered the National Assembly to issue principles to which you 

must have regard in undertaking your role as a member. The Code is based on these principles 

which are designed to promote the highest possible standards. These principles draw on the 7 

Principles of Public Life which were set out in the Nolan Report “Standards of Conduct in Local 

Government in England, Scotland and Wales”. Three more were added to these: a duty to uphold 

the law, proper stewardship of the Council’s resources and equality and respect for others. 

Members elected to local authorities give generously of their time and commitment for the benefit 

of their communities. The principles provide a framework for channelling your commitment in 

a way which will reflect well on you and your authority, and which will give your communities 

confidence in the way that your authority is governed. 

The individual sections of the Code are designed to support the implementation of the Principles. 

For example, the Selflessness principle is covered by Section 7 of the Code – Selflessness and 

Stewardship. The current principles were set out in a statutory instrument1 and are detailed below.

1. Selflessness

  Members must act solely in the public interest. They must never use their position as members 

to improperly confer an advantage on, or to avoid a disadvantage for, themselves or to 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on others.

2. Honesty

  Members must declare any private interests relevant to their public duties and take steps to 

resolve any conflict in a way that protects the public interest.

3. Integrity and Propriety

  Members must not put themselves in a position where their integrity is called into question 

by any financial or other obligation to individuals or organisations that might seek to influence 

them in the performance of their duties. Members must on all occasions avoid the appearance 

of such behaviour.

1The Conduct of Members (Principles) (Wales) Order 2001 SI 2001 No.2276 (W.166)
Tudalen 177



10

4. Duty to Uphold the Law

  Members must act to uphold the law and act on all occasions in accordance with the trust 

that the public has placed in them.

5.  Stewardship

  In discharging their duties and responsibilities members must ensure that their authority’s 

resources are used both lawfully and prudently.

6. Objectivity in Decision-making

  In carrying out their responsibilities including making appointments, awarding contracts, or 

recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, members must make decisions on merit. 

Whilst members must have regard to the professional advice of officers and may properly 

take account of the views of others, including their political groups, it is their responsibility to 

decide what view to take and, if appropriate, how to vote on any issue.

7. Equality and Respect

  Members must carry out their duties and responsibilities with due regard to the need to 

promote equality of opportunity for all people, regardless of their gender, race, disability, 

sexual orientation, age or religion, and show respect and consideration for others.

8. Openness

  Members must be as open as possible about all their actions and those of their authority.   

They must seek to ensure that disclosure of information is restricted only in accordance   

with the law.

9. Accountability

  Members are accountable to the electorate and the public generally for their actions and for 

the way they carry out their responsibilities as a member. They must be prepared to submit 

themselves to such scrutiny as is appropriate to their responsibilities.

10.  Leadership

  Members must promote and support these principles by leadership and example so as to 

promote public confidence in their role and in the authority. They must respect the impartiality 

and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees.

The principles are not part of the Model Code of Conduct, and failure to comply with the 

Principles is not of itself, therefore, indicative of a breach of the Code. However, it is likely that a 

failure, for example, to adhere to the principle concerning equality and respect would constitute 

a breach of the requirements of paragraphs 4(a) and 4(b) of the Code in respect of equality of 

opportunity and respect. 

In any event, the Principles offer a sound basis for your conduct in office and I encourage members 

to have regard to them at all times.

Tudalen 178



11

Deciding when the Code applies to you 

See Paragraphs 2 and 3

Members are entitled to privacy in their personal lives, 

and many of the provisions of the Code only apply to you 

when you are acting in your role as member or acting as a 

representative of your authority. However, as there may be circumstances in which your  

behaviour in your private life can impact on the reputation and integrity of your authority,  

some of the provisions of the Code apply to you at all times. 

When reaching a decision as to whether the Code applies to you at a particular time I will have 

regard to the particular circumstances and the nature of your conduct at that time. 

Before considering your obligations under the Code you should first consider whether the Code 

applies and, if so, what provisions.

When does the Code apply?  

 •  Whenever you act in your official capacity, including whenever you are conducting the 

business of your authority or acting, claiming to act, or give the impression you are acting, in 

your official capacity as a member or as a representative of your authority 

 •  At any time, if you conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 

bringing your office or your authority into disrepute or if you use or attempt to use your 

position to gain an advantage or avoid a disadvantage for yourself or any other person or if 

you misuse your authority’s resources. 

Where you act as a representative of your authority on another relevant authority, or any other 

body, you must, when acting for that other authority, comply with their code of conduct. When you 

are nominated by your authority as a trustee of a charity you are obliged when acting as such to do 

so in the best interests of that charity, in accordance with charity law and with the guidance which 

has been produced by the Charity Commission (see its website: www.charity-commission.gov.uk). 

If you are acting as a representative of your authority on another body, for example on the board 

of a housing association, which does not have a code of conduct relating to its members, you must 

comply with your authority’s own Code unless it conflicts with any legal requirements that the 

other body has to comply with. 

If you refer to yourself as councillor, the Code will apply to you. This applies in conversation, in 

writing, or in your use of electronic media. There has been a significant rise in complaints to me 

concerning the use of Facebook, blogs and Twitter. If you refer to your role as councillor in any way 

or comments you make are clearly related to your role then the Code will apply to any comments 

you make there. Even if you do not refer to your role as councillor, your comments may have the 

effect of bringing your office or authority into disrepute and could therefore breach paragraph 6(1)

(a) of the Code. 

Consider conduct 

in your public & 

private life

Tudalen 179



12

The Welsh Local Government Association has produced useful guidance on social media entitled 

“Social Media: A Guide for Councillors”. The guidance aims to provide you with a clearer idea about 

how you can use social media, the possible pitfalls and how to avoid them. It is available on their 

website at www.wlga.gov.uk or by calling 029 2046 8600. 

If you are nominated by your authority as the director of a company (a stock transfer housing 

association for example) you are obliged to act in the best interests of the company. If it has a 

code of conduct for its directors you must abide by it. If it does not, you must comply with your 

authority’s Code, except on the rare occasions where it conflicts with any legal obligations the 

company may have. 

If you are suspended from office for any reason, you must still observe those elements of the 

Code which apply, particularly as set out in paragraph 2(1)(d), while you are suspended.

Example 

Councillor B was nominated by a county borough council to serve as a board member of a stock 

transfer housing association. The Chief Executive of the housing association copied all board 

members into a confidential e-mail to the Chief Executive of the Council. Councillor B admitted 

sending the e-mail to the local press and said that he had done so because he felt that his duty as 

a councillor over-rode his duty as a board member of the housing association. Councillor B was 

found to have breached paragraph 3(a) of the Council’s Code by disclosing the e-mail in breach of 

the board’s own code of conduct. He was also found to have brought his office and authority into 

disrepute by making a misleading statement that “he recently had to withdraw” from the board of 

the housing association when he had been removed with immediate effect for the serious breach 

of confidentiality. 

Example 

An on-line poll about a person accused of murder which contained inappropriate language was 

set up using Councillor B’s council-provided laptop, internet access and his council e-mail address. 

Councillor B said he personally had not set up the poll. However, as the Council had provided 

him with the laptop he was responsible for it. He also made disparaging comments about housing 

benefit claimants on his Facebook page when responding to a request for advice in his councillor 

role. The Adjudication Panel found that Councillor B had acted in his official capacity because he 

had used his council-provided equipment and e-mail address.

Therefore, he could reasonably be regarded as representing himself as a councillor.

Tudalen 180



13

2. General obligations under the Code

If you consider that the Code applies to you at a particular time then you must consider what 

provisions may apply and your obligations under the Code. I have referred to each paragraph below 

to provide you with some guidance on your general obligations.

Equality

See Paragraph 4(a)

You must carry out your duties with due regard to the principle that there should be equality of 

opportunity for all people regardless of their gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion.

You should at all times seek to avoid discrimination. There are four main forms of discrimination: 

 •  Direct discrimination: treating people differently because of their gender, race, disability, 

sexual orientation, age or religion

 •  Indirect discrimination: treatment which does not appear to differentiate between people 

because of their gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion, but which 

disproportionately disadvantages them 

 •  Harassment: engaging in unwanted conduct on the grounds of gender, race, disability, sexual 

orientation, age or religion, which violates another person’s dignity or creates a hostile, 

degrading, humiliating or offensive environment 

 •  Victimisation: treating a person less favourably because they have complained of 

discrimination, brought proceedings for discrimination, or been involved in complaining about 

or bringing proceedings for discrimination. 

The Equality Act 2010 (as amended) reinforces the importance of this part of the Code. It imposes 

positive duties to eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment and to promote equality. 

Under equality laws, your authority may be liable for any discriminatory acts which you commit. 

This will apply if you do something in your official capacity in a discriminatory manner. 

You must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to any of the prohibited forms of 

discrimination, or to do anything which hinders your authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties 

under equality laws. Such conduct may cause your authority to break the law, and you may find 

yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the Code. 

You must also be mindful that at all times including when acting in your private capacity you must 

not act in a way that would bring your Council into disrepute. It is likely that engaging in behaviour 

which could be considered to be in breach of the Equality Act in your private capacity would fall 

into this category.

Tudalen 181



14

Example 

A member of a county council was a member of the Council’s Recruitment Panel to appoint a new Chief 

Executive. Five applicants were shortlisted. After one candidate had finished his presentation and left the 

room Councillor A said “good candidate, shame he’s black”. The Adjudication Panel for Wales found that 

paragraph 4(a) of the Code had been breached and that Councillor A had brought the office of member 

and his authority into disrepute (in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code).

Treating others with respect    
and consideration

See Paragraph 4(b)

Freedom of expression is a right which applies to all 

information and ideas, not just those that are found favourable. 

However it is a right that may be restricted in certain circumstances, for example,  

for the protection of the rights and interests of others. A member’s freedom of expression  

attracts enhanced protection when the comments are political in nature. Therefore, the criticism 

of opposition ideas and opinion is considered to be part of democratic debate, and it is unlikely 

that such comments would ever be considered to be a breach of the Code. 

“Political” comments are not confined to those made within the council chamber and, for example, 

include comments members may generally make on their authority’s policies or about their 

political opponents. Therefore, unless the comments are highly offensive or outrageous, it is 

unlikely that I will investigate and will take the view that the member needs a “thicker skin”.

I may also decline to investigate a complaint where the member has raised “political” issues with 

officers. This would not however include threats to an officer’s position or wellbeing. Recent case 

law has confirmed that council officers should be protected from unwarranted comments that 

may have an adverse effect on good administration and states that it is in the public interest that 

officers are not subject to unwarranted comments that disenable them from carrying out their 

duties or undermine public confidence in the administration. That said, the officers who are in 

more senior positions, for example Chief Executives or Heads of Services, will also be expected to 

have a greater degree of robustness.

I expect members to afford colleagues, opponents and officers the same courtesy and 

consideration they show to others in their everyday lives. Whilst I recognise that political debate 

can, at times, become heated, the right to freedom of expression should not be used as an excuse 

for poor conduct generally. Such poor conduct can only discredit the role of member in the eyes 

of the public. 

When considering such complaints I will take into account the specific circumstances of the case, 

whether, in my view, the member was entitled to question the officer concerned, whether there was an 

attempt to intimidate or undermine the officer and the content and context of what has been said. 

Political comments can 

attract Article 10 rights

Tudalen 182



15

Example 

An appeal tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales considered an appeal by Councillor X 

against the decision of the Council’s Standards Committee. The Standards Committee found that 

Councillor X had failed to show respect and consideration to another member by prohibiting him 

from e-mailing the clerk and accessing the Council’s website. Councillor X also made comments in 

an e-mail to the other members regarding his colleague’s shower habits. In doing this the Standards 

Committee found that Councillor X had brought the Council into disrepute. 

The Adjudication Panel found that Councillor X’s comments were political in nature and  

attracted the enhanced protection of Article 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights.  

The Standards Committee’s decision was overturned and the sanction rescinded. The decision  

of the Adjudication Panel can be found on the Panel’s website http://apw.wales.gov.uk   

(Ref: APW/001/2014-015/AT).

Example 

The Adjudication Panel upheld a finding of a standards committee of a failure to show respect 

and consideration for others by posting online comments about other members and the way 

in which the Council was run. The member sought judicial review of this decision. The Court 

found that whilst the comments which were posted were sarcastic and mocking and the tone 

ridiculed his fellow members, because the majority of the comments related to the way in which 

the Council was run, how its decisions were recorded and the competence of the members, the 

comments were “Political Expression”. The ruling said no account had been taken of the need for 

politicians to have “thicker skins”. In view of the member’s freedom of expression and the fact that 

the majority of comments were directed at fellow councillors, the finding of a breach in this case 

was a disproportionate interference with the member’s rights under Article 10 of the European 

Convention on Human Rights. The Standards Committee’s decision to censure the member was 

therefore set aside. 

Example 

A member of a town council wrote to a Deputy Minister of the Welsh Assembly Government 

about an employee (“Mr Smith”) of a county council, a letter which was also copied to the 

Council. In the letter the member questioned Mr Smith’s competence and motivation and he 

made a number of comments of a disparaging and personal nature about Mr Smith and his 

associates. He raised the issue of homosexuality and referred to it as a “notorious disability” and 

that “homosexuality is only a demon which can be driven out”. The member was referred to the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales. 

The Panel found that the member had breached paragraph 4(b) in that he had failed to show 

respect and consideration for others. It also found that by his use of words he had brought the 

office of member into disrepute in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code. 

The member was disqualified for 12 months from being or becoming a member of a local authority.Tudalen 183



16

Bullying and harassment

See Paragraph 4(c)

You must not use any bullying behaviour or harass any  

person including other members, council officers or  

members of the public. 

Harassment is repeated behaviour which upsets or annoys people. Bullying can be characterised as 

offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour may happen 

once or be part of a pattern of behaviour directed at a weaker person or person over whom you 

have some actual or perceived influence. Bullying behaviour attempts to undermine an individual 

or a group of individuals, is detrimental to their confidence and capability, and may adversely affect 

their health. This can be contrasted with the legitimate challenges which a member can make in 

questioning policy or scrutinising performance. An example of this would be debates in the chamber 

about policy, or asking officers to explain the rationale for the professional opinions they have put 

forward. You are entitled to challenge fellow councillors and officers as to why they hold their views.

When considering allegations of bullying and harassment I will consider both the perspective 

of the alleged victim, and whether the member intended their actions to be bullying. I will also 

consider whether the individual was reasonably entitled to believe they were being bullied. 

Bullying is often carried out face to face, but increasingly, it can be carried out in print or using 

electronic media. The standards of behaviour expected are the same, whether you are expressing 

yourself verbally or in writing. 

You need to ensure that your behaviour does not cross the line between being forceful and 

bullying. There can be no hard and fast rules governing every set of circumstances but the relative 

seniority of the officer will be a factor in some cases. As outlined under paragraph 4(b) of the Code 

very senior officers can be involved in robust discussion with members and be well placed to put 

their own point of view forcefully. The same is not true of more junior officers and members need 

to be aware of this. This is not to say that I condone the bullying of senior officers, only that the 

greater the power difference between the officer and the member the greater the likelihood that 

the officer will consider behaviour to constitute bullying. 

Recently, the High Court found that there is a public interest in protecting public confidence in 

unelected public servants which is to be balanced against the interests of open discussion on matters 

of public concern. It also found that all members should equally respect the mutual bond of trust and 

confidence between themselves and the officers which is crucial to good administration.

Local Authorities have appropriate channels for expressing concern about the performance of an 

officer and it is important that you raise issues about poor performance in the correct way and 

proper forum. Raising such issues in the context of a meeting with others present, especially if they 

are from outside bodies or are members of the public, is not acceptable. Neither is it acceptable to 

do so in the media, in your own publications or using blogs, tweets, Facebook or other electronic 

Consider your conduct 

from the other person’s 

perspective

Tudalen 184



17

means. If your criticism is a personal attack or of an offensive nature, you are likely to cross the line 

of what is acceptable behaviour. 

Example  

A county council member was disqualified from office for 2 years and 6 months by the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales following allegations of bullying, harassment, disrespect and bringing 

the office of member into disrepute. The alleged incidents occurred over a period of two years. 

During that time the member had made threatening comments to officers of both junior and senior 

grades. For example, comments such as, a number of managers of the Council had been dispensed 

with and there were more to go and “You won’t like the man I’ll become if I don’t get what I want....I 

don’t need to threaten you you’re an intelligent woman I know you’re listening to me”. 

The member appealed the decision and the matter was referred to the High Court where all  

but three breaches were upheld. The decision can be found on the Panel’s website 

http://apw.wales.gov.uk (Ref: APW/005/2010-011/CT).

Compromising the impartiality of officers of the authority

See Paragraph 4(d)

You must not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone who works for, or on 

behalf of, your authority. You should not approach anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the authority 

with a view to pressurising them to carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way. They must be 

neutral and should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality. 

For example, you should not get officers to help you prepare party political material, or to help you 

with matters relating to your private business. You should not provide or offer any incentive or reward in 

return for acting in a particular way or reaching a particular decision or threaten someone if they are not 

minded to act in a particular way. As well as avoiding pressurising officers in person, you need to avoid 

doing so in writing, using electronic media or in the press. 

Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for example, their reasons for 

proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have written, you must 

not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if 

doing so would prejudice their professional integrity. 

If a member develops a close personal relationship with an officer, this becomes a personal and 

possibly a prejudicial interest under the Code. I would encourage you to adhere to any protocol 

developed by your authority that deals with relationships between members and officers. 

Example  

The son and daughter-in-law of a member of a county borough council were neighbours of a family 

who were tenants of the Council. Complaints had been made about the family’s conduct. The member 

Tudalen 185



18

contacted officers of the Council regarding the family’s occupancy of the council property and its 

impact on his son’s family on a number of occasions, sometimes outside office hours. The calls were 

made in his role as elected member and he had direct access to officials because he was a member. 

He received a warning from the Deputy Monitoring Officer as to his conduct, which emphasised the 

powerful position elected members occupy when dealing with members of staff. 

Despite this he continued to contact officers about the matter including requesting an officer to visit his 

family “there and then” and accusing an officer of “tipping off” the family being complained about that 

noise monitoring equipment was being installed. 

The Adjudication Panel for Wales found that the conduct of the member was a persistent course of 

conduct over a period of 6 months intended to bring undue pressure upon council officers. It found that 

by his actions he had sought to compromise the impartiality of officers of the Council. It also found that 

the member had failed to show respect and consideration for others and that his actions amounted to 

harassment and he had used his position improperly to promote the interests of his own family. Given 

the accumulative nature of his dealings with officers and his making a false allegation that an officer had 

“tipped off” the family he had also brought the office of member into disrepute. 

The member was suspended from office for 12 months

Disclosing confidential information

See Paragraph 5(a)

You must not disclose confidential information, or information which should be reasonably 

regarded to be of a confidential nature, except in any of the following circumstances:  

 • you have the consent of the person authorised to give it  

 • you are required by law to do so. 

The Information Commissioner has issued helpful guidance on the Freedom of Information Act 

and Data Protection Act which is available on his website at www.ico.gov.uk or by calling   

0303 123 1113. As a member, you may be party to confidential information about individuals or 

organisations including personal or commercially sensitive matters. This might include information 

about people’s employment, or personal matters arising from social services work, for instance. 

Sometimes, these will be marked confidential. On other occasions, this will not be the case, but 

you must not disclose them even if they are not marked. If you are in any doubt, always ask your 

Monitoring Officer. 

As a general rule, you should treat items discussed in the confidential sections of meetings (exempt 

items) as confidential. These reports have usually been assessed by the author as containing 

sensitive information, following expert legal advice. The sensitivity of the information may decline 

over time, but you are strongly urged to take proper legal advice before disclosing it. Similarly, legal 

advice, whether provided by external lawyers or your authority’s in-house legal staff, is almost 

always covered by legal privilege and should not be disclosed. Tudalen 186



19

When information is provided to members during the course of an investigation I expect this to 

be treated in the strictest of confidence and it should not be disclosed to anyone other than the 

member’s legal or other adviser. If the information is disclosed to other persons I may consider 

this to be a breach of this paragraph of the Code. In addition members should not discuss the 

complaint with any of the witnesses, whether directly or indirectly, as such contact may also be 

construed to be a breach of the Code.

Example  

A member of a county borough council who sat on the Council’s adoption panel disclosed publicly 

details of a person who had applied to the panel to adopt a child. He could only have become 

aware of the information he disclosed by virtue of his membership of the panel. The Adjudication 

Panel found that the member had disclosed confidential information in breach of the Code. It 

suspended the member from the Council for 6 months.

Preventing access to information

See Paragraph 5(b)

You must not prevent any person from accessing information which they are entitled to by law. 

This includes information under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or those copies of minutes, 

agendas, reports and other documents of your authority which they have a right to access. To 

find out more about what types of information the public can access, contact the Information 

Commissioner’s Office by visiting www.ico.gov.uk or by calling 0303 123 1113 or for specific queries, 

you should ask your Monitoring Officer. 

Any information that you produce in your official capacity is liable to be subject to the disclosure 

requirements of the Freedom of Information Act, and your authority may be required to release 

it in response to a request. If you do not provide the information to the relevant officer of your 

authority on request, you will be in breach of the Code. 

Your authority needs to decide whether to disclose information or whether it may be covered by 

an exemption. Even if you believe that information you hold is exempt, you must provide it to your 

authority’s relevant officer to allow the authority to reach a decision. As well as being a breach of 

the Code, it is a criminal offence if information is destroyed after a Freedom of Information Act 

request has been received.

Example  

A leader of a county council refused to give the Council’s Information Officer a letter he had 

written to the Wales Audit Office on behalf of the Council’s Executive. As a result the Council 

could not respond appropriately to a Freedom of Information Act request which resulted in a 

complaint being made to the Information Commissioner’s Office. The member continued to refuse 

to disclose the letter despite having received clear and unequivocal advice from the Information 

Tudalen 187



20

Officer. His refusal led to an adverse finding from the Information Commissioner’s Officer. The 

Adjudication Panel found that the member had breached paragraphs 5(b) and 6(1)(a) (disrepute) in 

respect of this matter and other related matters. By the time the case was considered by the Panel 

the member had resigned from office. He was disqualified from holding office for 12 months.

Disrepute

See Paragraph 6(1)(a)

You must not behave in a way which could reasonably be 

regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute at  

any time. As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject  

to greater scrutiny than those of ordinary members of the public. You should be aware that your  

in both your public and private life might have an adverse impact on your office or your authority. 

You should also ensure that you do not engage in any behaviour that may prejudice an investigation 

undertaken by me or your Monitoring Officer as this may also constitute disrepute.

Dishonest and deceitful behaviour will bring your authority into disrepute, as may conduct which 

results in a criminal conviction, especially if it involves dishonest, threatening or violent behaviour, 

even if the behaviour happens in your private life. Making unfair or inaccurate criticism of your 

authority in a public arena might well be regarded as bringing your authority into disrepute. 

Inappropriate e-mails or social media posts might well bring the office of member into disrepute. 

You must also conduct yourself in an appropriate manner with others within the confines of a 

council’s building, regardless of whether your conduct is likely to be in the public domain.

Example  

A community councillor had been abusive to a shop proprietor and two members of her staff and 

had attempted to obtain a discount on a private purchase by saying it was being bought on behalf 

of the Community Council, and when his request for a discount was refused he had made threats 

against the business. The Adjudication Panel found that the member had brought the office of 

member into disrepute and suspended him for 9 months.

Reporting breaches of the Code

See Paragraph 6(1)(c)

If you reasonably believe that a breach of the Code has occurred, you must report it to me and 

to your Monitoring Officer. In order to have a reasonable belief that a breach has occurred, you 

will need to have direct evidence which supports this. If you are in doubt as to whether a breach 

has occurred, you should consult your Monitoring Officer as soon as possible. Where the breach 

is a very minor or technical one, or where there is no clear evidence that a breach occurred, 

Any conduct 

unbecoming of a member 

can constitute disrepute

Tudalen 188



21

your Monitoring Officer may advise you of the likely threshold I will set and suggest that the 

matter would be more appropriately dealt with through the authority’s local resolution process. 

Nonetheless, the decision as to whether to investigate a breach rests with me. The balance of any 

doubt should always favour reporting. It is helpful if you specify which aspect of the Code you 

believe has been breached. 

Where a member has reported a fellow member to their Monitoring Officer under the authority’s 

local resolution process, there is no need to report the matter to me as well. 

In determining whether to investigate a complaint of a breach I will use the two stage test that 

I have outlined on pages 6 and 7 above. You should ensure that you provide any evidence you 

have available when you make a complaint including minutes of meetings, correspondence, 

contemporaneous notes or e-mails. If there are other individuals who have witnessed the alleged 

breach, you should let us know who they are. This latter point is especially important because 

if I only have one person’s word against another’s, I may not be able to conclude with sufficient 

certainty that there is enough evidence to warrant pursuing the matter.

To report a breach, you can contact my office by phone at 0845 6010987, by e-mail to  

ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk or via the website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk  A special leaflet 

on making complaints about alleged breaches of the Code is available on request  or on the website.

Vexatious complaints

See Paragraph 6(1)(d)

You must not make complaints against other members or staff members or people working on 

behalf of your authority which are not founded in fact and which are motivated by malice (a desire 

to do them harm) or by political rivalry. Unfortunately, there have been instances where members 

have sought to bring complaints about rivals which are designed to disadvantage them, sometimes 

in the run-up to elections, and where the evidence of any breach is weak or non-existent. I 

consider that in the first instance such conduct should be considered under the relevant authority’s 

local resolution process. 

Where specific details of such complaints are passed to local press and media, this may prejudice 

an investigation and as I have explained may also be a breach of the Code. You must report well-

founded alleged breaches to me and to your Monitoring Officer, not to your local newspaper or 

radio station. The press will properly cover the business of any hearings and their outcomes, and 

members making allegations should not generate publicity in advance of these. 

The Code should not be used by members to pursue their political or private differences. You 

should therefore avoid making complaints which have little or no substance (frivolous complaints) 

which are designed mainly to annoy the person complained about, for example, when you may 

disagree with a member’s approach to your authority’s business or their role as member. Where 

Tudalen 189



22

I find evidence to suggest that a complaint has been made to my office which is not founded in 

fact and has been motivated by malice or political rivalry I will consider this to be a serious matter 

and I may investigate. Making vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints is not only a breach 

of this paragraph but may also be contrary to your other obligations under the Code such as the 

requirement not to bring your position as councillor into disrepute or not to use your position for 

an improper purpose. 

Example  

A member of a county borough council claimed that the leader of the Council had offered to 

provide another councillor and his group of members with office facilities if that councillor 

supported the leader’s preferred candidate for the post of Chief Executive. The evidence 

supported the leader’s position that the two matters were unconnected and that therefore the 

complaint was malicious. The Adjudication Panel suspended the member making the complaint  

for 12 months. 

Co-operating with investigations

See Paragraph 6(2)

You must co-operate with an investigation when it is being conducted by me or by your Monitoring 

Officer using our statutory powers. Not to do so is itself a breach of the Code. This means that 

you should reply promptly to all correspondence and telephone calls, make yourself available for 

interview if required and make available copies of any requested documents. It would be helpful 

if you could identify any concerns that you may have during the course of the investigation so 

that these can be promptly resolved. My office and your Monitoring Officer will make reasonable 

allowances for urgent pressures you face and arrangements previously made, for example, for 

holidays. However, you are expected to give priority to their investigations to avoid matters being 

needlessly drawn out. The requirement to co-operate with an investigation applies whether you 

are a witness or the subject of the investigation. 

I am aware of instances where members accused of breaches of the Code have sought to put 

pressure on the individuals making the complaint or on other witnesses. I regard such behaviour 

as entirely unacceptable. You must not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or 

is likely to be a complainant, a witness, or involved in the administration of any investigation or 

proceedings relating to a failure to comply with the Code. 

However much you may be concerned about allegations that you or a fellow councillor failed to 

comply with the Code, it is always wrong to bully, intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person 

involved in the investigation or hearing. Even though you may not have breached the Code, you 

will have your say during any independent investigation or hearing, and you should let these 

processes follow their natural course. 

Tudalen 190



23

If you intimidate a witness in an investigation about your conduct, for example, you may find 

yourself subject to another complaint that you have breached paragraph 4(c) of the Code with 

regard to bullying or harassment, or paragraph 6(1)(a) in respect of bringing the office of member 

into disrepute.

Using your position improperly

See Paragraph 7(a)

You must not use, or attempt to use, your position improperly to the advantage or disadvantage of 

yourself or anyone else. This paragraph applies at all times and not just when you are carrying 

out your duties as a member. You should not use, or attempt to use, your public office either for 

your or anybody else’s personal gain or loss. For example, your behaviour would be improper if you 

sought to further your own private interests through your position as a member. This also applies if 

you use your office to improve your wellbeing at the expense of others. 

Members who own land, or whose close personal associates own land, need to be particularly 

cautious where planning matters are concerned. If you are in any doubt, you should take advice. 

This applies equally to members of community councils when your Council is consulted on planning 

matters. Similarly, while it is reasonable to expect members to help constituents apply to the 

Council, for example, for housing, it is quite inappropriate to seek to influence the decision to be 

taken by the officers. 

The provisions of the Bribery Act 2010 apply to members carrying out their public functions. 

Should a member be convicted of a criminal offence under this Act then it is likely that they 

will also have used their position improperly (in breach of paragraph 7(a)) and be likely to have 

brought the office of member or their authority into disrepute in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a). If any 

complaint which is made to me concerns conduct which may amount to a criminal offence then I 

am likely to refer the matter to the police. 

Example  

A member of a county council had requested that land in his ownership in Village A be included 

as suitable for development in the Council’s Local Development Plan (LDP). When the Council was 

considering suitable settlement areas for inclusion in the LDP, officers recommended that land in 

the neighbouring village (Village B) be included in the draft plan instead. Despite having received 

very clear advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer on his prejudicial interest the member 

e-mailed the Council’s planning policy officer and outlined a number of arguments which he 

claimed favoured the inclusion of his land in Village A as opposed to the land in Village B. At the 

relevant time the draft plan had been disclosed to members of the Council on a confidential basis 

and had not been disclosed publicly. 

Tudalen 191



24

The Adjudication Panel found that by sending the e-mail the member had breached paragraph 7(a) 

of the Code by attempting to use his position improperly for his own advantage. At the hearing he 

sought to apportion blame on the Council’s Monitoring Officer for failing to advise and train him 

properly on the Code when this clearly was not the case. His actions also brought his office and 

the Council into disrepute. The member was disqualified from holding office for 18 months for this 

and other breaches of the Code.

The authority’s resources 

See Paragraph 7(b)

You must only use or authorise the use of the resources of the authority in accordance with its 

requirements. This paragraph also applies at all times. Where your authority provides you with 

resources (for example telephone, computer and other IT facilities, transport or support from 

council employees), you must only use these resources or employees for carrying out your local 

authority business and any other activity which your authority has authorised you to use them for. 

You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources made by your authority. 

Failure to comply with your authority’s rules is likely to amount to a breach of the Code. If you 

authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use your authority’s resources, you 

must take care to ensure that this is allowed by your authority’s rules.

Using resources for proper purposes only

See Paragraphs 7(b)(v) and 7(b)(vi)

You must make sure you use the authority’s resources for proper purposes only. It is not 

appropriate to use, or authorise others to use, the resources for political purposes, including party 

political purposes. When using the authority’s resources, you must have regard, if applicable, to any 

guidance issued by your authority. 

You should never use authority resources for purely political purposes, including designing and 

distributing party political material produced for publicity purposes. However, your authority may 

authorise you to use its resources and facilities for political purposes in connection with your 

authority’s business, for example, holding meetings of your political group. In this case, you must 

be aware of the limitations placed upon such use for these purposes. Members should also have 

regard to the fact that periods leading up to local government elections are particularly sensitive 

in this regard. Using your authority’s resources outside of these limitations is likely to amount 

to a breach of the Code. Some authorities will permit members to use authority-supplied IT 

equipment such as laptops for ancillary use. Provided that such usage is in line with the authority’s 

requirements, there would not be a breach, but sending mass e-mails as part of an election 

campaign, for example, would not be appropriate. 

Tudalen 192



25

Where, however, there is no policy or the policy is silent you may not use these resources for any 

political or private purposes. 

Example  

A member of a county council was found in breach of the Code for making improper use of his 

council-issued computer equipment for private purposes by downloading inappropriate adult 

pornographic images and sending a number of letters to a local newspaper, which he falsely 

represented as being from members of the public. The Adjudication Panel found that the member 

had misused the Council’s equipment in breach of the Code and had brought the office of member 

into disrepute. He was disqualified from being or becoming a member of a local authority for 2 

years and 6 months. 

Example  

A member of a county borough council was found in breach of the Code for using his council-

issued mobile phone excessively for private purposes. Whilst limited personal use was permitted 

under the Council’s IT policy a bill in excess of £1000 was incurred in respect of private calls which 

the member had made. The Adjudication Panel suspended the member for 9 months for this and 

other breaches. 

Reaching decisions objectively

See Paragraph 8(a)

When taking part in meetings of your authority, or when arriving at decisions relating to the 

authority’s business, you must do so with an open mind and objectively. During the decision-

making process you must act fairly and take proper account of the public interest. 

In some decisions, such as those taken by planning committees, you are required always to make 

your decisions on the basis of the facts in front of you, and not to have made your mind up 

in advance to such an extent that you are entirely unprepared to consider all of the evidence 

and advice you receive. Having a completely closed mind is known as pre-determination. You 

are entitled to hold a preliminary view about a particular matter in advance of a meeting (pre-

disposition) as long as you keep an open mind and are prepared to consider the merits of all the 

arguments and points made about the matter under consideration before reaching your decision. 

Pre-determination on the other hand would be where you have clearly decided on a course of 

action in advance of a meeting and are totally unwilling to consider the evidence and arguments 

presented on that matter during the meeting. Pre-determination could not only invalidate the 

decision, it would also amount to a breach of the Code. 

Tudalen 193



26

Section 78 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 prohibits a member of an overview or 

scrutiny committee meeting from voting on a question at a meeting, if before the meeting, the 

member has been given a party whip relating to the question. 

In order for me to investigate complaints of “whipping” of votes by political groups there must be 

written evidence or other corroborative evidence available of the whip. Suppositions based upon 

the voting patterns of particular groups will not be sufficient evidence of a whip.

Considering advice provided to you and giving reasons 

See Paragraph 8(b) 

You must have regard to all of the advice you receive from your authority’s officers, especially 

advice from the Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer and Chief Legal Officer 

where they give it under their statutory duties. Such advice may also be contained in policy and 

guidance documents produced by your authority. This is a complex area and there are provisions 

within other legislation which underpin it, but in general, it goes well beyond a requirement to simply 

consider and reject advice if it is not welcome. I expect members to follow the advice unless there are 

strong reasons not to do so, and where a decision is made not to follow advice, it is highly advisable 

to record the reasons for not doing so. 

It is worth reflecting also that this places a considerable onus on statutory officers to consider their 

formal advice carefully, and again, where they believe it is likely to be contentious, to keep a record 

of it. There may be isolated cases where advice is given to a member which, when followed, leads 

to a breach of the Code. In investigating such cases, if the evidence suggests that there has been a 

breach, I would generally regard the flawed advice as a factor in mitigation, rather than as evidence 

that no breach occurred. 

It is always helpful, if you can, to get advice as early as possible. If you can, ask for advice in  

good time before a meeting, rather than at the meeting or immediately before it starts. Make sure 

you give the officer concerned all of the information they need to take into account when giving  

you advice. 

If you seek advice, or advice is offered to you, for example, on whether you should register a 

personal interest, you should have regard to this advice before you make up your mind. Failure to 

do so may be a breach of the Code. 

You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory requirements and any 

reasonable requirements imposed by your authority. Giving reasons for decisions is particularly 

important in relation to regulatory decisions and decisions where people’s rights are affected but it 

is not confined to these. 

Tudalen 194



27

As a matter of good practice, where you disagree with officer recommendations in making a 

decision, you should give clear reasons for your decision. This applies to decisions to vote against 

the advice of the statutory officers, even if you lose the vote. If you decide to vote against their 

advice, you should ensure that your reasons for doing so are recorded in the relevant minutes. You 

should be aware that voting against the advice of the statutory officers without good reason may 

be a breach of the Code. 

In reaching decisions where the advice is not provided by the statutory officers, you should still 

have regard to the advice provided by officers and take it into account in reaching your decision. 

You may also wish to have regard to other advice you have received and, of course, to the position 

adopted by a political group of which you are a member. In some circumstances, such as planning 

decisions, you must not vote on the basis of a “whip” imposed by your group. In others, it is 

reasonable to do so but you should avoid having an entirely closed mind prior to a debate. Again, 

whatever the reasons for voting against officer advice, it is highly advisable to record them.

Example  

A member of a county council who chaired a council meeting refused to allow the Council’s 

Monitoring Officer to advise members during a debate about the Council’s “Annual Letter” from the 

Wales Audit Office. Also, when the Monitoring Officer did manage to intervene to express grave 

concerns about the way in which the proceedings were being conducted, he failed to have regard 

to the limited advice she was allowed to offer and simply said that he “noted her comments”. 

The member was found to have breached paragraph 8(a)(iii) of the Code. The Adjudication Panel 

took into account the member’s full apology and expressions of remorse for his behaviour and 

indicated that had the member not already accepted his wrongdoing it would have imposed a 

greater sanction than the 4 months’ suspension it imposed.

Expenses 

See Paragraph 9(a)

You need to follow the law and your authority’s requirements in claiming expenses and allowances. 

If you are in any doubt about your entitlements, or the proper way to claim, you should ask for 

advice. You need to keep proper records of expenditure supported by receipts where appropriate, 

so that you can properly evidence your claims. Even if a particular scheme does not require you to 

submit receipts, you are strongly advised to keep these so that you can prove how much you have 

actually spent on the items you are claiming, for example, for childcare. 

Tudalen 195



28

Example  

A member of a county borough council was alleged to have used the Child/Dependent Care 

Allowance to pay his wife to look after their daughter. During the investigation it transpired that 

he had paid his adult son (from a previous marriage) a regular weekly income to care for the child 

as and when required. The member was able to provide proof of the payments through receipts 

and cheque counterfoils. In view of this there was no evidence of any failure on the part of the 

member to comply with the Code. 

Gifts and hospitality

See Paragraph 9(b)

It is important that you do not accept any gifts or hospitality for yourself, or on behalf of others, 

which would place you under obligation or appear to do so. Accepting such gifts or hospitality 

could be regarded as compromising your objectivity when you make decisions or carry out the 

work of your Council. This is also true of any services or gifts in kind. 

This does not prevent you from attending official events such as a civic reception or working 

lunch where these are authorised by your authority. (See also the section on registering gifts and 

hospitality at page 44).

Tudalen 196



29

3. Personal and prejudicial interests

The elements of the Code which cover personal and prejudicial interests give rise to many 

questions from members. They are designed to safeguard the principles of selflessness and 

objectivity. They are intended to give members of the public confidence that decisions are being 

taken in their best interests, and not in the best interests of members of authorities or their close 

personal associates. 

Personal interests relate to issues where you or a close personal associate may have some link to 

a matter under discussion. These interests become prejudicial where an informed independent 

observer could conclude that the interest would influence your vote, or your decision.

In my experience it is the distinction between personal and prejudicial interests, and what action  

a member should take depending on the nature of their interest, that causes the most difficulty  

for members. 

The paragraphs below are designed to offer guidance in this area. I would strongly recommend that 

if you are in any doubt about whether you have a personal or prejudicial interest, and, if so, what 

you need to do, you should ask your Monitoring Officer for advice. However, the decision on what 

course of action should be taken remains with you. 

To provide some further assistance, I have attached two flowcharts at Appendix 1 and 2 which 

Ceredigion County Council’s Monitoring Officer designed to take you through the questions that 

you should ask when deciding whether you have an interest. They are for illustration purposes only 

and are not definitive.

Guidance on registering interests is at Section 4.

Personal Interests

See Paragraph 10

While you are carrying out your duties, you need to decide 

if you have a personal interest, and if so, whether you need 

to disclose it. Most members know that you need to disclose 

personal interests at meetings, but there are other occasions, such as when speaking to your 

authority’s officers about the matter concerned, when you may also need to do so. 

Listed below are some questions that you should ask when deciding if you have an interest.

Do you have a link or 

close connection to the 

item to be considered?

Tudalen 197



30

Do I have a personal interest? 

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority, including when making a decision, 

where it relates to or is likely to affect:

 1. your job or your business

 2. your employer, or any firm in which you are a partner or paid director

 3. any person who has paid towards the cost of your election or your expenses as a member 

 4.  any company in which you hold shares with a nominal value of more than £25,000 or where 

your holding is more than 1% of the total issued share capital, which has premises or land in 

your authority’s area

 5.  any contract that your authority makes with a firm in which you are a partner, paid director 

or hold shares in as described in 4

 6.  any land in which you have an interest and which is in your authority’s area (this is especially 

important in all planning matters including strategic plans)

 7.  any land let by your authority to a firm in which you are a partner, paid director or a body as 

set out in 4

 8. any body to which you have been elected, appointed or nominated by your authority

 9. any:  

  • public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

  • company, industrial and provident society, charity or body directed to charitable purposes

  • body whose main role is influencing public opinion or policy 

  • trade union or professional association

  •  private club, society or association operating in your authority’s area in which you have 

membership or are in a position of general control or management

 10.  any land in your authority’s area which you have a license to occupy for at least 28 days. 

It is always safer to declare an interest, however, if in doubt consult your Monitoring Officer. 

Ward and electoral division issues – including Paragraph 10(2)(b) 

If a member of the public could reasonably conclude that when you are taking a decision on 

behalf of the authority as a whole you are more influenced by issues in your ward or electoral 

division than by the interests of the authority as a whole, for example, if the authority needs to 

make a provision but you do not think it should be in your ward or electoral division, then you 

would have a personal interest. 

This paragraph has given rise to great interpretative difficulties. The crux of the problem is that a strict 

interpretation of the paragraph, as worded, could well preclude members from participating in any 

decision affecting their ward - whereas the underlying policy intention had been to limit the scope of 

this provision to decisions made by individual councillors in the exercise of executive functions. Tudalen 198



31

I do not believe that it would be in the public interest, or in the interests of local democracy, to 

adopt a literal interpretation as a matter of course. Therefore as a general rule, in exercising my 

discretion, the decision as to whether to investigate will be based on the assumption that the 

paragraph is actually directed at individual members making decisions in the exercise of executive 

functions and decisions such as those made at planning or licensing committees. 

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 outlines circumstances when members should not be regarded 

as having a closed mind when taking decisions. I will continue to review this in light of any future 

decisions and case law on the effect of this provision. 

Example  

The Adjudication Panel considered a case concerning this provision of the Code. The member had

declared his opposition to a controversial planning application in his election manifesto pledging 

to “work tirelessly on issues of concern” and to “oppose the current development proposal”. 

Having been elected the member voted against the first planning application which the Council 

considered when the application was refused. He was subsequently quoted in the local and 

national press defending his decision to oppose the development. The Adjudication Panel found 

that the member had acted in such a way that a member of the public might reasonably perceive 

a conflict between his role as a local councillor and his role in taking a decision on behalf of his 

authority. It suspended the member from the planning committee for a period of 3 months.

Matters affecting your well being or financial position 

If a decision might be seen as affecting your well being or financial position or the well being 

or financial position of any person who lives with you or with whom you have a close personal 

association to a greater extent than other people in your ward or, for members of authorities 

which do not have wards (for example, national parks) in your authority’s area, you have a personal 

interest. Examples of decisions of this kind include obvious issues like contracts being awarded to 

your partner’s company but also issues about the location of developments, where it might make 

a big difference to where you or your close personal associates live. Examples have included the 

location of playgrounds, where elected members have opposed them near their houses because of 

issues about noise. 

What is “a body exercising functions of a public nature”?  

The phrase “a body exercising functions of a public nature” has been subject to broad interpretation by the 

courts for a variety of different purposes. Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such 

bodies, here are some of the criteria to consider when deciding whether a body meets that definition: 

• Does that body carry out a public service? 

•  Is the body taking the place of local or central government in carrying out the function, for 

example, a care home with residents supported by social services? 

•  Is the body (including one outsourced in the private sector) exercising a function delegated to 

it by a public authority, for example, a private company collecting refuse for the authority? Tudalen 199



32

• Is the function exercised under legislation or according to some statutory power? 

• Can the body be judicially reviewed? 

Unless you answer ‘yes’ to one of the above questions, it is unlikely that the body in your case is 

exercising functions of a public nature. Examples of bodies included in this definition are health 

bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions and school governing bodies. If you 

need further information or specific advice on this matter, please contact your Monitoring Officer. 

What does “affecting well-being or financial position” mean?  

The term ‘well-being’ can be described as a condition of contentedness and happiness. Anything 

that could affect your quality of life, either positively or negatively, is likely to affect your 

well-being. A personal interest can affect you or your close personal associates positively and 

negatively. So if you or they have the potential to gain or lose from a matter under consideration, 

you need to declare a personal interest in both situations.

Who is a close personal associate? 

Close personal associates include people such as close friends, 

colleagues with whom you have particularly strong connections, 

business associates and close relatives. It does not include  

casual acquaintances, distant relatives or people you simply  

come in contact with through your role as member or your   

work in the local community. 

Close personal associates can also include someone with whom you have been in dispute, or whom you 

may be regarded as having an interest in disadvantaging. For example, being a member of the same golf club 

as another person would not of itself constitute a close personal association but having that person as a 

weekly golf partner might well do. If you are in doubt, you should ask your Monitoring Officer. 

What if I belong to an authority without wards or electoral divisions?  

If you are a member of an authority that does not have wards or electoral divisions, you will need 

to declare a personal interest whenever you consider a matter in a meeting of your authority 

if it affects the well-being or financial position of you or one or more of your close personal 

associates, more than it would affect other people in your authority’s area. If you are a local 

authority member of a fire authority, for example, you would need to declare an interest under this 

heading on matters concerning your nominating authority’s area. 

“Twin hatted” members  

If you are a member of both a community council and a county council you are not prevented from 

discussing the same matters at both. You may, for example, take part in a discussion about a planning 

Close personal associates 

include friends, relatives, 

business associates and 
those with whom you 
have been in dispute

Tudalen 200



33

application about which your Community Council has been consulted and still go on to participate in 

a decision about the application if you sit on the Planning Committee of your County Council. 

If you do so, you would be well advised to state at the Community Council meeting that you 

would be looking at the matter afresh when you consider it at the County Council meeting, 

and that you would take into account all of the information and advice provided to you. At 

the Planning Committee, you should make it clear that you are not bound by the views of the 

Community Council. The advice about objective decision making in respect of paragraphs 8(a) and 

10(2)(b) of the Code is also relevant here. 

Obviously, if the application was one submitted by the Community Council, then you would have 

both a personal and a prejudicial interest, and you would be required to declare it and withdraw in 

line with the guidance on “What to do when you have a prejudicial interest” below. 

Example  

Councillor F participated in a meeting which was considering whether to approve the 

complainant’s nomination for the post of school governor; Councillor F’s husband had also applied 

for the post. Not only did the Adjudication Panel find that she should have declared a personal 

interest in the item of business by virtue of her close personal association with her husband, it also 

took the view that as there had been a history of animosity directed towards the member by the 

complainant which had been reported publicly, she also had a personal interest by virtue of her 

close personal association with the complainant. 

A further element to this complaint was that after the complainant had made a complaint to me 

about the member, the member sat on the Council’s Standards Committee when it considered a 

separate complaint from the complainant against another member. The Adjudication Panel took 

the view that, in light of the acrimonious relationship between the member and the complainant, 

the member’s participation in the Standards Committee hearing could reasonably have been 

regarded as affecting the complainant’s wellbeing because she was entitled to a fair and unbiased 

hearing of her complaint.

What if I am not aware of my personal interest?  

Your obligation to disclose a personal interest to a meeting only applies when you are aware of or 

reasonably ought to be aware of the existence of the personal interest. Clearly you cannot be 

expected to declare something of which you are unaware. It would be impractical to expect you 

to research into the employment, business interests and other activities of all your close associates 

and relatives. However, you should not ignore the existence of interests which, from the point of 

view of a reasonable and objective observer, you should have been aware.

Tudalen 201



34

What to do when you have 
a personal interest 

See Paragraph 11

If you decide that you have a personal interest then you must 

take the following action before the matter is discussed or as 

soon as it becomes apparent to you, except in limited circumstances:

 •   declare that you have a personal interest, and the nature of that interest 

 -  at meetings  

 -  when making written representations (including e-mails, faxes etc.) 

 -  when making oral representations, even if your interest is on the register of interests. 

 •   confirm your interest by e-mail or in writing to the officer concerned and to the Monitoring 

Officer within 14 days

 •  consider whether you have a prejudicial interest (see below). 

If you are making representations in writing to another member or an officer, you must include 

details of any personal interests you have. Similarly, if you are speaking with an officer or member 

in person, by phone or video conference you should tell them about any personal interest you 

have before making representations or when the interest becomes apparent. The Ombudsman 

would generally expect officers to make a record of any conversation in which a member has 

declared an interest and attach it to the appropriate file. 

If you are making a decision as part of an executive or board, you must make sure that the written 

record of that decision (for example, minutes of a cabinet meeting) includes details of your 

interest. If you have disclosed an interest at a meeting which has not previously been recorded, you 

must give it in writing to your authority in line with the arrangements set out by your Monitoring 

Officer. Normally, this will mean before, or immediately after the meeting concerned or as soon 

as possible thereafter. As a minimum, you need to say in writing what the interest is, what business 

considered by the meeting it relates to and you need to sign it. 

If you have agreed with your Monitoring Officer that the information about your personal interest 

is sensitive information then you should disclose the existence of a personal interest and confirm 

that the Monitoring Officer has agreed that the information about it is sensitive. More information 

about this is included in the separate section below. 

If you declare a personal interest you can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the matter, 

unless your personal interest is also a prejudicial interest. What constitutes a prejudicial interest 

is outlined in the following section.

Once disclosed you can 

stay & participate if your

 interest is not prejudicial

Tudalen 202



35

Prejudicial Interests

See Paragraph 12

Do I have a prejudicial interest? 

Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a 

matter if any of the following conditions applies: 

 • the matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of business (see below), or

 •  the matter relates to a licensing or regulatory matter (see paragraph 12(3)), 

and  

a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your personal 

interest is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

What is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement?  

If a reasonable member of the public with knowledge of all the relevant facts would think that 

your judgement of the public interest might be prejudiced, then you have a prejudicial interest.  

This is an objective test. You must decide not whether you would take the decision without 

prejudice, but whether you would be seen as doing so. 

You must ask yourself whether a member of the public, if he or she knew all the relevant facts, 

would think that your personal interest was so significant that it would be likely to prejudice your 

judgement. In other words, the interest must be perceived as likely to harm or impair your ability to 

judge the public interest. 

The mere existence of local knowledge, or connections within the local community, will not 

normally be sufficient to meet the test. There must be some factor that might positively harm your 

ability to judge the public interest objectively. The nature of the matter is also important, including 

whether a large number of people are equally affected by it or whether you or a smaller group are 

particularly affected. 

Some general principles must be remembered when applying this test. You should clearly act in the 

public interest and not in the interests of any close personal associates. You are a custodian of the 

public purse and the public interest and your behaviour and decisions should reflect this responsibility. 

You would have a prejudicial interest in a planning application proposal if a close personal 

associate of yours (for example, your son or a good friend) lives next to the proposed site. This 

is because your close personal associate would be likely to be affected by the application to a 

greater extent than the majority of the inhabitants of the ward or electoral division affected by the 

decision (or authority, if your authority does not have wards) and this gives you a personal interest 

in the issue. The close personal association means a reasonable member of the public might think 

that it would prejudice your view of the public interest when considering the planning application. 

It does not matter whether it actually would or not. 

Do not be swayed by   

what you think - consider  

what a member of the public 

would reasonably think

Tudalen 203



36

In other cases, where there has been a dispute between you and an individual who could be 

disadvantaged by a decision, an informed reasonable member of the public might conclude that 

you would be inclined to vote accordingly, whether this is the case or not. 

Does the matter fall within one of the exemptions?

See Paragraph 12(2)

A member will not have a prejudicial interest if the business falls within one of a number of 

exemptions which are set out below. 

The business relates to: 

 • another relevant authority of which you are also a member

 •  another public authority or a body exercising functions of a public nature in which you hold 

a position of general control or management

 • a body to which you have been elected, appointed or nominated by your authority

 •  your role as school governor where you have not been appointed or nominated by your authority 

(for example, a parent governor) unless the business specifically relates to your school

 • your role as a member of a health board where you have not been appointed by your authority 

 •  housing - if you hold a tenancy or lease with the authority, as long as the matter does not relate 

to your particular tenancy or lease and you do not have arrears of rent of more than 2 months 

 •  school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, if you are a parent, guardian, 

grandparent of, or have parental responsibility for, a child in full-time education unless it 

relates particularly to the school your child attends 

 • decisions about statutory sick pay if you receive or are entitled to receive it from your authority

 •  an allowance or payment for members. I do not consider a member being put forward for 

election to a council office which attracts a Special Responsibility Allowance to have a 

prejudicial interest as I consider them to be covered by this dispensation.

These exemptions will not apply where the business you are considering is about determining 

an approval, consent, license, permission or regulation. I consider these descriptions to refer to a 

narrow category of decisions, such as granting planning consent and licensing decisions. A wider 

interpretation of approval, for example, would cover almost every aspect of your authority’s 

business and was clearly not intended. 

If one of the exemptions applies you are not regarded as having a prejudicial interest. You still must 

disclose your personal interest but you are allowed to participate in the item under discussion. 

Tudalen 204



37

Example  

Two members of a county borough council, who were sisters, were found by the Council’s 

Standards Committee to have failed to declare both personal and prejudicial interests when they 

decided to allocate funds from their Members’ Small Payments Scheme to a company, in respect of 

which one of the members was a non-paid director. During my investigation one of the members 

disputed the fact that she had received advice from the Monitoring Officer about the disclosure of 

such interests, and the other member had, despite receiving advice on the declaration of interests, 

falsely declared that she had no interest in the company on the nomination form. The Standards 

Committee considered the breaches of the Code to be serious ones. It decided to censure both 

members. 

Example  

A standards committee determined that the circumstances in which a member’s membership of a 

local organisation had ended resulting in an acrimonious and ongoing dispute between her and the 

organisation (including solicitors’ letters for the recovery of a debt) constituted a close personal 

association. It found that the nature of this association meant that the member had a prejudicial 

interest and that she had failed to declare this and withdraw from numerous meetings when a 

financial donation to the organisation had been discussed.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees

See Paragraph 13 

Please note: this section does not apply to fire and rescue authorities, and national   

park authorities. 

You have a prejudicial interest in any business before an overview and scrutiny committee or 

sub¬committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met: 

 •  that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken by 

your authority’s executive, board or another of your authority’s committees, sub-committees, 

joint committees or joint sub-committees, and

 •  you were a member of that decision-making body at that time and you were present at the 

time the decision was made or action taken. 

If the overview and scrutiny committee is checking a decision which you were involved in making 

you may be called to attend the meeting to give evidence or answer questions on the matter, and 

you may do so provided it is acting under its statutory powers. 

Tudalen 205



38

You must declare your 

interest and withdraw 

from the room 

What to do when you have a   
prejudicial interest 

See Paragraph 14   

If you consider that you have a prejudicial interest in your 

authority’s business you must take certain action.

Nevertheless, even where you have a prejudicial interest, the Code supports your role as a 

community advocate and enables you in certain circumstances to represent your community and 

to speak on issues important to them and to you. 

Key point: 

If you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a meeting, you must, having declared 

your personal interest in the matter, leave the room (or any other venue in which the meeting is 

being held including, for example, the location of a site meeting). 

This is unless members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or 

answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise. If that is the case, you can also 

attend the meeting for that purpose. However, you must immediately leave the room or chamber once 

the period for considering representations has finished, and before any discussion on the item begins, 

even if members of the public are allowed to remain. You cannot remain in the public gallery to observe 

the vote on the matter. 

In addition, you must not seek to influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial interest. 

This rule is similar to your general obligation not to use your position as a member improperly to your 

or someone else’s advantage or disadvantage. This means that as well as leaving meetings where the 

item is discussed, you should also not write or make any oral representations about the matter. 

Do I have a statutory right to speak to the meeting?     

The Code does not provide you with a general right to speak to a meeting where you have a 

prejudicial interest. However, in limited circumstances, legislation may provide you with a right to 

speak (for example, licensing hearings and standards hearings) which the Code recognises. If so, you 

will be allowed to exercise that right to speak. Your Monitoring Officer should be able to confirm 

whether this is relevant to your case. 

If I do not have a statutory right, will I be allowed to speak to the meeting?  

The Code aims to provide members with the same rights as ordinary members of the public to 

speak on certain matters in meetings, despite having a prejudicial interest. These rights are usually 

governed by your authority’s constitution, procedure rules or standing orders, and may be subject 

to conditions including time limits or the fact that representations can only be made in writing. 

If an ordinary member of the public would be allowed to speak to a meeting about an item, you 

should be provided with the same opportunity. You will be able to make representations, answer 

questions or give evidence, even if you have a prejudicial interest in the item. You may not take part 

in the discussion or observe the vote. 
Tudalen 206



39

When must I leave the place where the meeting is held?  

You must leave immediately when the time for making representations, giving evidence or 

answering questions is finished, and before any debate starts. 

What does influencing a decision mean?  

You must not make any representations or have any involvement with decisions in which you have 

a prejudicial interest, except where you are entitled to speak as described above. Your presence 

itself could be perceived to be capable of influencing the decision making process.

What if the public are not allowed to speak to the meeting on the matter?  

If an ordinary member of the public is not allowed to speak on the matter, you cannot do so if you 

have a prejudicial interest. You must leave the place where the debate is being held and not seek to 

influence the debate in any way. 

This may be the case, for example, where your authority is discussing a confidential matter in 

closed session or does not have procedure rules or standing orders in place that allow members 

of the public to speak at a meeting of your authority. Like the public, you are not allowed to 

participate if you have a prejudicial interest. However, where the public may be allowed to sit in 

the public gallery to observe the meeting, you will be required to leave the room during the 

debate and vote. 

What if I am summoned to attend a scrutiny committee to discuss business in which I have a 

prejudicial interest?  

If you are asked to attend by the committee exercising its statutory powers, then you may attend 

and participate in the meeting.

Executive or cabinet roles 

Please note: this section will not apply to fire and rescue authorities or national park 

authorities, unless in the latter case there are executive arrangements in place. 

If you are a leader or cabinet member of an authority operating executive arrangements, you   

must follow the normal rules for executive members who have personal and prejudicial interests. 

If your interest is personal but not prejudicial, you can advise the executive on the issue and take 

part in executive discussions and decisions as long as you declare your interest. You can also 

exercise delegated powers in the matter as long as you record the existence and nature of your 

personal interest. 

If you are an executive member who can take individual decisions, and you have a prejudicial 

interest in a decision, your authority may make other arrangements as set out in sections 14-16 of 

the Local Government Act 2000. This means that the decision can be taken by an officer, another 

cabinet member, the full executive, or a committee of the executive. 

Tudalen 207



40

Although you have a prejudicial interest in a matter, you may be able to make representations, 

answer questions and give evidence as long as a member of the public would have the same 

rights, but you are barred from decision-making about that matter individually or in cabinet. You 

also should not participate in any early consideration of it, or exercise any delegated powers in 

relation to it. If you have delegated powers in that area, you should refer the consideration and any 

decisions on the matter to the cabinet to avoid the perception of improper influence. 

Dispensations 

If I have a prejudicial interest, can I obtain a dispensation to allow me to take part in the meeting? 

You can apply in writing to your authority’s Standards Committee for a dispensation to speak and/

or vote on a matter on one or more of the following grounds: 

 •  at least 50 per cent of the authority or committee members would be prevented from taking 

a full part in a meeting because of prejudicial interests 

 •  at least half of the cabinet would be so prevented (the leader should be included in the 

cabinet in calculating the proportion) 

 •  in the case of a county/county borough council, the political balance at the meeting would 

be upset to such an extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected 

 • the nature of your interest is such that your participation would not harm public confidence

 • your interest is common to a significant proportion of the general public 

 • you have a particular role or expertise which would justify your participation 

 •  the business is being considered by an overview or scrutiny committee and you do not have a 

pecuniary interest; the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation 

and you sit on its board or committee in your own right and you do not have any other 

interest, although in this instance, any dispensation will not let you vote on the matter, or

 •  the committee believes that your participation would be in the interests of the people in 

your authority’s area and that the committee notifies Welsh Ministers within seven days. 

You can apply for a dispensation individually and, in certain circumstances, you can make joint 

applications where a number of members want to obtain a dispensation to speak or vote on the 

same matter. If the Standards Committee approves your application, it must grant the dispensation 

in writing and before the meeting is held. If you need a dispensation, you should apply for one as 

soon as is reasonably possible. 

Tudalen 208



41

Only the Standards Committee can grant the dispensation and will do so at its discretion. The 

Standards Committee will need to balance the public interest in preventing members with 

prejudicial interests from taking part in decisions, against the public interest in decisions being 

taken by a reasonably representative group of members of the authority. If failure to grant a 

dispensation will result in an authority or committee not achieving a quorum, this may well 

constitute grounds for granting a dispensation. 

Where you hold a dispensation, you can also make written representations but you must provide 

details of the dispensation in any correspondence. If you make oral representations, whether in 

person or by phone, you must refer to the dispensation and confirm this in writing within 14 days.

Tudalen 209



42

4. Registration of Interests

Key points: 

All members of authorities have to provide a record of their interests in a public register of 

interests. If you are a member of a county or county borough council, fire authority or national 

park authority, you must tell your Monitoring Officer in writing within 28 days of taking office, or 

within 28 days of any change to your register of interests, of any interests which fall within the 

categories set out in the Code, outlined below. 

You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and fellow members know 

which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.  The register is a document that can 

be consulted when (or before) an issue arises, and so allows others to know what interests you 

have, and whether they might give rise to a possible conflict of interest. 

The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether you should declare an 

interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think that a potential 

conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any interest that might have to be 

declared by you or other members, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. 

This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained. 

As previously mentioned, unless you are a community councillor, you must tell your Monitoring 

Officer in writing within 28 days of taking office, or within 28 days of any change to your register of 

interests, of any interests which fall within the categories set out in the Code. These categories include: 

 • your job(s) or business(es) 

 • the name of your employer or people who have appointed you to work for them 

 •  the name of any person who has made a payment to you in respect of your election or 

expenses you have incurred in carrying out your duties 

 •  the name of any person, company or other body which has a place of business or land in the 

authority’s area, and in which you have a shareholding of more than £25,000 (nominal value) 

or have a stake of more than 1/100th of the share capital of the company

 •  any contracts between the authority and yourself, your firm (if you are a partner) or a 

company (if you are a paid director or if you have a shareholding as described above) including 

any lease, licence from the authority and any contracts for goods, services or works. Where 

the contract relates to use of land or a property, the land must be identified on the register 

 •  any land and property in the authority’s area in which you have a beneficial interest (or a 

licence to occupy for more than 28 days) including, but not limited to, the land and house 

you live in and any allotments you own or use 

Tudalen 210



43

 •  your membership or position of control or management in: 

- any other bodies to which you were elected, appointed or nominated by the authority 

-  any bodies exercising functions of a public nature (described above), or directed to 

charitable purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 

policy, including any political party or trade union

- any private club, society or association operating within your authority’s area.

Sensitive information 

Key points:

You may be exempt from having to include sensitive information on your register of interests. If 

your personal interest in a matter under discussion at a meeting is sensitive information, you will 

need to declare that you have a personal interest but you will not have to give any details about 

the nature of that interest. 

Sensitive information may include your sensitive employment (such as certain scientific research 

or the Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to create a serious risk of violence or 

intimidation against you or someone who lives with you should they become public knowledge. 

You should provide this information to your Monitoring Officer and explain your concerns 

regarding the disclosure of the sensitive information; including why it is likely to create a serious 

risk that you or a person who lives with you will be subjected to violence or intimidation. You do 

not need to include this information in your register of interests, if your Monitoring Officer agrees. 

Ultimately, you must decide what information to include on your publicly available register of 

interests. If information on your register ceases to be sensitive you must notify your Monitoring 

Officer within 28 days asking them to amend the information accordingly.

Tudalen 211



44

Gifts and hospitality 

Key points: 

You must register any gifts or hospitality worth more than the amount specified by your authority 

that you receive in connection with your official duties as a member and the source of the gift or 

hospitality. 

You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of receiving it. Like other 

interests in your register of interests, you may have a personal interest in a matter under 

consideration if it is likely to affect a person who gave you a gift or hospitality that is registered. 

If that is the case, you must declare the existence and nature of the gift or hospitality, the person 

who gave it to you, how the business under consideration relates to that person and then decide 

whether that interest is also a prejudicial interest. It is also good practice to provide a note of any 

offers of gifts which you have declined. 

Is the gift or hospitality connected to my official duties as a member?  

You should ask yourself, would I have been given this if I was not on the Council? If you are in 

doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, I recommend that you register it or speak to 

your Monitoring Officer. 

You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a member, 

such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or gifts which you do not accept. However, 

you should always register a gift or hospitality if it could be perceived as something given to you 

because of your position or if your authority requires you to. 

What if I do not know the value of a gift or hospitality?  

The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you should register it, as a 

matter of good practice and in accordance with the principles of openness and accountability in 

public life. You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth. Also, an accumulation 

of small gifts you receive from the same source over a short period that add up to the value 

specified by your authority or over should be registered. 

The Code also refers to material benefit or advantage. The measure of this would be if an 

informed independent observer could conclude that you might be perceived to be better off 

as a consequence.

Tudalen 212



45

Appendix 1 

Personal Interests
Questions to ask yourself. If in doubt you should ask your Monitoring Officer.

STEP 1
Does the 
Code 
apply?

Are you: 
• conducting the business of your authority? 
•  acting, claiming to or giving the impression that you are acting, in your official capacity as a member or 

representative of your authority? 
•  acting as your authority’s appointee or nominee on any other body without its own code of conduct?

STEP 2
Do you 
have a 
personal 
interest?

The Code does apply.  
Continue to Step 2.

The Code does not apply.
No further action required.

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
In

te
re

st
s

Does the business relate to or is it likely  
to affect:
1. your job or business?
2. your employer or company?
3.  any person who has paid towards your 

election or expenses as a member?
4.  any company in which you hold shares with 

the nominal value of more than £25000 or 
where your holding is more than 1% of the 
total share capital, which has premises or land 
in your authority’s area? 

5.  any contract that your authority makes with 
your company or a company in which you 
hold shares? (as described in 4)

6. any land in which you have an interest?
7.  any land let by your authority to your 

company? (as described in 4) 
8.  any body to which you have been elected or 

appointed by your authority?
9.  any
 •  public authority or body exercising functions 

of a public nature?
 •  company, industrial and provident society, 

charity or body directed to charitable 
purposes? 

 •  body whose main role is influencing public 
opinion or policy? 

 • trade union or professional association? 
 •  private club, society or association operating 

in your authority’s area in which you have 
membership or are in a position of general 
control or management?

 or
10.  any land in your authority’s area which you 

have a license to occupy for at least 28 days?

Might a 
member of 
the public 
reasonably 

conclude that 
when making 

a decision 
you are more 
influenced by 
issues in your 
ward than by 
the interests 

of your whole 
authority?

Might a decision be 
reasonably regarded as 
affecting (to a greater 
extent than other people 
in your ward/authority’s 
area):
•  your well being or financial 

position?
•  the well being or financial 

position of any person 
who lives with you or with 
whom you have a close 
personal association? 

•  the employment/ business, 
employer, or company 
of any person who lives 
with you or with whom 
you have a close personal 
association? 

•  any company in which any 
person who lives with you 
or with whom you have a 
close personal association 
owns shares?

If YES, you have a PERSONAL INTEREST
If NO, you do not have a 

personal interest

You must:
•  declare your interest and the nature of that interest at:  

- meetings 
- when making written representations 
-  when making oral representations (and confirm it in writing 

within 14 days) 
• consider if you have a prejudicial interest (see Appendix 2)

•  If the business is before 
an Overview or Scrutiny 
Committee consider if you 
have a prejudicial interest

•  Otherwise, no further action 
is required

YES NO

OR OR

Tudalen 213



46

Appendix 2 

Prejudicial Interests
Questions to ask yourself. If in doubt you should ask your Monitoring Officer.

STEP 3:
Do you 
have a 
prejudicial 
interest?

Would a member of the public, who knows 
the relevant facts, reasonably think your 
personal interest is so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgement of the 
public interest?

Is an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee considering a decision 
made or action taken by your 
authority’s executive, board or another 
committee and you were a member of 
that decision-making body and present 
body

P
re

ju
d

ic
ia

l 
In

te
re

st
s

Does the business relate to: 
•  another relevant authority of which you are 

also a member?
•  another public authority or a body exercising 

functions of a public nature in which 
you hold a position of general control or 
management?

•  a body to which you have been elected, 
appointed or nominated by your authority?

•  your role as school governor where you have 
not been appointed or nominated by your 
authority (e.g. a parent governor) unless the 
business specifically relates to your school?

•  your role as a member of a health board 
where you have not been appointed by your 
authority? 

•  housing, if you hold a tenancy or lease with 
the authority, as long as the matter does not 
relate to your particular tenancy or lease and 
you do not have arrears of rent of more than 
2 months? 

•  school meals or school transport and 
travelling expenses, if you are a parent, 
guardian, grandparent of, or have parental 
responsibility for, a child in full-time 
education unless it relates particularly to the 
school your child attends? 

•  decisions about statutory sick pay if you 
receive or are entitled to receive it from your 
authority?

•  an allowance or payment for members 
(subject to certain conditions). 

You are not regarded as having 

a prejudicial interest. You must 

disclose your personal interest 

but you are allowed to 

participate in the item under 

discussion.

NO, none of
the exemptions  

apply

You have a PREJUDICIAL INTEREST 

You must:
• declare your personal interest
•  leave the room or any other venue 

in which the meeting is being held 
•  not take part in or influence the 

decision-making process

UNLESS
•  You have been granted a 

dispensation by your standards 
committee to take part and/or vote

•  Members of the public can make 
representations, answer questions 
or give evidence

•  You have been called to attend 
at an overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting 

Yes, one of the exemptions applies

You are not regarded as having a prejudicial 

interest. You must disclose your personal 

interest but you are allowed to participate  

in the item under discussion.

YES

OR

NO NO YES

Tudalen 214



Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae

Pencoed

CF35 5LJ

Tel: 01656 641150

Fax: 01656 641199

E-mail: ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Web: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk
Tudalen 215



Tudalen 216

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

HYSBYSIAD O BENDERFYNIAD PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU 

Y CYNGHORYDD CYMUNED HAULWEN LEWIS 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried yr adroddiad 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Y Cyng E 
Dole (Arweinydd y Cyngor) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk. 

Eitem Rhif  9

Tudalen 217



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

TH
 SEPTEMBER 2015  

 

 

ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES – DECISION NOTICE 

COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR HAULWEN LEWIS 
 

On the 13th August 2015 a Case Tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales was 
convened to consider a reference from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales in 
respect of Councillor Haulwen Lewis of Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council. 
 
The referral related to an alleged breach of the Members Code of Conduct by 
Councillor Lewis at a meeting of the community council on the 16th January 2012. 
It was claimed that Councillor Lewis failed to declare a personal and prejudicial interest 
when consideration was being given to a planning application for a wind farm on land 
adjacent to land which she owned and that furthermore she had participated in a secret 
ballot in relation to the application. 
 
The Case Tribunal unanimously found that Councillor Lewis had by her conduct 
breached paragraphs 11(1) and 14(1)(a) of the Code. 
 
The Case Tribunal also unanimously decided that Councillor Lewis should be 
suspended from acting as a member of Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council for a 
period of 3 months as from the 13th August 2015. 
 
A copy of the Case Tribunal’s decision Notice is attached to this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO  

 

Tudalen 218



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:        Linda Rees Jones                                     Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 219



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:        Linda Rees Jones                                    Head of Administration and Law                                             

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

Tudalen 220



Tudalen 221



Tudalen 222



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN BYMTHEG O GYNGHORWYR O 
GYNGOR CYMUNED GORS-LAS 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried y cais a phenderfynu arno 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad hwn yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Amherthnasol  

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                      NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y 
Cynghorydd E Dole (Arweinydd) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 

 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk. 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Rhif  10

Tudalen 223



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

TH
 SEPTEMBER 2015  

 

 

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY FIFTEEN 
COUNCILLORS FROM GORSLAS COMMUNITY COUNCIL  

 
An application has been received on behalf of 15 elected members of Gorslas 
Community Council for the grant of a dispensation to speak and vote on matters 
relating to 3 recreation parks owned and maintained by the Community Council. 
 
The Councillors have a personal interest in these matters pursuant to paragraph 
10(2)(ix)(ee) of the code in that they are members of local Welfare Association 
Committees which are involved in the running of those parks. 
 
The Councillors were not appointed to their roles on those committees by the 
Community Council. 
 
The Councillor’s interests are prejudicial as a member of the public with knowledge of 
the relevant facts would reasonably regard that interest as so significant that it is likely 
to prejudice the Councillors judgement of the public interest. For example when the 
Community Council is deciding whether or not to spend monies on the parks a member 
of the public could reasonably conclude that the fact a Councillor is a member of the 
relevant Welfare Association committee would influence their view as to whether the 
money should be spent on the park or on some other issue unconnected with the 
Association. 
 
The Councillors have no direct financial interest in their respective welfare 
associations. 
 
If the committee is minded to grant these applications it is suggested that this be on 
ground 2(a) in the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 
2001, namely that the interest affects no fewer than half the members of the authority. 
 
In granting a dispensation the Committee has absolute discretion as to how long it lasts 
for. If the committee is minded to limit the dispensation for a specific period, it may wish 
to consider doing so until the 4th December (3 months) or 11th March (6mths) 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO  

 

Tudalen 224



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:                Linda Rees Jones                         Head of Administration and Law                            

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 225



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:         Linda Rees Jones                                Head of Administration and Law                                              

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-136 Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

Tudalen 226



Tudalen 227



Tudalen 228



Tudalen 229



Tudalen 230

Mae’r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



  

Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 

11EG MEDI 2015  
 

CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD SHAHID HUSSAIN 

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 

Ystyried y cais a phenderfynu arno 

 

Y rhesymau:  
Mae cynnwys yr adroddiad yn rhan o gylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor 

 
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu: 

Ddim yn berthnasol 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES  

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y Cyng. E 
Dole (Arweinydd) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Y Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Robert Edgecombe 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 
 

Rheolwr Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 

 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224018 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

RJEdgeco@sirgar.gov.uk. 

 

 

 

 

 

Eitem Rhif  11

Tudalen 231



  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
11

TH
 SEPTEMBER 2015  

 

 

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLOR SHAHID HUSSAIN 
 

An application has been received from Councillor Shahid Hussain of Cwmamman 
Town Council for the grant of a dispensation to speak and vote in respect of the 
relocation of Glanamman Post Office. 
 
The issue is to be discussed at a meeting of the Town Council on the 3rd September 
2015. 
 
Councillor Hussain has a personal interest in the matter by virtue of paragraph 
10(2)(a)(i) of the code of conduct as it relates to and is likely to affect a business 
carried on by him. This is because the proposed site of the relocated post office is a 
petrol station owned by Councillor Hussain. 
 
Councillor Hussain’s interest is also prejudicial as a member of the public, with 
knowledge of Councillor Hussain’s business and financial interest in the issue would 
reasonably regard that interest as so significant as to be likely to prejudice his 
judgement of the wider public interest. 
 
Councillor Hussain requests that a dispensation be granted under regulation 2(f) of the 
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001 in that his 
participation is justified because of his particular role or expertise. Councillor Hussain 
submits that his previous experience of such post office re-locations and the financial 
implications that result is unique amongst members of the Council and that if he were 
unable to participate the Council would be at risk of making a decision without all 
relevant information. 
 
It the committee is minded to grant the application it has absolute discretion as to the 
duration of the dispensation. It may be limited solely to the meeting on the 3rd 
September, granted for a longer duration (eg to the meetings of the Standards 
Committee on the 4th December 2015 or the 11th March 2016) or to last for the 
remainder of his term of office. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO  

 

Tudalen 232



  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

 

Signed:         Linda Rees Jones                                                          Head of Administration and Law                           

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

NONE  

 

 

NONE  

 

 

  

Tudalen 233



  

CONSULTATIONS 

 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

 

Signed:          Linda Rees Jones                                              Head of   Administration and Law                                             

 

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings) 

1. Scrutiny Committee 

Not applicable 

 

2. Local Member(s)  

Not applicable 

 

3. Community / Town Council  

Not applicable 

 

4. Relevant Partners   

Not applicable 

 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   

Not applicable 

 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

 

Title of Document 

 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Legal file 
 

DPSC-
0000 

Legal Services, County Hall 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

Tudalen 234



Tudalen 235



Tudalen 236



Tudalen 237



Tudalen 238


	Agenda
	3 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR Y 29AIN GORFFENNAF, 2015.
	4 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 2014/2015.
	Adroddiad

	5 ADOLYGU'R POLISI DATGELU CAMARFER CORFFORAETHOL.
	Adroddiad

	6 CYDYMFFURIO A'R COD YMDDYGIAD GAN GYNGHORWYR TREF A CHYMUNED.
	Adroddiad

	7 ADRODDIAD OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CYMRU 2014/15.
	Adroddiad

	8 CANLLAWIAU DIWYGIEDIG YR OMBWDSMON.
	Adroddiad

	9 HYSBYSIAD O BENDERFYNIAD PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU Y CYNGHORYDD CYMUNED HAULWEN LEWIS.
	Adroddiad

	10 CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN BUMTHEG O GYNGHORWYR O GYNGOR CYMUNED GORSLAS.
	Adroddiad

	11 CAIS AM OLLYNGIAD GAN Y CYNGHORYDD SHAHID HUSSAIN.
	Adroddiad


